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Corporate Profile

o3 ] L

Established in Hong Kong, one of the world's most vibrant global metropolises, Guotai
Junan International Holdings Limited (“Guotai Junan International” or “the Company”
or “the Group” or “We") serves as a bridge to connect enterprises and investors in
China and the world. We provide channels for Chinese investors to access international
capital markets while at the same time enable intemational investors to gain access to the

dynamic growth of the Chinese markets.

We are a subsidiary of Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited (“Guotai Junan”), one
of the China’s largest securities houses, predominantly owned by Shanghai International
Group Company Limited. Backed by the strong operational support, we are the
designated international flagship company of Guotai Junan, serving as the gateway for

international expansion of Guotai Junan.

Today Guotai Junan International enjoys a host of tremendous growth opportunities and
is well positioned to participate in capital markets expansion in Hong Kong. We have
unparalleled access to our controlling shareholder's extensive business networks, not just

in China but globally.

Guotai Junan International is the first Mainland-owned securities brokerage house with
China Securities Regulatory Commission (“CSRC") approval to list its shares through
initial public offering ("IPO") on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange"). Established in Hong Kong in 1995, we provide our services
in 5 core business areas: (i) dealing and broking in securities, futures and leveraged foreign
exchange, (i) loans and financing activities, (iii) corporate finance, (iv) asset management
and (v) investment holdings. By means of a sophisticated Internet platform, we are able
to provide our clients with comprehensive services on global securities, derivative and
leveraged foreign exchange trading, IPO subscriptions, margin financing, stock quotes,
market news and research reports, etc. Our team of dedicated professionals, who have in-
depth knowledge and understanding of both China and Hong Kong capital markets, has
established a solid reputation for providing a wide range of high quality corporate finance

solutions to our clients in Hong Kong, China and across the world.

We have proudly provided our clients with a superb range of high quality financial services
through some of the most turbulent economic periods in history. Looking into the future,
we will continue to expand and invest in our existing platforms and customer profiles,
and become a major regional financial services conglomerate. We will commit ourselves
to assist our clients in making proper judgments in different market conditions while

upholding our service commitment with integrity, client focus, expertise and innovation.
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1995

1997

2001

2003

2004

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited was incorporated.

Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited became a member of the Stock

Exchange and commenced business.

Guotai Junan Futures (Hong Kong) Limited commenced business.

Online trading platform for Hong Kong securities was launched.
Online trading platform for futures business was launched.

Completed sponsorship and IPO fund raising in Hong Kong for the first pilot

company whose A Shares were listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Qur first SFC authorized fund: Guotai Junan Investment Funds — Guotai Junan

Greater China Growth Fund was launched.

Completed sponsorship and IPO fund raising in Hong Kong for the first
pilot company whose A and B Shares were listed on the Shenzhen Stock

Exchange.

Online trading platform for United States securities was launched.

CSRC approval on China B shares trading qualification obtained.

CSRC approval for Hong Kong listing obtained.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited was incorporated and listed on

the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Guotai Junan FX Limited commenced leveraged foreign exchange trading

service.

Level | American Depository Receipt program was launched and BNY

Mellon was appointed as the depository bank.

Guotai Junan Futures (Hong Kong) Limited became a broking member of

Hong Kong Mercantile Exchange.
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Milestones

M

2012

We launch our first RQFII fund: Guotai Junan Great Dragon RMB Funds — —E

Guotai Junan Great Dragon China Fixed Income Fund.

Completed conversion of the B share into H share and the listing of H share

on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of a Chinese enterprise.
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2012 Annual Report
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Financial Highlights
CURLE S

For the year ended

3| December

BE+=-A=t-H
JI:3:5
2012 2011 Change
—E--f T #
HK$'000 HK$'000 %
THERT TAET Bt
Fee and commission income WE LA A

— dealing and broking -~ BERELED 264,533 317334 -16.6%
— corporate finance -h¥mE 156,988 136,619 14.9%
~ asset management - EEER 31,387 23311 34.6%
Interest income from loans and financing ERRBERNSHRA 276,149 214793 28.6%
Gain from investment holding REZEBNE 57,513 8,672 563.2%
Revenue Yrzs 786,570 700,729 12.3%
Other income Hib Ut A 4,170 2425 72.0%
Revenue and other income W K EoAt A 790,740 703,154 12.5%
Profit for the year F R A 307,150 287,448 6.9%

Profit attributable to equity holders ARRIRIERB ARERM
of the Company 307,003 287,706 6.7%
Basic and diluted earnings per share (HK cents) SRR E A R #F R FI(EL) 18.8 175 74%
Dividend per share (HK cents) Bk 8 CBAL) 10 9 I1.1%
Net asset value per share (HK$) (Note) SREEFECET) (M) 2.09 197 6.1%

Note:  Based on ,626,889,000 shares (201 I: 1,635273,000 shares) as at 31 December 2012,
being 1,640,000,000 shares issued and fully paid less |3,111,000 shares held for the Shares
Award Scheme (201 I: 1,640,000,000 shares issued and fully paid less 4,727,000 shares held

for the Share Award Scheme).
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Financial Summary

o 25 B 22

AEEBERFNTIREEREEREEMES
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A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years is set our below:

RESULTS
ES
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t—-HLEE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
B —T——F ZT-TF ZTTNF ZTITN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT TAT FTAET FTAT
Revenue and other income W R HoA A 790,740 703,154 658,094 587,085 519,307
Profit before tax B A4 A 355,402 330235 288,407 271,848 213,024
Profit from continuing operations  F5 B 4% & 2754 7 307,150 287448 252,624 244,040 210428
Profit attributable to equity ARAIRIERE ARG R
holders of the company 307,003 287,706 250,685 298,307 126,045
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EEHAE
As at 31 December
R+=B=+-H
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
B —T——F ZT-TF ZTTNF ZTTN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAT FAT FAT FTAT
Loans and advances to customers B R E PR 3,058,102 2064215 197589 860,731 368,648
Cash and cash equivalent RekBReEED 384,554 661,856 441,631 460,284 586,527
Client trust bank balances KPP EstiRITA R 5883,941 6,121,768 5874971 5679243 4175794
Other current assets HitREEE 1,612,624 505427 1,031,652 434291 485326
Other non-current assets HitEn8 & E 547,516 648,198 651,512 360,382 43978
Total assets BEBE 11,486,737 10001464 9975660 7794931 5660273
Total liabilities BERE (8,086,972)  (6769,446)  (6903311)  (6609,673)  (4,625,170)
Non-controlling interests R R (6,317) (6,170) (6,428) (4,489) (2,402)
Shareholders' fund BRRES 3393448 3225848 3065921  1,180769 103270

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Dear Shareholders,

Continued to be influenced by various issues such as the exacerbation of the European
debt crisis, the slow economic recovery in United States and the contraction of economy
in China, the Hong Kong market experienced fluctuations and the market turnover
decreased significantly in the first half of the year in 2012. With the launch of the
Outright Monetary Transactions by the European Central Bank and the third stage of the
Quantitative Easing measures by the government of United States in the third quarter,
the market picked up significantly both in terms of the performance and the turnover
since then. Against this backdrop, | am pleased to report that the Group's performance

exceeded expectation and achieved encouraging results for the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the revenue of the Group maintained a stable
growth to HK$786.6 million, increased by 12.3% as compared to last year. The profit
attributable to shareholders for the year was HK$307.0 million, representing an increase of
6.7%. The Board of Directors has recommended a final dividend of HK$7 cents per share
(201 I: HK$6 cents). Together with the interim dividend of HK$3 cents per share (201 1:
HK$3 cents), total dividend for the year will be HK$10 cents per share.

2012 RESULTS

2012 was a turbulent year. Following the path of the external economic instances, the
Hang Seng Index was on a roller coaster, climbed up to the first peak in March and turned
down sharply as a result of sign of exacerbation of the European debt crisis. After the
launch of Outright Monetary Transactions by the European Central Bank and the third
stage of the Quantitative Easing measures by the government of United States in the third
quarter, the market performance picked up and the Hang Seng Index ultimately closed at

22,657, representing an increase of 22.9% as compared to last year.

Throughout the year, market sentiment remained weak and investors were lack of
motivation to participate in the market. Although the market turnover picked up in the
fourth quarter, the average daily market tumover dropped by 23% in 2012. In addition,
capital market activities decreased significantly due to poor market conditions. The total
fund raised in the market through IPO decreased by 65% while the number of newly listed
companies in the market decreased by 37% as compared to 201 I. However, debt market

activities became very active in 2012,
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Chairman’s Statement
FRE &

Under such a severe market environment, the Group was able to deliver satisfactory
results in which it achieved a growth in revenue of 12.3% and an increase in profit
attributable to shareholders of 6.7%. This was contributed to the success of the Group's
long term development strategy: commitment in diversifying business while at the same
time maintaining a healthy cost structure. By persisting in the innovation in the finance
business, the Group participated in bridging loan business, in which the Group had
successfully provided finance to a Chinese company to facilitate its privatization and
delisting in the US market. Taking the opportunity of the blooming of the debt market
activities, the Group set up a Global Markets Department, focusing on providing debt
orientation services as well as secondary market facilitation services to our clients and
achieved promising results during the year. The landmark case in assisting a Chinese
enterprise to converting its B share into H share and listed in the Stock Exchange brought
the Group to a new chapter in corporate finance and brokerage businesses. The success
of the case not just speeded up the B share reform in China but also brought into new

business to the Group.

Our success in business was not only reflected in our results but also received recognition
from the public. During the year, we had been awarded the “Best Investment Value
Listed Company” Award in “China Securities Golden Bauhinia Awards 2012" by Ta
Kung Pao, the “Best Hong Kong Securities Company” Award in “The First International
Financial Annual Champion Award 2012" by Hexin Online, the “Most Popular Hong Kong
Securities Company” Award in “Impact on China 2012" by QQ.com and the “2012 Most
Outstanding Investment and Corporate Finance Enterprise” Award by Wen Wei Po.
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OUR STRATEGY

Being one of the leading securities companies in China, our controlling shareholder, Guotai
Junan Securities Company Limited (“Guotai Junan”) is at the forefront of the industry
in terms of its overall strength and innovative abilities. The Group is the only offshore
platform to implement its internationalization strategy. As such, our position is to base
in Hong Kong, rely on the strong network in China and explore international business.
We aim to be a regional financial services company with comprehensive financial services
capabilities. We endeavor to provide global investment and corporate finance services to
our customers in China while at the same time provide overseas investors with an access

to capital markets in China.

Currently, the reform in China's securities industry and the internationalization of RMB
are in full swing. The construction of the Hong Kong offshore RMB market is moving
fast. Market demands drive the needs for the innovation of cross-border business. This
undoubtedly creates opportunities for Chinese securities companies in Hong Kong. The
Group will collaborate with Guotai Junan and to utilize its extensive customer network
and resource advantages in Mainland China. Taking this historical opportunity, the Group

will strive to achieve a breakthrough in its overall business scale and competitive strength.

While we continue to devote greater efforts in expanding our conventional businesses,
we will continue to search for business innovations and catch up with the pace of the
fast-moving developments in the market. We also devote to establish a sales network
comprising of international institutional investors and mainland China investors and to

reinforce the Group's international competitiveness.

LOOKING FORWARD

Looking forward to 2013, we see a lot of business opportunities in front of us. A new
round of reform in the securities industry in China is coming up, and policies that
have significant impact on the development of China’s capital markets are changing.
Cross-border capital market business is expected to grow rapidly. Facing at all these
opportunities, we will leverage on our tradition of business innovation and to capture and

transform all these opportunities into generic businesses.
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Chairman’s Statement
FRE &

The Group will continue its proactive while prudent operating approach, devoting
more efforts in expanding innovative business while at the same time maintaining steady
development in conventional businesses. While we are expanding our businesses, our
core value will be maintained: a sound risk management and a healthy cost structure. We
are confident in generating a stable, sustainable and attractive investment retumn to our

shareholders.

At last, taking this opportunity, | would like to extend my heartfelt thank to all of our
shareholders, valued customers, business partners and staff for the full support and
contribution to the success of the Group last year. | look forward to your continued

participation and witnessing of the success of the Group in the future.
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Dr. YIM Fung EigEt

Chairman and CEO FREFRITEAEH

Hong Kong e
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is committed to maintain a high
standard of corporate governance practices within the Group and has adopted various
measures to ensure the maintenance of a high standard. The Company has adopted
the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (effective
until 31 March 2012) during the period from | January 2012 to 31 March 2012 and the
Corporate Governance Code (effective from | April 2012) during the period from | April
2012 to 31 December 2012 (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
(the “Listing Rules™) Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as its own code of corporate governance. For the
year ended 31 December 2012, the Company has complied with all the code provisions
as set out in the CG Code, except for deviation from provision A.2.| of the CG Code as

mentioned below:

Code Provision A2.1 provides that the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. The Company
deviates from this provision because Dr. YIM Fung has been performing both the roles
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 24 August 2012. The
Directors consider that vesting two roles in the same person provides the Group with
strong and consistent leadership in the development and execution of the Group's
business strategies and is beneficial to the Group. Although the responsibilities of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are vested in one person, all major decisions
are made in consultation with the Board members and the senior management of the
Company. There are three Independent Non-Executive Directors in the Board. The
Directors consider that there is sufficient balance of power and the current arrangement

maintains a strong management position of the Company.

The Directors are committed to upholding the corporate governance of the Company to
ensure that formal and transparent procedures are in place to protect and maximize the

interests of the shareholders of the Company.

This report sets out a detailed discussion of the corporate governance practices adopted
and observed by the Company during the year ended 31 December 2012 (the “Review
Period").
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Corporate Governance Report
e SR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board believes that a well-balanced corporate governance structure will enable
the Company to better manage its business risks and thereby ensure the Company
is run in the best interests of its shareholders and other stakeholders. The Board is
primarily responsible for formulating overall strategic plans and key policies of the
Group, monitoring its financial performance, maintaining effective oversight over the
management, risks assessment, controls over business operations and ensuring good
corporate govemance and compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. The Board
members are fully committed to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximise the

shareholders' value in the long run.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of 8 Directors:

Executive Directors: Dr. YIM Fung (Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. YAO Wei (Vice Chairman and
Deputy Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. LI Guangjie

Mr. LI Sang, Edward

Mr. WONG Tung Ching

Dr. FU Tingmei
Dr. SONG Ming
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung

Independent

Non-executive Directors:

The list of Directors of the Company and their roles and functions is posted on the

websites of the Company (www.gtja.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange.

Independent Non-executive Directors
The Independent Non-executive Directors are all with well recognised experience and
expertise in accounting or other fields who can provide valuable advice to the Board.

They are appointed for an initial term of three years commencing from 19 June 2010.

There is no relationship between members of the Board. Pursuant to the requirement
of the Listing Rules, the Company has received a written confirmation from each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors of his independence to the Company. The
Company considers that all the Independent Non-executive Directors were independent

in accordance with the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2012.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Upon resignation of Dr. CHEN Geng, the former Chairman of the Company, on 24
August 2012, Dr. YIM Fung, the former Vice-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer has
been re-designated as Chairman of the Board. Dr. YIM has been performing both the
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer since then. Dr. YIM joined the Group in
2000 and has been responsible for the overall business management of the Group, he has
over 2| years" experience in the securities industry. The Directors consider that vesting of
two roles in the same person provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership in
the development and execution of the Group's business strategies and is beneficial to the
Group. Although the responsibilities of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are vested
in one person, all major decisions are made in consultation with the Board members and
the senior management of the Company. There are three Independent Non-executive
Directors in the Board, the Directors consider that there is sufficient balance of power

and the current arrangement maintains a strong management position of the Company.

Board Process

Full board meets in person no less than 4 times a year. Notice of at least 14 days is given
for a regular board meeting so as to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. Agenda
and accompanying board papers for each meeting are circulated in full to all Directors
before the meeting. Senior management executives may, from time to time, be invited to
attend the board meetings for making presentation and/or answering any queries that may

be raised by the Board.

The Company Secretary will assist the Board in setting agenda for meetings, and each
Director of the Company is given an opportunity to include any matters to be transacted
in the agenda. Where any Director is considered to be having a conflict of interest in any
transactions, the Director concemed will not be counted in the quorum of the relevant
meeting. Minutes of meetings of the Board and the respective board committees are
recorded in details. All draft minutes are circulated to all those present at the meetings for

comments before submission to the chairman of the meetings for approval.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012, 4 board meetings were held and the individual

attendance of each Director is set out below:

Name of Director

ESfR

RUEL(R=F—=F
NAZ+MEEHE)

Dr. CHEN Geng (resigned on
24 August 2012)

Dr. YIM Fung HEEL

Mr. YAO Wei (appointed on hEEERZS—=F
24 August 2012) NAZTHBEZRA)
Mr. LI Guangjie PRATE

Mr. LI Sang, Edward THEEE

Mr. WONG Tung Ching FRERE

Dr. FU Tingmei BEXEL

Dr. SONG Ming REEL

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung TIRBIL Y

Board meetings were held to discuss the business strategies of the Group, monitor
financial and operational performance, approve the annual and interim results of the
Group, discuss the corporate governance functions of the Board, review the Group's
policies and practices in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, and review

the codes applicable to directors and employees.

During the year, a meeting of the Chairman and the Independent Non-executive
Directors without presence of the Executive Directors and the management was held to
discuss and review the performance of the Executive Directors and the management, and

the adequacy of systems and controls in place to safeguard the interests of the Group.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the Executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Director has entered
into a service agreement or a letter of appointment with the Company for a specific term.
Such term is subject to re-election by the Company at an annual general meeting (“AGM")
upon retirement. In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, one-
third of the Directors or, if the number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, will retire from office by rotation and every
Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years. The Directors to retire every year will be those who have been longest in

office since their last re-election or appointment.

BE_Z——Ft+-_A=+-BHIEE &%
SROTHREE  MEREFEALEBR
HImT -

Number of

meetings attended Attendance rate

HEERRH R
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Directors’ Training and Professional Development
The individual training record of each Director received for the year ended 31 December

2012 is set out below:

Name of Director

e SEE

ESRIIRERRR
BE-Z-——FT-_A=+t—HLEFE £E
SRRESIEER ST

Type of continuous

professional

development programs

EspA BREXRRETIER
Executive Directors HITEE

Dr. YIM Fung 3 A
Mr. YAO Wei (appointed on 24 August 2012) thEEE(R_T——FNAZ+NBEZF) A
Mr. LI Guangjie FhAKE A
Mr. LI Sang, Edward FHERE A
Mr. WONG Tung Ching FRERE A
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHHTEE

Dr. FU Tingmei BEXEL A
Dr. SONG Ming REEL B
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung DRt A

Notes: A = attending seminar

B = delivering speech
Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties, including:

(a)  to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management;

() to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance with

legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if

any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e)  to review the Company's compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

(Corporate Governance Code).
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Under the Board, there are 3 board committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. All these committees perform their distinct roles
in accordance with their respective terms of reference and assist the Board in supervising

certain functions of the senior management.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of the Board was established on 19 June 2010. The Committee

comprises only Independent Non-executive Directors:

Independent Non-executive Directors: Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung (Chairman)
Dr. SONG Ming

Dr. FU Tingmei

The Chairman of the Committee has professional accounting qualification. The Committee
reviews financial information of the Group, monitors the effectiveness of the external audit
and oversees the appointment, remuneration and terms of engagement of the Company's
external auditor, as well as their independence. The Committee will meet regularly to
review financial reporting process, all business affairs managed by the Executive Directors
in particular on connected transactions and continuing connected transactions, if any, to
review the interim and final financial statements before their submission to the Board and
the annual general meeting for approval and to review the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management system of the Group, including the internal audit function.
A copy of the terms of reference of the Committee has been posted on the Company's

website (www.gtja.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange's website.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Committee met on 4 occasions and the

individual attendance of the Committee members is set out below:

Name of Director
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Number of

meetings attended Attendance rate

Esng HEGRRH HE=R
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung TIRBITE 4/4 100%
Dr. SONG Ming REEL 4/4 100%
Dr. FU Tingmei BEXEL 4/4 100%
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During the year, the Committee has considered the external auditor's proposed audit
fees, discussed with the external auditor their independence and the nature and scope of
the audit, reviewed the interim and annual financial statements of the Group, particularly
judgmental areas, before submission to the Board, reviewed the internal control system
and the internal audit plan, findings and management's response, reviewed the Group's
adherence to the code provisions in the Code. The Committee recommended the Board

to adopt the interim and annual financial statements for 2012.

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee was established on 19 June 2010. The Committee

currently comprises 4 Directors:

Independent Non-executive Directors:  Dr. FU Tingmei (Chairman)
Dr. SONG Ming
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung (appointed on

20 April 2012)

Executive Director: Dr. YIM Fung

The responsibilities of the Committee include setting remuneration policy of the Group
and fixing remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and the Board as a whole
in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association of the Company. No
Directors can determine their own remuneration packages. The Committee will meet at
least once a year to discharge its responsibilities in accordance with its terms of reference
which has been posted on the Company's website. The Committee is provided with the
sufficient resources to discharge its duties. The Chairman of the Committee will report
their findings and recommendations to the Board for consideration and approval. The full
terms of reference of the Committee are available on the Company's website (www.gtja.

comhk) and the Stock Exchange's website.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Committee held | meeting to review and
discuss remuneration matters of the Group. The individual attendance of the Committee

members is set out below:

Name of Director

EEps

Dr. FU Tingmei BEXEL
Dr. YIM Fung HEEL
Dr. SONG Ming REIEL

BRASEL(R=F =4
mA=+EEEE)

Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung
(appointed on 20 April 2012)

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee was established on 19 June 2010. The Committee currently

comprises 3 Directors:

Independent Non-executive Directors:  Dr. SONG Ming (Chairman)

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung

Executive Director: Dr. YIM Fung (appointed on

24 August 2012)

The primary responsibilities of the Committee are, amongst other things, to make
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors and succession planning
for the Directors. The full terms of reference of the Committee are available on the

Company's website (www.gtja.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange's website.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Committee held | meeting to review and
discuss appointment and succession planning of Directors. The individual attendance of

the Committee members is set out below:

Name of Director

EEps

Dr. SONG Ming REEL

Dr. YIM Fung (appointed on BEET(R=F—=F
24 August 2012) NAZTMBEEE)
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung TIRBIL A

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare financial statements for each financial
period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing
these financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments and
estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a
going concemn basis. The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records
which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group.
Prior to the adoption of the financial statements and the related accounting policies,
the relevant financial information is discussed between the external auditor and the

management, and then submitted to the Audit Committee for review.
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External Auditors
During the year ended 31 December 2012, Emst & Young was appointed as the external
auditors of the Group. The remuneration paid/payable to the external auditor is set out as

follows:

Services rendered

FriR it iR %

Audit services ZH R
Interim review HiEE

Tax and other services Fiis R E At fR %

Internal Control
The Board has the ultimate responsibility to maintain an adequate system of internal

control and review its effectiveness.

The internal control system is designed to facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency
of operations, safeguard assets against unauthorised use and disposition, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records and the truth and fairness of the financial
statements, and ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulations. It provides
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss rather than

elimination of risks associated with business activities.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Audit Committee, as delegated by the Board,
has reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's internal controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management. It has also considered
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting and

financial reporting functions and their training programs and budgets.

In addition, the Internal Auditor of the Company conducts regular and independent
reviews of the effectiveness of the Group's internal control system. The Audit Committee
reviews the findings and opinion of the Internal Auditor on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control system and reports to the Board on such reviews.
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2/ ENEH
(F#&x)

1423
535
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2,132
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The Board also reviews annually the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the
Group and the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group's

accounting and financial reporting function, and their training programs and budget.

The Board is of the view that the system of internal controls in place for the year under
review and up to the date of issuance of this annual report is sound and is sufficient
to safeguard the interests of shareholders, customers and employees, and the Group's
assets. The resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group's accounting and

financial functions, and their training programs and budget are adequate.

Internal Audit

The Company has an independent internal audit team, which plays a major role in
monitoring the corporate governance of the Group and providing objective assurance
to the Board that a sound internal control system is maintained and operated by the
management. The head of the internal audit team directly reports to the Board and the
Audit Committee on audit matters. By adopting a risk-based approach to evaluate risk
level on control environment, the internal audit team makes their audit schedules annually
in consultation with, but independent of, the management, and the audit plan is submitted
to the Audit Committee for approval. On a quarterly basis, the head of the internal audit
team will present a report and express an opinion to the Audit Committee on the internal
control environment of the Group. The annual audit work plan covers major activities and
processes of the Group's operating business. Moreover, ad hoc reviews will be performed

on specific areas of concern identified by the Audit Committee and the management.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (“Model Code") set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct for securities transactions by the Directors. The Company had made specific
enquiry of all Directors regarding any non-compliance with the Model Code. All Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards as set out in the Model
Code for the year ended 31 December 2012.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications with all shareholders. The
Company encourages two-way communications with both its institutional and private
investors. Extensive information about the Company's activities is provided on its website
(www.gtja.com.hk) and in its interim report and this annual report which are sent to
shareholders of the Company. The annual general meeting provides a valuable forum
for direct communication between the Board and the Company's shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as Chairmen of the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration
Committees together with the external auditor are present to answer shareholders'
questions. The annual general meeting circulars are distributed to all shareholders at least
20 clear business days before the meeting. Separate resolutions are proposed at general
meetings on each separate issue and voting of which is taken by poll pursuant to the
Listing Rules. Any results of the poll are published on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange's website. All corporate communication with shareholders will be posted

on the Company's website (www.gtja.com.hk) for shareholders’ information.

The 2012 annual general meeting was held on 19 April 2012. The attendance record of

the Directors at the meeting is set out below:

Name of Director
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Attendance/Number of

general meetings

EsnA HE/ RRAERH
Dr. CHEN Geng (resigned on 24 August 2012) BRUBLT(R=F——FNA=THHEHT) 171
Dr. YIM Fung HEEL /1
Mr. YAO Wei (appointed on 24 August 2012) EFER_Z-——F \A+HAEZE) N/A £
Mr. LI Guangjie FRAKE /1
Mr. LI Sang, Edward FHEEE I/1
Mr. WONG Tung Ching FRERE 0/1
Dr. FU Tingmei BEXEL I/]
Dr. SONG Ming REEL /1
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung TIRBITE I/1
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the Company's Memorandum and Articles of Association
during the year 2012. A copy of the latest version of the Memorandum and Articles of
Association is posted on the websites of the Company (www.gtja.com.hk) and the Stock

Exchange.
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders

In accordance with section |13 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the laws of
Hong Kong), shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-twentieth of such of the paid-up capital of the Company which as at the date of
the deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company, may require
the directors of the Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM").
The shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary
of the Company at the registered address of the Company at 27/F,, Low Block, Grand
Millennium Plaza, 181 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong, specifying the shareholding
information of the shareholder, his/her contact details and the proposal regarding any

specified transaction/business and its supporting documents.

If the Directors of the Company do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene an EGM for a day not more than 28 days after
the date on which the notice convening the EGM is given, the shareholder(s) concerned,
or any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may themselves convene an EGM, provided that the EGM so convened shall not be held

after the expiration of 3 months from the said date.

The EGM convened by shareholders shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which general meetings are to be convened by the Directors of the

Company.
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Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings by Shareholders

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary
of the Company at the registered address of the Company 27/F., Low Block, Grand
Millennium Plaza, 181 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong, specifying the shareholding
information of the shareholder, his/her contact details and the proposal he/she intends
to put forward at general meeting regarding any specified transaction/business and its

supporting documents.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board of the
Company in writing through the Company Secretary at the registered address of the
Company at 27/F, Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 181 Queen's Road Central, Hong
Kong. The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholders’ enquiries and concerns
to the Board and/or relevant board committees of the Company, where appropriate, to

answer the shareholders’ questions.
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RESULTS AND OVERVIEW

Amid uncertain global economy, we are pleased to report to our shareholders that the
revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 was HK$786.6 million (201 I:
HK$700.7 million), representing an increase of 12.3% as compared to last year. Such
promising results were founded on the solid performance of the Group's core businesses.
While the dealing and broking business recorded a decrease in revenue of 16.6%, the rest
of the Group's core businesses, including corporate finance, asset management, loans and
financing and investment holding, achieved a solid growth in their revenues. As a result, the
profit attributable to the equity owners of the Company increased by 6.7% to HK$307.0
million (201 I: HK$287.7 million) for the year ended 31 December 2012.

The Board of the Company has proposed a payment of final dividend of HK$0.07 per
share for the year. Together with the interim dividend of 2012 of HK$0.03 per share,
dividends paid for 2012 amount to a total of HK$0.10 per share.

MARKET REVIEW

In the first half of 2012, global economy continued to be affected by the slow rebound
of US economy, the intensified sovereign debt crisis and distressed high level of
unemployment in some of the European countries. Investor confidence was adversely
affected and the global financial markets performed badly especially in the second quarter
of 2012. As the US Government and European Central Bank continued to procure
measures including Quantitative Easing and Outright Monetary Transactions in increasing
the money supply to stimulate economy, the investor confidence improved and the

financial markets saw significant rebound in the second half of 2012.

After experiencing rapid economic growth in the past two decades, China became the
world's second largest economy. In 2012, the growth of Chinese economy slowed down.
To maintain a healthy economic growth, the Chinese government introduced a number
of measures, including the decrease in the Required Reserve Ratio for banks and the base
interest rate of The People’s Bank of China from 21.0% to 20.0% and 6.56% to 6.0%
respectively. The China A share market performed poorly in most time of 2012. Shanghai
Composite Index slumped to below 2,000 for a three-year low during the vear. After

that, with encouraging policies of the Chinese government, the Shanghai Composite Index
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closed at 2,269 as at the end of 2012 (201 1: 2,199), 3.2% higher than that as at the end of
201 1. During 2012, the Chinese government introduced a number of policies to stimulate
the investment markets in China. Starting from the beginning of the year, the Chinese
Securities Regulatory Commission (“CSRC") speeded up the approval process for the
Qualified Foreign Institutional Investor program (“QFII") in order to bring in more foreign
investment in A share markets. In order to boost margin trading business, in August, China
launched a securities margin financing programme that would allow selected brokerage
houses to borrow money from the state-owned China Securities Finance Corporation
Limited and on-lend it to their clients for margin trading. In December, the solution for
resolving B share issue came into light. China International Marine Containers (Group)
Co, Ltd. (“"CIMC") became the first pilot company whose B shares were converted into
H shares and successfully listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange").

The Renminbi Qualified Foreign Institutional Investor (“RQFII") program did not only
promote the internationalization of RMB, but also consolidated the position of Hong
Kong to continually develop as an offshore clearing center for RMB. Subsequent to the
pilot program with an initial quota of RMB 20 billion, the RQFII quota has been further
increased by RMB50 billion in April 2012 to allow the issuance of RMB A-share ETF
products on the Stock Exchange for Hong Kong investors to own physical A-shares. The
deliverable RMB currency futures commenced trading in September 2012 as a tool for
RMB users to manage foreign exchange risk. With the operation of Dual Counter Model,

Chinese enterprises are encouraged to raise debt and equity capital in RMB in Hong Kong.

With a number of encouraging policies to boost economy growth in Hong Kong financial
markets, the Hang Seng Index closed at 22,657 at the end of 2012 (201 1: 18,434),
representing an increase of 22.9% compared to last year. The investors confidence,
however, was unavoidably affected by the global market sentiment, as a result, the average

daily market tumover in Hong Kong in 2012 decreased by 23% as compared to last year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2012, the Group was confronted with a lot of challenges, including the significant
downturn of the market turnover, strong competitions in brokerage business and the
sharp decrease in new listing business in Hong Kong. Facing such a difficult business
environment, the Group reacted aggressively in diversifying its businesses and achieved

solid growth in business revenue.

In July 2012, the Group had established the Global Markets Department, focusing on
the development of fixed income business. The department actively participated in debt
issuance business as well as secondary market trading and achieved promising resutt during

the year.

In order to diversify the financing business, the Group had participated in bridging
finance business. In April 2012, the Group had successfully provided finance to a Chinese

company for its privatization and delisting in the US market.

In December 2012, the Group had successfully assisted a China B-share listed company to
convert its B share into H share and list its H share in the Hong Kong market. It was the
landmark case for the Chinese securities industry and provided a solid solution in resolving

the argumentative B-share issue in China.

The Group's businesses can be classified into dealing and broking, corporate finance, asset
management, loans and financing and investment holding. The allocation of the revenue

from these businesses is listed in the following table.
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For the year ended 3| December

BEt-A=t-BLEE

2012 2011
—E-Cf —2——F

HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TER % THT %

Fee and commission income WERES WA
— dealing and broking —EERBEES 264,533 336 317334 453
— corporate finance —ERE 156,988 20.0 136619 19.5
— asset management -BEER 31,387 4.0 23311 33
Interest income from loans and financing ERRBERNSHRA 276,149 35.1 214,793 30.7
Gain from investment holding REEB M 57,513 7.3 8,672 12
Total revenue el g 786,570 100 700,729 100
l+%gl@?hﬁ@ﬂa 29
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Dealing and broking

Facing the significantly decrease in market turnover and the keen competition from a
number of securities houses and banks, the revenue generated from dealing and broking
business was HK$264.5 million (201 I: HK$317.3 million) for the year ended 31 December
2012, representing a decrease of 16.6% as compared to last year. A breakdown of the

income has been set out below:

EERBLEFN

HHEMERIBEMAEBTRERETESFAF
RBRITHHNBETF BEZT—Z—F+=A
=T—HILFE  BEERELEBEENNEG
BlaSHBEETL(ZE——F 31735 EE
L) BE—FE TR 166% BEAKANDT

ERTX -
For the year ended 3| December

BE+T-A=t-BLHFE

2012 2011
—F-=F T F
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
T % TET %
Securities EH 187,398 70.8 234,523 739
Futures HE 51,619 19.5 53,485 169
Leverage foreign exchange TEIINE 1,072 0.4 856 02
Handling income FEE 24,444 9.3 28,470 9.0
264,533 100 317334 100
With the launch of online trading platform for our customers since 2001, our online BB S FERARPREHEPLISTSE
trading platform currently supports 9 international securities markets including Hong Kong, A ZTABRYEIEERBEAMSE B

United States, Japan, London, Canada, Singapore, Taiwan, Shanghai B shares and Shenzhen
B shares. Our securities dealing and broking business also covers securities markets in

Malaysia, Korea and Australia and global fixed income market.
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With solid foundation in China, 90% of our clients are from China. In order to grow our
dealing and broking business, we offered promotion schemes and successfully recruited

more than 6,100 new clients for the year ended 31 December 2012.

As the global economy continued to undermine investor confidence, the average daily
tumover for securities trading in Hong Kong decreased by 23% for the year ended 31
December 2012. Our commission income from securities dealing and broking decreased
by 20.1% to HK$187.4 million (201 I: HK$234.5 million) for the year ended 31 December
2012,

Our online trading platform also supports 22 global futures markets, 8 major currency
pairs including CNH and up to 21 cross currency pairs in leveraged foreign exchange
trading. To promote our global futures and leveraged foreign exchange business, investor
conferences had been organized. For the year ended 31 December 2012, the income
from futures transactions decreased by 3.5% to HK$51.6 million (201 1: HK$53.5 million),
of which 89% was derived from global futures transactions. The income from leverage
foreign exchange transactions was HK$ 1.1 million (201 1: HK$0.9 million), an increase of

25.2% as compared to 201 1.

Because of poor market sentiments, the corporate action activities and stock lending
activities decreased in 2012, the handling fee income decreased by 14.1% to HK$24.4
million (201 1: HK$28.5 million) for the year ended 31 December 2012.
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Corporate finance

Economic uncertainties discouraged equity financing and other related corporate finance
activities during 2012, Taking advantage of the low funding cost environment, corporate
clients preferred debt financing for medium to long term development. With this business
opportunity, the Group set up a Global Markets Department in July 2012 for the provision
of services in relation to debt issuance as well as to facilitate secondary market trading for
fixed income products. A breakdown of the income for corporate finance business has

been set out below:

tEBE
“T-CF BETHAREHRARERE
RECERERBEKITE - CXEPER
RERTNRED  FHNBEEREERSD
RHER - BEZEBHRE ASERC
—ZF L ARIRIRTS %'ﬁﬁﬁ%%%?
THRBRREETREER_RTHEE -
ﬁ%m%ﬂﬁ%%%k%nﬁﬁ%TX=

For the year ended 3| December

BE+T-A=t-BLHFE

2012 2011
—E-—-F —T——F
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TR % TRT %
Placing, underwriting and & BEkyBHENAS
sub-underwriting commission
— debt capital markets —BBERTS 15,878 10.1 — —
— equity capital markets -REEXRTS 71,447 45.5 99,589 729
Consultancy and financial advisory fee ERRAERNE 69,663 444 37,030 27.1
156,988 100 136619 100

The momentum for listing of Chinese enterprises in Hong Kong slowed down sharply
in 2012. There were 64 new listings on the Stock Exchange (2011: 101 new listings),
including those transferred from their listing on the GEM Board to the Main Board, a
36.6% decrease as compared to 201 1. Due to the effort of our staff, we have completed
sponsorship for the listing of 9 companies for the year ended 31 December 2012,
including the landmark case for the conversion of the B share into H share and the listing
of H share on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. We have been also engaged as
compliance advisor for 46 newly listed companies and financial advisor for 13 projects.
As a result, the income from consuftancy and financial advisory fee increased significantly

by 88.1% to HK$69.7 million (2011: HK$37.0 million) for the year ended 3| December
2012,
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As a result of the significant decrease in the number of new listings in 2012, the total funds
raised through initial public offering (“IPO™) at the Stock Exchange dropped significantly
by 65.4% to HK$89.8 billion (201 I: HK$259.8 billion) for the year ended 31 December
2012. During the year, we have been appointed as book-runner for 10 IPO transactions
and lead manager for 3 IPO transactions. The commission from equity capital market
decreased by 28.3% to HK$71.4 million (201 I: HK$99.6 million) for the year ended 3|
December 2012.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group has acted as lead manager for
issuance of RMB bonds for 2 listed companies, which contributed HK$15.9 million (201 I

nil) commission income for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Asset management

We derived our fee income primarily from management fee and performance fee, which
are linked to the asset under management and the retums of the funds, respectively. In
2012, we have successfully launched two authorized funds in Hong Kong, Guotai Junan
Great Dragon China Fixed Income Fund (a RMB denominated RQFII fund) and Guotai
Junan Equity Income Fund. The management fee income decreased by 3.3% to HK$18.9
million (201 1: HK$19.5 million) while the performance fee income increased by 229.2% to
HKS$12.5 million (2011: HK$3.8 million) for the year ended 31 December 2012.
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Loans and financing
The income from our loans and financing business increased by 28.6% to HK$276.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2012 (201 1: HK$214.8 million). A summary of

interest income is set out below:

EBFRBE

BE_Z—_—F+-_A=+—HLEEE %
I8 &R R & 5 1 A R ) AL 10 28.6%
6 BERATL(ZE——F: 20488 8%
7T) o MBIMABZEHIRTX :

For the year ended 3| December

BEt-A=t-BLEE

2012 2011
—E-C& —T——F
HK$000 % HK$'000 %
TEx % TET %
Margin loans FREX 182,866 66.2 152,204 709
Term loans EHEX 22,860 83 3,484 16
IPO loans BRAARAZEER 97 — 650 03
Banks and others BITREAM 64,506 234 52,635 245
Held-to-maturity investments BEIERE 5,820 2.1 5,820 2.7
276,149 100 214793 100

The Group has invested significant resources in expanding our loans and financing
activities since the listing of the Company on the Stock Exchange in July 2010. During
2012, the average margin loan balance increased by 13.4% to HK$2,425.8 million (201 I:
HK$2,139.9 million) and the interest income from margin loans increased by 20.1% to
HK$182.9 million (201 1: HK$152.2 million). The average interest rate charged to our
client also increased to reflect the current risk level. At the same time, we continued to
adopt an aggressive while stable operation strategy on margin loan financing business. For
the year ended 31 December 2012, the impairment loss for margin loans business was

HK$540,000 (201 I: HK$139,000).
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With the US listed Chinese enterprises became no longer popular in United States, a
number of these enterprises are looking for changing the listing location from United
States to Hong Kong or China. Taking this opportunity, the Group has provided a bridging
loan to a US listed Chinese enterprise for its privatization in United States. The interest
income from term loans increased by 556.1% to HK$22.9 million (201 I: HK$3.5 million)
for the year ended 3| December 2012.

The interest income from banks and others also increased by 22.6% to HK$64.5 million
(20111 HK$52.6 million) for the year ended 31 December 2012, reflecting the tight
liquidity in the market.

Investment holding
The income from our investment holding business increased by 563.2% to HK$57.5
million (201 1: HK$8.7 million) for the year ended 31 December 2012. A summary of

income is set out below:
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For the year ended 3| December

BE+-A=t-BLHFE

2012 2011
=% —T——F
HK$000 % HK$'000 %
TET % TR %
Net loss on financial assets held for trading HEEESREENBRTE (9,631) -16.8 (31,168) -3594
Net gain on financial assets designated at BERATHEF AR
fair value through profit and loss HeREERRFE 57,479 100.0 33266 3836
Dividend income from listed financial HIEEBELMERMEE
assets held for trading fIAR SUA 3,228 5.6 4,885 56.3
Interest income from unlisted debt securities 3 _F AR EH RIETE
and financial assets designated at AFEFABRNSH
fair value through profit or loss BEMNFSHA 6,437 1.2 1,689 19.5
57,513 100 8,672 100
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The Group's investments can be basically classified into 3 categories: listed equity
investments, debt investments and a convertible bond in relation to the direct investment

in a private company.

During the year, the Group incurred loss on listed equity investments held for trading of
HK$14.9 million (2011: HK$31.2 million) and gain on debt investments held for trading of
HK$5.3 million (201 1: nil). As a result, the net loss on financial assets held for trading was
HK$9.6 million (201 I: HK$31.2 million) for the year ended 31 December 2012.

To diversify revenue stream and to secure sponsorship and underwriting opportunities,
the Group has engaged in direct investment in private companies. As at 31 December
2012, we had an unlisted direct investment project in the form of convertible bond at the
fair value of HK$118.2 million. The net gain on the financial asset designated at fair value
through profit and loss was HK$57.5 million (201 |: HK$33.3 million) for the year ended
31 December 2012.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, we received dividend income of HK$3.2 million
(201 1: HK$4.9 million) from listed securities and interest income of HK$6.4 million (201 1:
HK$ 1.7 million) from unlisted debt securities and financial assets designated at fair value

through profit or loss respectively.
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RESULTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
The Group's total assets increased by 14.9% to HK$11,486.7 million (201 I: HK$10,001.5
million) as at 31 December 2012.

The Group's total liabilities as at 31 December 2012 increased by 19.5% to HK$8,087.0
million (201 I: HK$6,769.4 million).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2012, the net current assets of the Group increased by 10.7% to
HK$2,869.5 million (201 1: HK$2,592.9 million). The Group's current ratio was at 1.36
times as at 31 December 2012 (201 1: 1.38 times).

The Group had a cash outflow of HK$277.3 million (201 I: cash inflow of HK$220.2
million) for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the Group's bank balances was
HK$384.6 million as at 31 December 2012 (201 1: HK$661.9 million). As at 31 December
2012, the Group had outstanding bank borrowings of HK$739.8 million (201 I: HK$200
million) through bilateral banking facilities with various banks. During the year, the Group
has successfully launched a Medium Term Note Programme (the “MTN Programme”)
under which listed or unlisted notes may be issued. We have issued four series of the
notes during the year and the notes outstanding as at 31 December 2012 was of HK$86
million (201 1: nil). The gearing ratio (defined as bank borrowings and debt securities
in issue to equity attributable to owners of the parent) was 0.24 as at 31 December
2012 (2011: 0.06). Taking into account of the huge unutilized banking facilities from
Hong Kong authorized financial institutions and the significant un-issued portion of the
MTN Programme, we believe our operating cash flow remains adequate to finance our
recurrent working capital requirements as well as any investment opportunities that may

arise in the near future.
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The Group monitors its capital structure in order to ensure the compliance of the capital
requirements under the Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (Cap. 571N)
for its licensed subsidiaries and to support the development of new business. All licensed
corporations within the Group complied with their respective liquid capital requirements

during the year and up to the date of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company has also successfully completed
one equity fund raising activity. On 20 December 2012, the Company, Guotai Junan
Holdings Limited (the “Vendor”), a substantial shareholder, and Guotai Junan Securities
(Hong Kong) Limited (the “Placing Agent”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a placing and subscription agreement, pursuant to which the Vendor
conditionally agreed to (i) place through the Placing Agent on a best effort basis, up
to 85,000,000 placing shares at the placing price of HK$2.20 per placing share; and
(i) subscribe for such number of subscription shares equal to the number of placing
shares which were placed by the Placing Agent at the subscription price of HK$2.20
per subscription share. The placing was completed on 28 December 2012. A total of
85,000,000 placing shares beneficially owned by the Vendor were placed to National
Social Security Fund Overseas Investment Portfolio and Bosera Asset Management
(International) Company Limited at HK$2.20 per placing share. All conditions of
subscription had been fulfilled and completion of subscription took place on 3 January
2013 whereby 85,000,000 subscription shares were allotted and issued to the Vendor at
HK$2.20 per subscription share. The net proceeds of the subscription of approximately
HK$186.8 million have been applied towards the general working capital of the Group.

Other than the information disclosed above, there were no other equity or debt

instruments issued by the Company during the year ended 31 December 2012.
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OUTLOOKS AND FUTURE PLANS

2013 will be a challenging year for our business. While the global economy is picking
up slowly, there are many factors causing uncertainties to recovery. The European
crisis remains unsolved and the slowdown of Chinese economic growth is anticipated.
However, we are still optimistic in our business as there are many business opportunities

in front of us.

Starting from the end of 2012, there were a number of new developments in the Chinese
securities industry which brings light to business opportunities in the Hong Kong securities
industry. First came in December 2012 a landmark case in the Chinese securities industry
in which we acted as sponsor for a Chinese company converting its B shares into H
shares and listed on the Stock Exchange. This is a viable solution in China to resolve its
augmentative B share issues. Also in December 2012, the CSRC announced the relaxation
of rules for companies looking for listing in Hong Kong. We are expecting the IPO markets
in Hong Kong will revitalize. Recently, the senior officials of CSRC also commented on
the expansion of QFIl, RQFIl and the possibility of the introduction of Qualified Domestic
Individual Investor scheme (“QDII2"). We strongly believe that all these policies will

benefit us in different perspectives.

Located in an international finance centre, the Stock Exchange has become one of the
preferred listing and fund raising venues for overseas and Chinese enterprises. The
relaxation of rules in China for companies seeking offshore listing will definitely revitalize
the Hong Kong IPO markets. As such, we will continue to put into more efforts to solicit
and to collaborate with our parent company Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited
(“Guotai Junan”) to pursue more corporate finance advisory and fund raising opportunities
from Chinese enterprises. Taking the advantage of the success of sponsoring the first
landmark case of conversion of B share into H Share of a Chinese company, we expect
more opportunities in similar assignments. We commit to strive for realizing all these

business opportunities.

With the newly established Global Markets Department, we commit to develop debt
issuance business for our corporate clients. We will continue to put resources into this
business and provide our clients with comprehensive solutions in meeting their capital

needs.
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We are expecting the demand for margin and other financing remain strong in 201 3.
The launch of online margin financing and securities lending not only broaden customers'
investment and trading strategies, but also facilitate more business transactions and
opportunities. In addition, we continue to broaden the scope of our loans and financing
business. Following the success of financing a privatization project of a US listed Chinese
enterprise in 2012, we will continue to strengthen our innovative business mind in
diversifying our lending business. To facilitate the growth of the lending business, in
addition to the committed banking facilities from the authorized financial institutions, we
launched the MTN Programme in June 2012 to ensure adequate resources being available

for the expanding loans and financing business.

For dealing and broking business, we continue to improve the online trading platform and
to provide value-added services to our clients to invest globally. We will expand the types
of investment products available to our clients, including but not limited to insurance and
wealth management products, so as to perfect our one-stop solution to clients. Facing the
possibility of the expansion of QFIl, RQFII and QDII2, we will equip ourselves and be well

prepared for the opportunities to come.

Capitalizing on the launch of the two authorized funds in 2012, namely, Guotai Junan
Great Dragon China Fixed Income Fund (RQFII fund) and Guotai Junan Equity Income
Fund, extensive sales network has been developed for international institutional clients as
well as retail investors. We will continue to work with our parent company Guotai Junan
and other experienced market participants to provide asset management services for

institutional and individual investors in China, Hong Kong and other places in the region.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS
The Group did not make any material acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries and
associated companies for the year ended 3| December 2012. As at 3| December 2012,

the Group did not hold any significant investments.
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CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS
No asset of the Group was subject to any charge as at 3| December 2011 and 2012

respectively.

GUARANTEE AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has undertaken underwriting obligation to capture placing and IPO activities.
The Board has resolved to ensure that the Group has adequate working capital to meet
such obligations. As at 31 December 2012, there was no underwriting obligation (201 I:
HK$388.3 million).

As at 31 December 2012, the Company had provided guarantees in favor of an
authorized financial institution in respect of bank borrowings of a wholly owned subsidiary
engaged in margin financing amounting to approximately HK$530 million (201 1: HK$530
million). As at 31 December 2012, the Company provided guarantees up to US$30
million equivalent to approximately HK$232.6 million in favor of a financial institution in
respect of the trading limit granted to a wholly-owned subsidiary principally engaged in the

provision of securities dealing and broking services.

As at 31 December 201 |, the Company had also provided guarantees in favor of financial
institutions in respect of trading limit of a wholly owned subsidiary principally engaged in
futures dealing and broking services amounting to approximately HK$155.5 million, the

guarantees were released during the year of 2012.

The Group had no other material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 201 | and 2012.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT AND CAPITAL COMMITMENT

There was no operating lease commitment as at 3| December 2011 and 2012. The
capital commitments were approximately HK$2,103,000 (201 I: HK$570,000) respectively
as at 31 December 2012,
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2012, we had 228 employees in total (excluding our account
executives). Competitive remuneration packages are offered to employees by reference
to prevailing market rate and individual merits. Salaries are reviewed on annual basis and
discretionary bonus is paid on annual basis with reference to the Group's performance
and individual performance. Share options and shares award have been granted to the
directors and employees in recognition and acknowledgement of their contribution made
or to be made to the Group. Other benefits offered by the Group include mandatory

provident fund scheme and medical and dental insurance.

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group adopted stringent risk management policies and monitoring systems to control
risk exposure associated with credit, liquidity, market, foreign exchange and [T system in all

its major operations.
Credit Risk

Loans and financing activities:

The Board delegates to the Credit Committee the duties to monitor the credit risk of
the Group. Members of the Credit Committee include, inter alia, the Chief Executive
Officer, the Responsible Officers and the Chief Financial Officer. The Credit Committee
has appointed a group of authorized persons to take charge in approving credit limit and
margin limit of each client. The Credit and Risk Management Department is responsible
for making settlement calls when the trades of margin clients exceed their respective limits.

Any such excess is required to be made good according to the deficiency report. The
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deficiency report will be daily monitored by the Credit and Risk Management Department. HASECEENEREEDMER - REHA

Failure to meet margin calls may result in the liquidation of the client’s positions. WEFPBREE

The Credit Committee is also responsible for approval of stocks acceptable as margin FEZES A A ENERERFREMRN

collateral and the margin-lending ratio. The list of approved margin collateral stocks will be B RFRERLE - BRANFRERRD

reviewed and revised by the Credit Committee when necessary. LERMEE E\@ BMURERRERER
G -HIE
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The Group also grants term loans to customers that may contain an element of credit risk.
The Group minimizes such risk exposure by performing detailed credit analysis of potential
loan investment, and dedicated professionals are assigned to oversee and monitor the
performance of the loan investment. These key investment decisions are also subject to

approval by the Board.

Loans and advances to customers also include IPO loans for subscription of new shares
which are normally settled within one week from the draw-down date. Forced liquidation
action would be taken if the customers fail to settle their shortfall within specific period of

tolerance after IPO allotment result announced.

For debt securities, external credit rating such as Standard & Poor's and Moody's rating or
their equivalents are used by the Credit and Risk Management Department for managing
of the credit risk exposures as supplemented by the Group's own assessment through the

use of internal ratings tools.

For the Group's bank balances which we beneficially own, they are deposited in
respectable large commercial banks. For the client trust bank balances which are held in

segregated accounts, they are deposited in authorized financial institutions in Hong Kong.

Dealing and broking

Accounts receivable from clients represents receivables from clients arising from dealing
in securities, which normally had a delivery-against payment settlement term of 2 to 3
days. The Group allows a credit up to the settlement dates of the respective securities
transactions (normally within T+2 or T+3 days). All application for the credit limit must
be reviewed by Credit Manager and approved by any member of the Credit Committee.
Credit and Risk Management Department determines whether forced liquidation action
is to be taken against clients with overdue balances on case-by-case basis. The overdue

report is regularly reviewed by the Credit Committee.

The Group only accepts margin deposit in the form of cash for futures and leveraged
foreign exchange trading. No transaction is allowed to be executed if the current position
of the customer exceeds its trading limit. The margin deposit placed and the aggregate
of the required margin deposit of each futures and leveraged foreign exchange contract
is timely monitored by the Credit and Risk Management Department. Margin call will
be executed if there is a deficit in the margin deposit. Forced liquidation of the client's

position will be executed if the customer fails to meet margin calls.
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Accounts receivable from brokers and dealers are placed with large financial institutions
which are governed by regulators including the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (the
“HKMA") and Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC").

Accounts receivable from the Stock Exchange and other clearing-houses and other assets
which are mainly deposits placed with the regulators are considered to have minimal

credit risk.

Asset management and corporate finance
Accounts receivable arising from asset management and corporate finance services are
trade counterparties with sound credit rating and/or reputation. The credit risk with these

trade counterparties are considered to be manageable.

Impairment and provisioning policies

The Group's credit and risk management policy requires the review of individual
outstanding amount at least monthly or more regularly depending on individual
circumstances or market condition. Impairment allowances on individually assessed
accounts are determined by an evaluation of the incurred loss at balance sheet date on
a case-by-case basis, and are applied to all individual accounts. The assessment normally
encompasses collateral held and the anticipated receipts for that individual account.
Generally, impairment allowances will be recognised when clients failed to meet margin
call requirements and clients’ collateral are insufficient to cover their outstanding loan

balances.

Liquidity Risk

The Group's operating units are subject to various statutory liquidity requirements as
prescribed by the regulators. The Group has put in place monitoring system to ensure
that it maintains adequate liquid capital to fund its financial obligations and to comply
with the relevant Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (Cap.57IN). As a
safeguard, the Group has maintained stand-by banking facilities to meet any contingency in

its operations.

Even in periods of high market volatility, the Board believes that the Group's working

capital is adequate to meet its financial obligations.
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Market Risk
The asset quality of our margin client's collateral will deteriorate when the market comes
down drastically. The Group's exposure to underwriting commitments will be also affected

at times of volatile market.

The Group has established policies and procedures for monitoring and controlling
the market risk arising in the ordinary and usual course of business. Stress tests will be

performed when necessary.

The Group also has listed equity investments and unlisted investments that are subject
to the market risk. The Group minimizes such risk exposure by performing detailed due
diligence analysis of potential investments, and dedicated professionals are assigned to
oversee and monitor the performance of the investment. These key investment decisions

are also subject to approval by the Board.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group's principal operations are transacted and recorded in Hong Kong dollars and
U.S. dollars and the level of foreign currency exposure is relatively minimal compared to its
total asset and liabilities. Foreign exchange risk is managed and monitored by our Finance
Department. For the leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking, stringent control
over the position has been adopted, hence, we consider that our foreign exchange risk

exposure is minimal.

Operational Risk

Systems are installed to monitor availability and performance of various IT systems and
a team will act and report to the senior management in accordance with the established
procedures in the event of disruption, instability and other situations which may warrant

to trigger the contingency procedure to protect interest of clients.

The Group maintains and updates the operation manuals of its major operations on an
on-going basis in accordance to the regulatory and industrial requirement. We have also
put in place competent compliance and internal audit functions with their respective aims
at detecting control points risks and recommending policy changes as well as carrying out

checks on statutory compliance and the intemal rules and regulations.
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Executive Directors

YIM Fung (EJI&), aged 49, is the chairman and the chief executive officer of our Group.
Dr. Yim joined Guotai Junan in 1993 and joined our Group in 2000 and is responsible for
the overall business management of our Group. Dr. Yim has over 2| years' experience in
the securities industry. Dr. Yim is a senior economist and holds a doctorate in Economics
from the Graduate School of the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences (Bt & |22
BriftZEA£P) and a bachelor degree in Environmental Engineering from the Tsinghua
University (JBZEAZ). Dr. Yim is also a director of Guotai Junan Holdings Limited and
Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited which are the controlling shareholders of the

Company.

YAO Wei, aged 35, is the vice chairman and the deputy chief executive officer of our
Group. He joined Guotai Junan in 2001 as a research analyst and was later promoted
to chief Analyst (Deputy Head of Research). From 2008 to 2011, he was the General
Manager in the Sales and Trading Department of Guotai Junan and responsible for serving
the institutional clients and was also in charge of the Research Department. Since April
2011, he was the Head of Research Department of Guotai Junan. Mr. Yao was awarded
the “Best Analyst” by “New Fortune (¥T81&)" consecutively for 5 years. In 2011, he was
awarded the “Outstanding Research Leader ({5 Hi#175<84H)" and appointed a member
of the Professional Securities Analysis and Investment Consuttancy Committee (&% 72T
B BERBEMEEZEE) of the Securities Association of China (FEIEHEHE). Mr.
Yao has over || years of experience in the securities industry. He holds a bachelor and
a master degree in engineering from the Tsinghua University (&2 KZ2) (1994-2001).
Mr. Yao is also a director of Guotai Junan Holdings Limited and Guotai Junan Financial

Holdings Limited which are the controlling shareholders of the Company.
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Ll Guangjie (FYER), aged 44, is an executive director and the head of the sales house
team of our Group. Mr. Li joined our Group in November 2001 and is responsible for the
supervision and management of the Group's sales team. He has over 2| years' experience
in accounting, audit, taxation and asset appraisal. Mr. Li started his career at Shenzhen
Jinpeng Certified Public Accountants (Y BEEETANEFT) as the deputy head of
appraisal department. Mr. Li was the finance director from 2001 to 2008. Mr. Li holds a
bachelor degree in Economics from the Shenzhen University (ZYIIK22) and a master
degree in Economics from the Central University of Finance and Economics (7 4 B 4%
AE). He is also an economist and a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (P BIFHE 5 BT E) and a member of the Chinese Certified Tax Agents
Association (P EIFE M AN 7 E).

LI Sang Edward (Z4), aged 49, is an executive director and the head of legal and
compliance of our Group. Mr. Li joined our Group in May 2007 and is responsible for
the legal, compliance and company secretarial matters of our Group. Mr. Li has over 20
years' of experience in legal and financial services. He holds a master degree of Laws
in Corporate and Financial Law from the University of Hong Kong, a master degree in
Corporate Finance from the Hong Kong Polytechnics University and a bachelor degree
in Law from the University of London. Mr. Li admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong and

England and Wales in 1995.

WONG Tung Ching (E%5), aged 41, is an executive director and the head of the
corporate finance and equity capital markets divisions of our Group. Mr. Wong joined
our Group in October 2000 and is responsible for the overall business and marketing
matters of corporate finance and equity capital markets business of our Group. Mr. Wong
obtained a master degree in Business Administration from the University of Lincolnshire
& Humberside (now known as the University of Lincoln) in 2001 and a higher diploma in

International Trading from the Shenzhen University (RIIAER) in 1992,
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

FU Tingmei (f8#£3€), aged 46, is an independent non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Fu was appointed a Director on |9 June 2010. Mr. Fu has extensive
experiences in investment, finance, law and business management. Between 1992 and
2003, he conducted many corporate finance transactions in several investment banking
firms based in Hong Kong, including serving as a director of Peregrine Capital Limited,
and a deputy managing director and subsequently a managing director of BNP Paribas
Peregrine Capital Limited. Mr. Fu is currently engaged in private investment business. He
is currently also an independent non-executive director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings
Limited (stock code: 392) and CPMC Holdings Limited (stock code: 906), both listed
on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Fu graduated from the University of London with a master's

degree and a doctorate degree in Law in 1989 and 1993, respectively.

SONG Ming (R#), aged 51, is an independent non-executive director. Dr. Song has over
21 years' experience in research of bank regulation and management, financial market,
derivatives and macroeconomics. Between 1991 and 1997, Dr. Song was the Associate
Professor (tenured) and Assistant Professor at Department of Economics, Cleveland State
University. Dr. Song is the director of Centre for China Financial Research (CCFR) at the
University of Hong Kong since 2001 and the Professor and Associate Professor (tenured)
at Faculty of Business and Economics of the University of Hong Kong since 1997. Dr. Song
holds a doctorate degree in Economics from Ohio State University, a master degree of
Science in Mathematics from Huazhong University of Science and Technology (2= 9 H
RZ) and a bachelor degree of Science in Mathematics from Zhejiang University (47/1
AE), Dr. Song was awarded as the top 500 economists around the world according to
2002 Thomson's ranking. Dr. Song also serves on the editorial boards of several financial
research journals such as China Financial Research and Financial Economics Journal. Dr.
Song is appointed as an independent non-executive director of the United Laboratories

International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 3933) since May 2007.
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TSANG Yiu Keung (2123%), aged 59, is an independent non-executive director. Mr.
Tsang is a professional accountant and a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Mr. Tsang was with KPMG for
more than 28 years, where he was a senior banking partner until he retired from the firm
in 2003. Mr. Tsang is an independent non-executive director and the chairman of the
audit committee of L. K. Technology Holdings Limited (Stock code: 558), a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, and CITIC Bank International Limited, a licensed bank in Hong
Kong and CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited. Mr. Tsang holds a higher diploma

in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic.
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Report of the Directors
TR

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group") for the year ended 3| December
2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in securities, futures and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking, loans

and financing activities, corporate finance, asset management and investment holding.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 74 of this annual report.

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$0.03 per share and proposed the
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.07 per share to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the company on 16 May 2013. The dividend will be
payable on or about 4 June 2013.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Detailed segment information in respect of the Group's revenue and segment results are

shown in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements on pages | 19 to 122.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the
Group for the last five financial years ended 31 December 2012 is set out on pages 8 of

this annual report.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year
are set out in note || to the financial statements which is set out on page 130 of this

annual report.
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PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company's subsidiaries are set out in the note 22 to the financial statements

which is set out on pages 148 to 150 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set out in

note 28 to the financial statements which is set out on page |54 of this annual report.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are
set out in the section of “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity” and note 31 in
the financial statements on pages 163 to 165 of this annual report. As at 31 December
2012, the Company's reserves available for distribution, calculated in accordance with the
provisions of Section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.32), amounted
to HK$125,289,000 of which HK$ 113,882,000 has been proposed as final dividend for the

year.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations amounting to
HK$ 184,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 3| December 2012, the revenue attributable to the five largest
customers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the Group's total revenue. The
Group is a provider of financial services. In the opinion of the Board, it is therefore of no

value to disclose details of the Group's suppliers.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the issuer's share capital) had any

beneficial interest in the Group's 5 largest customers.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company's listed securities for the year ended 31 December 2012 other than as an

agent for the trustee of Guotai Junan Share Award Scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. YIM Fung

Mr. YAO Wei (appointed on 24 August 2012)
Mr. LI Guangjie

Mr. LI Sang, Edward

Mr. WONG Tung Ching

Non-executive Director

Dr. CHEN Geng (resigned on 24 August 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. FU Tingmei

Dr. SONG Ming

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director has a service contract with the Company which is for a duration that may
exceed 3 years or which requires the Company to, in order to terminate such contract,
give a notice period of more than | year or pay compensation or make other payments

equivalent to more than | year's emolument.

Details of Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial

statements which is set out on pages 168 to |71 of this annual report.
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In accordance with Article 95 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. YAO
Wei was appointed as a Director on 24 August 2012 to fill a causal vacancy arising from
the resignation of Dr. CHEN Geng. Mr. YAO Wai shall hold office until the next Annual

General Meeting, and being eligible, would offer himself for re-election.

In accordance with Article 104 of the Articles of Association of the Company, every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. At each
Annual General Meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to one-third, shall retire
from office and be eligible for re-selection. Accordingly, Dr. SONG Ming, Mr. TSANG Yiu
Keung and Mr. WONG Tung Ching shall retire by rotation. They will offer themselves for

re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Dr. FU Tingmei,
Dr. SONG Ming and Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung and as at the date of this annual report, still
considers them to be independent. Generally, the term of office for each independent
non-executive Director is for a period of 3 years, and all of the 3 independent non-
executive Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the

Company's Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries

was a party during the year ended 31 December 2012.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTEREST IN THE SHARES

AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY

ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the Directors or their
associates in the share capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") which have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
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XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to MeRNT BB SBEES LS EM
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange FEIIEETEELRZIEM &2 MW - 5
pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of RIBHMTHRES FTH HIJ(H: MR B ) fisE+
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules") were as follows: FrEEETRR TN RN REIHNT :
Long position in the ordinary shares and underlying shares of the Company RNEAAREEREEEROVNER
Approximate
Number of percentage
underlying of the
shares held Company’s
under equity total issued
Number derivatives share capital
of share BRASTE RN
award held IAT BRI
Name of director Long/short positions iR 43 PRt Total BRA A
= R/ XA RBMHE ROWHKE ROBEH HMOEIL
YIM Fung Long 2,718,000 6,000,000 8,718,000 0.53%
i E8
WONG Tung Ching Long 526,000 3,000,000 3,526,000 0.22%
B =9:)
LI Guangjie Long 120,000 1,500,000 1,620,000 0.10%
AN =3}
LI Sang, Edward Long 120,000 1,500,000 1,620,000 0.10%
4 KA
FU Tingmei Long — 500,000 500,000 0.03%
(EREES =9:)
SONG Ming Long — 500,000 500,000 0.03%
R =3}
TSANG Yiu Keung Long — 500,000 500,000 0.03%
LR KA
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Long position in the ordinary shares of an associated corporation REBEZENEBERNRR
Name of Percentage of
associated Number of issued shares
Name of director Long/short positions  corporations Nature of interest shares 1HE BTRH
EEng R/RR EEEE AR BEnE REHE BO
YIM Fung (Note) Long Guotai Junan Fund Interest of a 2,010,000 20.1%
R () KA Management Limited  controlled corporation

BRELETERE

BRAF
Note: Dr. YIM Fung, Chairman, executive director and chief executive officer, holds 92% equity
interests in Best New Management Limited, is deemed to have an interest in the 20.1%

equity interest held by Best New Management Limited in Guotai Junan Fund Management

Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations which had
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein or which were required, pursuant to the Model

Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHARED-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEME

The Company operates two equity-settled share-based compensation schemes including
a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme™) and a share award scheme (the
“Share Award Scheme") for the purpose of assisting in recruiting, retaining and motivating
key staff members. Eligible participants of the schemes include the Company's directors

(including independent non-executive directors) and other employees of the Group.
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Share Option Scheme
The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on |9 June 2010 which shall be valid

and effective for a period of |0 years from that date.

On 10 June 2011, 40,000,000 share options have been granted to the Directors and

employees with the exercise price of HK$4.30 per share.

On 24 April 2012, the Board resolved to cancel the outstanding share options and
granted new options to the same grantees with the exercise price of HK$2.50 per share.
Among the share options granted, a total of 13,500,000 share options were granted to
the directors of the Company. The closing price of the Company's share prior to the date
of the grant of the share options was HK$2.50. The option period of the share options is
from 24 April 2012 to 9 June 2021. One-third of the share options granted were vested
on 10 June 2012. The outstanding two-third of the share options granted will be vested
on 10 June 2013 and 10 June 2014 respectively.

During the year, 333,333 share options were forfeited and 666,667 share options were

lapsed prior to the vesting dates, as a result of staff resignation.

YO
AAAR=E -4 A AR ROBRE
B BB AR IR 07 -

RZZE——FX A+ B 4000000017 & & &
ERTESNESR  TEE/BR430ET

RZE——FHAZ+TNA  EELHRTH
MARITENBERERE TR -HARAFE
Wi (THEBAERL0BT - REREER
B A5 13500000 BRER TAARE
£ BRESLBHIADARMHKEESR
2508 c BRENBRHE-T—-FNA
“HMARE-Z-—FRANBLEZHZ
—HERLERECR -_E——F AtER
B-EB=D7-_NEREBRESSRIN=
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Movements of the share options under the Share Option Scheme for the year ended 3|

December 2012 are as follows:

Report of the Directors
HHE RS

HE_T-—H+_A=t-RLFERRE
AERERLABEEOZHNT -

Share price
immediately

Options held at preceding  Share price

Options held Options Options 31 December thegrant  immediately

at | January cancelled granted 2012 Exercise price date preceding

012 during during Forfeited Lpsed W=B-=F of share options (HKS)  the exercise

R-EB-ZF the year the year during during tZA Date of (HKS)  BEEH date

-R-AKE  EREE  FAEY the year theyer  =1-A Gant BRETEE AHANRE ZBOFEAHY

Name of particpants SRENE MERE  NERE @ OBRE  FARK FRXN HENRRE KA (&%) (B7)  HNRE

Directors ES

YIM Fung B 6000000 (6000000) 6,000,000 - - 6000000 24140012 250 250 NIAR

WONG Tung Ching 123 3000000 (3000000) 3,000,000 - - 3000000 2441012 250 250 NIAE

LI Guangie £ 1500000 (1,500000) 1500000 - - 1500000 24147012 250 250 NIAE

LI Sang, Edward X3 1500000 (1,500000) 1,500,000 - - 1,500000 /40012 250 150 NAZ

Fu Tingme ez 500000 (500000) 500000 - - 500000 /40012 250 250 NAZ

SONG Ming R 500000 (500000) 500000 - - 500000 24140012 250 250 NAZ

TSANG Yiu Keung ) 5 500000 (500000) 500000 - - 500000 2440012 150 250 NAE
Continuous contract employees KERNER

In aggregate &t 26500000 (26500000) 26,500,000 (333333) (666,667) 25500000 24472012 250 150 NAE

40000000 (40000000) 40000000 (333333) (666667) 39000000 24/472012 250 250 NAZ

Further details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in note 29(a) to the financial

statements.

Share Award Scheme

On 27 October 2011, the Company adopted the Share Award Scheme under which the

shares of the Company (the “Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to selected employees

(including Directors) of any members of the Group (the “Selected Employees ") pursuant

to the terms of the Scheme Rules and the Trust Deed of the Share Award Scheme.

The Share Award Scheme became effective on the adoption date and, unless otherwise

terminated or amended, will remain in force for 0 years from that date, i.e, 26 October

2021,

H&=EZBERE Hxﬁﬂﬁ’&ﬁ

2012 F ¥

BB Bl E b BN S R M 29(a) W
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Hﬁfﬁﬁﬁ]%%ﬂ

—E——F+AZtTtR  FRAERARG
ﬁﬁbﬁ%ﬂ ° BRIt - AR E R (TR AR 1) A
R BB B A5t &R B RIE FERBIGK
RYIFEEEAKERANEEREE(AREE
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The aggregate number of Awarded Shares permitted to be awarded under the Share
Award Scheme throughout the duration of the Share Award Scheme is limited to 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption date (being 164,000,000
shares). The maximum number of Awarded Shares which may be awarded to a Selected
Employee in any |2-month period up to and including the date of award shall not in
aggregate exceed |% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption date
(being 16,400,000 shares).

When a selected employee has satisfied all vesting conditions, which might include service
and/or performance conditions, specified by the Board of the Company at the time of
making the award and become entitled to the shares of the Company forming the subject
of the award, the trustee shall transfer the relevant Awarded Shares to that employee
at no cost. The Selected Employee however is not entitled to receive any income or
distribution, such as dividend derived from the unvested Awarded Shares allocated to
him/her.

Details of the Awarded Shares awarded during the year ended 31 December 2012 (201 [:
nil) are set out below:
Number of Average fair

Date of award shares awarded value per share

REHH RERGEE SRIHYLFE
30 March 2012 7,494,000 HK$2.15
“E-—-#=ZH=+1H 21581 —E—
21 May 2012 182,000 HK$2.52
—ET——-FRA=-1+—H 2528 —E—

On 24 November 2012, the vesting date of 1,360,000 out of 2,506,000 Awarded Shares,
which were expected to be vested on 30 November 2012, was deferred to 24 June 2013.
The remaining 1,146,000 Awarded Shares have been either transferred to the grantees, or

sold in accordance with their instructions on 30 November 2012 at no cost accordingly.

IR 52T 2R R B AR 1 SR BN A B
R RER (D BB T BRBARAINENA
BT AR 10%(5 164000000/ ) - HE
RHRBERE(BEZB)EANEABH
MEZEERNNRBRNHESHEELET

BRARRRARRMBBEBITRAN 1%(A
16,400,000f%) °

HEEREENAARRNEFTENELERER
B 5B 2 2RSS B (R 1 (L el e R IR MRS 5
%&/&%ﬁ%%ﬁ)@Tﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ@m$
AN A%\%H%%Eﬁiﬁﬁ%
35 CEEEBERWEEABA
ﬁ”ﬁ*@%é D BT AR B SR B B

R% 8 o

pu]

REE-T—
H B (=

“ETZA=T-HIEFERE
T——F: E)FFOT

Vesting date

BEAH

3071172012, 30/11/2013 and 30/1 1/2014
—F+-A=1A .
~mEt—A=+A

—E—-

=Ft—-A=1tRk

30/11/2012,30/1'1/2013 and 30/11/2014
“&#+—fF=ftH =
—m¥+—A=+H

—F
<

“F+—A=1+HkK

RZE——&F+—A=+ME 2506000 &
B A% 1 9 1,360,000 % 4 57 8 B H3 (TR B 5 1A
ZE-FT-A=THREB)EELE_Z
—=FRAZTHA « 887 1,146,000 B & A%
NEEEERTARAIBERER S —=
F+—A=TREZLNERLE -

205,000 awarded shares lapsed prior to its vesting date as a result of staff resignation. 205,000 I EBIRMHERIEEFBMNEEER
HARI RN -
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Movements of Awarded Shares under the Share Award Scheme for the year ended 3| R REEETETHRBRONEE_T—Z

December 20172 are as follows: FT_A=T-HILFENLHNT :
Awarded
Awarded shares at
shares at 31 December
| January 2012
001 R
R Granted Vested Lapsed “E-CF
“E-Cf during during during TZB Dateof
Name of participants -A-H the year the year the year ST-HB  awrd Vesting period
SRELH NEBRS FARY EnEE ERx¥  NEBRG KA FEAH
Directors
£
Yim Fung — 2,718,000 — — 2718000 30312012 2416120130 30/1 112014
Bl 3% “T-Z%
=A=+H ~AZTHAZE
St
t-A=tH
Wong Tung Ching - 790,000 (264,000) - 526000 3032012 301172013 10 30/1172014
I%E “F-If “F-zF
=A=tH T-A=TtRZ
Ik Slik3
+-B=18
Li Guangje — 181,000 (61,000) - 120000 301372012 301172013 10 30/11/2014
AR kSt 3 ik
=A=tH T-A=1+RZ
“FRE
T-A=tH
Li Sang, Edward — 181,000 (61,000) - 120000 30/3/2012 3011172013 t0 30/1172014
3 “F-- —3-=fF
=A=1H t-A=1B%
St
t-A=tH
BREZBEBEEZRBERRA 59
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Awarded
Awarded shares at
shares at 31 December
| January 2012
001 i
i Granted Vested Lapsed “E-CF
ZE-CF during during during +Z8 Daeof
Name of participants -A-H the year the year the year =t-8  award Vesting period
SRELH NEBRS EREH EnEE Erx¥  NEBRG RHAH FEAH
Continuous
contract employees
KEANES
In aggregate - 3,624,000 (698,000) (205,000) 2721000 30372012 241612013 to
st ZF-CE 301112014
ZAZ1R =%
ARZTEEE
—E-ME
t-B=18
— 182,000 (62,000) — 120000 21/572012 30/1172013 10 30/11/2014
“F-Cf ZF-cE
il Iy T-A=tRZ
b Sl
t-A=1H
— 7,676000 (1,146,000) (205,000) 6,325,000

Further details of the Share Award Scheme are disclosed in note 29(b) to the financial R 5B =T B 60 Bt S B R IS SRR TR 29(b)

statements. BE o
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURE

Save as the Share Option Scheme and Share Award Scheme disclosed above, for the
year ended 3| December 2012, the Company or any of its subsidiaries has not signed
any agreements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debt securities (including debentures) of the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses or children under the age of 18, had

any rights to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSON’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2012, the following persons (not being a Director of our Company)
have interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which have been disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

BREZBEBEEZRBERRA
2012 4
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Ordinary shares of HK$0.| each of the Co

mpany

ANEEREEO. BTHEBR

Approximate percentage of
issued share capital

of the Company

Number of shares HEAREBITRE
RH#E BABSL
Long Short Long Short
Name of shareholders positions positions positions positions
BRRERE rRE RE kB KR
Guotai Junan Holdings Limited EREBELERER AR 1,145,000,000 Nil £ 69.8% Nil &
Guotai Junan Financial BRELSRER
Holdings Limited (Note) BRAR () 1,145,000,000 Nil & 69.8% Nil &
Guotai Junan Securities BIRE Z&E 7R
Co., Ltd (Note) ARAR (M) 1,145,000,000 Nil & 69.8% Nil 4
Shanghai Intemnational Group HEBRRER
Co., Ltd (Note) ARAR (M) 1,145,000,000 Nil£E 69.8% Nil£E

Note: Guotai Junan Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Wizt AREBLERAERATHRREL S RIER

Limited which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd, ERARZEES  MEZELSRIERE
Shanghai International Group Co,, Ltd, directly and indirectly through its subsidiaries, holds BARAAREELEARNDERARNE
approximately 46.7% equity interest in Guotai Junan Securities Co,, Ltd. Accordingly, Guotai BB AR - ERERERSFRARNESE
Junan Financial Holdings Limited, Guotai Junan Securities Co,, Ltd and Shanghai International BLREEBRNDERATEERBBENBA
Group Co,, Ltd are deemed to have the same interest in the shares of the Company as RIREREL46T%5RE - At BRER

Guotai Junan Holdings Limited.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 3|1 December 2012, the Company has not been notified
by any persons (other than Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Save as the continuing connected transactions disclosed below, no contracts concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of business of the

Company or its subsidiaries were entered into or existed during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED

TRANSACTIONS

(@) Cooperation Agreement for China B shares dealing and broking
On 17 June 2010, a co-operation agreement was entered between Guotai Junan
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited (“Guotai Junan") (which was
subsequently amended by a supplemental agreement dated 31 December 2012)
whereby Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited would maintain a China B
share trading account with Guotai Junan and place orders on behalf of its customers
to Guotai Junan. Guotai Junan would then execute the orders using its China B
shares trading platform. As disclosed in the prospectus dated 25 June 2010, the
total amounts of commissions paid by Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited
under the cooperation agreement for the three years ending 31 December 2012
should not exceed HK$6.0 million, HK$6.6 million and HK$7.26 million respectively.
The total commission paid to Guotai Junan for the year ended 31 December 2012
was HK$3,016,000 which is also set out in Note 37(a)(i) to the financial statements
on pages 175 to 180 of this annual report.
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2012 4

Report of the Directors
HHE RS

BREXHBEEN R_T-—_F+_A
=+—8 BEAAAL(TEERARAESY
BRTHAB)ME AR RAERARRRA M
Bk BEREESRAEKRAEXVE
FIREINTMEBERRDEERE - Nttt
RBEESFRAERIENBCERAARERFE
METMANERRAE o

o

BRIXFMBENSEBEEIHIN TR AR
AY BV FEEMERNALAHBERF
2HRERBOEBENERSTRABOEH -

HERZREERERS

() EBRTEBRRZIRSLNEERZ

i e Sl SR o = /N -
MBRARBRERER(BB)ERAA
HEREREFRNERAF(TERE
ZNINEEGEZBZELER T
—ZH+ZA=T-HEEN-HHE
BEEET) Bt BRERESH(BE)
BERARHERZELHZTEBRR S
BP URRAEZEFPABEZRERTE -
BERETEmMERAERERRR ST A
ERIE - BMAHAZT—TFRA
“HAAMNBRERMEE  BHE-T
——F+-A=t-HL=AFE &
REREBHF(BB)ERRAREEER
BEXNNALESR T GHRAA
BET cCEBBTRIABAETL-
BE-Z-——F+-A=1t-HALLEE
NTERELMA LT H3016000%
T LREBTHERAEREITSEE
180 BB BREMIF37(2)(0)

63



Report of the Directors
R

64

Consultancy Service Agreement

On 17 June 2010, a service agreement was entered between Guotai Junan (Hong
Kong) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and Guotai Junan
Consultancy Services (Shenzhen) Co, Limited (which was subsequently amended
by two supplemental agreements dated |9 April 201 | and 3| December 2012
respectively) whereby Guotai Junan Consultancy Services (Shenzhen) Co,, Limited
would provide consultancy services relating to project management and economic
information as well as marketing and planning to Guotai Junan (Hong Kong)
Limited. As disclosed in the prospectus dated 25 June 2010, the total amount of
consultancy fee paid to Guotai Junan Consultancy Services (Shenzhen) Co., Limited
under the service agreement for the three years ending 31 December 2012 should
not exceed HK$9.6 million, HK$12 million and HK$ 15 million respectively. The
total consultancy fee paid to Guotai Junan Consultancy Services (Shenzhen) Co.,,
Limited for the year ended 31 December 2012 was HK$ 15,000,000 which is also
set out in Note 37(a)(ii) to the financial statements on pages 175 to 180 of this

annual report.
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Investment Management Agreements

On 17 June 2010, a supplemental investment management agreement was entered
into between Guotai Junan KS Select Equity Fund (“KS Fund”) and Guotai Junan
Fund Management Limited, a supplemental margin trading agreement was entered
into between the KS Fund and Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited, a
supplemental investment management agreement was entered into between
Guotai Junan Funds SPC (for the account of Guotai Junan Harvest China Fund
Segregated Portfolio) (“SPC Fund”) and Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Limited and a
supplemental margin trading agreement was entered into between SPC Fund and
Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited (which was amended by supplemental
agreement dated 31 December 2012). Under the said supplemental agreements,
Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited will provide securities trading services
and margin facilities to both the KS Fund and SPC Fund. Guotai Junan Assets (Asia)
Limited will act as the investment manager for the SPC Fund and Guotai Junan
Fund Management Limited will act as the investment manager of KS Fund. As
disclosed in the prospectus dated 25 June 2010, the total amounts of aggregated
fee paid by the KS Fund and SPC Fund for the three years ending 3| December
2012 should not exceed HK$65 million, HK$67.2 million and HK$69.84 million
respectively. The total fees paid to the Group for the year ended 31 December
2012 was HK$18,684,000 which are also set out in Note 37(a)(iii) — (vi) to the

financial statements on pages 175 and 180 of this annual report.
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Investment Advisory Agreement and Client Agreement

On I'l August 2010, an advisory agreement was entered between Guotai
Junan Assets (Asia) Limited and Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited, the
investment manager of a Qualified Domestic Institutional Investors (QDII) collective
investment plan (the "QDIl Scheme”), namely IR B L EEAIIS G EEE
5 & (Guotai Junan Jun Fu Xiang Jiang Collective Investment Plan), which was
amended by two supplemental agreements dated 27 September 2011 and 3|
December 2012 respectively). Under the advisory agreement, Guotai Junan Assets
(Asia) Limited was appointed as an investment advisor of the QDII Scheme and be

entitled to advisory fee.

On 15 September 2010, a client agreement was entered between Guotai
Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited and Guotai Junan Securities Company
Limited, the investment manager of the QDII Scheme, which was amended by
two supplemental agreements on 27 September 2011 and 3| December 2012
respectively. Under the client agreement, Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong)
Limited agreed to provide securities brokerage services to the QDI Scheme and

be entitled to commission income.

On 25 September 2010, the relevant parties entered into agreements under
which all rights and obligations of Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited as the
investment manager of the QDII Scheme have been transferred to_ b/ BIZRE %
BHBEEEEBRAF] (Shanghai Guotai Junan Securities Assets Management

Limited), a wholly owned subsidiary of Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited.
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As disclosed in the announcement dated 27 September 201 |, the total amounts
of aggregated fees paid by the QDI Scheme to Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Limited
and Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited under the agreements for the
two years ended 31 December 2012 should not exceed HK$4.0 million and
HK$9.4 million respectively. The total fees paid by the QDII Scheme for the year
ended 3| December 2012 was HK$949,000 which are also set out in Note 37(a)

(vii) to the financial statements on pages |75 and 180 of this annual report.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed and

confirmed that the continuing connected transactions were entered into:

() inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to the Group

than terms available to/from independent third parties; and

(iif)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in interests of the shareholders of the Company

as a whole.

In accordance with paragraph [4A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Directors engaged
the auditor of the Company to report on the above mentioned continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagement 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Review of
Historical Financial Information™ ("HKSAE 3000") and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” (“PN740") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants.
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The auditor has reported to the Directors in accordance with HKSAE 3000 and
with reference to PN740 that the transactions:

(i) have been approved by the Board of the Company;
(i) arein accordance with the pricing policies of the Company;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements

governing such transactions; and

(iv)  have not exceeded the relevant CAPs disclosed in the listing prospectus of
the Company dated 25 June 2010 and announcement dated 27 September
2011,

The following is a summary of the continuing connected transaction of the Group entered

into for the year ended 31 December 2012:

On | July 2012, Guotai Junan and Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited entered
into a Securities Investment Consultancy Service Agreement (which was subsequently
amended by a supplemental agreement dated 31 December 2012) under which Guotai
Junan will provide securities investment consultancy services to Guotai Junan Securities
(Hong Kong) Limited, including but not limited to research reports, market news and
updates and commentaries, Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited will pay service
fee to Guotai Junan quarterly based on the actual amount of services Guotai Junan has
provided during the quarter. The professional and consultancy fee incurred by the Group

was HK$990,000 for the year ended 31 December 2012.

BT 2 42 BB HKSAE 3000 I 22 B8 PN740
METREETHRE  Z5RF:

() BEARFAEZGHA:

(i)  TRBARARNEBBRET

(iy DEBREZZIHNIEEGRE
TR

(v) WARBHARAR-ZZE-FTEFRNA
“ThBHEN ETRRERKR
“E——EAA-FLRTENA
R R EAAERE LR -

ATl AEEREE -2 ——F+ A
ST HUEFEFTUNSERERS

RZE—ZF+A—H BRERHABRRER
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On 9 August 2012, Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited (the Company's intermediate
holding company) and Guotai Junan Futures (Hong Kong) Limited have entered into
two Client Agreements for futures trading on the same terms (which were subsequently
amended by a supplemental agreement dated 31 December 2012), pursuant to which
Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited maintained two futures trading accounts at
Guotai Junan Futures (Hong Kong) Limited for futures trading in Hong Kong dollars and
US dollars respectively, Guotai Junan Futures (Hong Kong) Limited agreed to provide
brokerage services to Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited. The commission income
charged by Guotai Junan Futures (Hong Kong) Limited would be based on the market
rate, i.e. price receivable from independent third parties for the similar services under
ordinary commercial transactions, and the commission is payable on the settlement day
under the relevant market practice. The commission eamed by the Group from Guotai
Junan Financial Holdings Limited was HK$583,000 for the year ended 31 December 2012.

On | November 2012, Guotai Junan and Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited
have entered into a Client Agreement for securities trading (which was subsequently
amended by a supplemental agreement dated 3| December 2012), pursuant to which
Guotai Junan maintained an account at Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited
for securities trading, Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited agreed to provide
securities brokerage services to Guotai Junan. The commission income charged by
Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited would be based on the market rate, i.e.
price receivable from independent third parties for the similar services under ordinary
commercial transactions, and the commission is payable on the settlement day under the
relevant market practice. The commission earned by the Group from Guotai Junan under
this Client Agreement was HK$59,000 for the year ended 31 December 2012.
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Report of the Directors
TR

On 29 December 2012, an advisory service agreement was entered between Guotai
Junan Assets (Asia) Limited and FiBBIRAB LB HFEEE BB 2] (Shanghai Guotai
Junan Securities Assets Management Limited) whereby Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Limited
was appointed as an investment advisor for a Qualified Domestic Institutional Investor
(“QDII") collective investment plan (“QDII Scheme") managed by Shanghai Guotai
Junan Securities Assets Management Limited. Shanghai Guotai Junan Securities Assets
Management Limited would pay 50% of the management fee income received from the
QDII Scheme less incurred expenses, if any, as advisory fee to Guotai Junan Assets (Asia)
Limited for its advisory services provided. No advisory fee income was earned for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the abovementioned continuing connected
transactions was exempted from the reporting, announcement and independent

shareholders’ approval requirement under Rule 14A.23 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESSES
As at 31 December 2012, none of the Board members of the Company and their
associates had any interests in an entity whose business competes or is likely to compete,

either directly or indirectly, with the Company's business.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company's total issued share capital was held by the
public as at the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company's corporate governance principles and practices are set out in the

Corporate Governance Report on pages |3 to 26 of this report.
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AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Emst & Young who will retire and being

eligible offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of

the Company to be held on 9 May 201 3.

There was a change of auditors from PricewaterhouseCoopers to Emst & Young for the

year ended 31 December 201 1.

By order of the Board
Yim Fung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 March 2013
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Independent Auditors’ Report
W 22w Bl o

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
=z Ik

Ernst & Young
22/F, CITIC Tower
| Tim Mei Avenue

KB BB
BERRRAMNE N
REAE2E

Central, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Guotai Junan International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group") set out on
pages 74 to 200, which comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents

of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2012, and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

14 March 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

,»/T (=] iﬁqﬁﬁni%

Year ended 3/ December 2012
BE-F——f+-HA=1—HIIEE

For the year ended

3| December

BE+-A=t-BLHEE

Notes 2012 2011
ME  —B--fF —F—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FEL
Revenue Wz 5 786,570 700,729
Other income HtA 6 4,170 2425
Revenue and other income Yogs RE A UA 790,740 703,154
Staff costs BIMA 7 (202,484) (161916)
Commission to account executives XPEAMA% (43,339) (44.241)
Other commission expenses HiB o< (48,312) (41,170)
Performance fee expenses FRBHX (11,940) (3,602)
Depreciation nE (25,943) (24,562)
Impairment of loans and advances to customers ERREFPEFAE 17 (540) (139)
Impairment of accounts receivable N IE R (E 18(d) (5) (181
Other operating expenses HEEEmy (95,537) (94,862)
Operating profit REEM 362,640 332481
Finance costs BERA 7 (7,238) (2,246)
Profit before tax BRELA & F 7 355,402 330235
Income tax expense iR inaha 8 (48,252) (42,787)
Profit for the year FREF 307,150 287,448
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax & R E A 2 Wz - — —
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZEKEEE 307,150 287,448
Attributable to: AT &R -
Owners of the parent NEHEEA 307,003 287,706
Non-controlling interests RS 147 (258)
307,150 287,448
Earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity RAREBRBRRELERER
holders of the parent 10
— Basic (in HK cents) —EAR(ABLE) 18.8 17.5
~ Diluted (in HK cents) —#F(LABILE) 18.8 17.5

FRENRERRBENFERP B REM T

=
financial statements. R

Details of the dividends paid and proposed for the year are disclosed in note 9 to the
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

o BB R PLE
As at 31 December 2012
R-E——#+-A=1+—H

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-H
Notes 2012 2011
BT —B-Zf "Z——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BE R [ 429,402 446,893
Investment properties REME 12 108,751 111,903
Intangible assets EBEE 3 2,823 2,823
Other assets Hing & 14 2,870 2,960
Deferred tax assets ERERBEE 15 3,670 5,891
Held-to-maturity investments REIGRE 16 — 77728
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 547,516 648,198
Current assets RBEE
Loans and advances to customers ERREPHER |7 3,058,102 2,064,215
Accounts receivable FENTIE 8 1,023,187 336,366
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BAFIE - Be MBI 19 22,901 18,035
Held-to-maturity investments REIBERE 16 77,520 —
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BRTEFABRNEREE 20 482,220 150,716
Tax recoverable AU Bl 78 6,796 310
Client trust bank balances RPEARTES 21 5,883,94| 6,121,768
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 21 384,554 661,856
Total current assets RBEERE 10,939,221 9,353,266
Current liabilities REAE
Accounts payable JETFRIE 23 (6,955,818)  (6471,235)
Subscription monies received in advance FEHRERIE 24 (186,798) —
Other payables and accrued liabilities H AU R B F0B 25 (95,022) (77,788)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHRBITER 26 (739,820) (200,000)
Debt Securities in issue BEITNEKE 7 27 (86,000) —
Tax payable FERTIIE (6,214) (11,344)
Total current liabilities RBABEHE (8,069,672)  (6,760,367)

BHREZBEBREREBRQF
2012 4 3R

75



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

A A B IR DL AR ()

As at 31 December 2012
R-E——#+-A=+-H

As at 31 December

R+=ZRA=+—-8H
Notes 2012 2011
ME —B--fF —F—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TRT
Net current assets RBEERE 2,869,549 2,592,899
Total assets less current liabilities BEERATBEE 3,417,065 3,241,097
Non-current liabilities kRBER
Deferred tax liabilities BERERE 15 (17,300) (9,079)
Net assets BEFE 3,399,765 3232018
Equity i
Share capital R 28 164,000 164,000
Share premium B s E 2,771,707 2,771,707
Other reserve Hithi# 31(a) (1,236,460)  (1,236,460)
Share-based compensation reserve VAR RETER B
— Share option reserve - BREREE 29(a) 33,330 12,805
— Share award reserve — B B 29(b) 5,720 —
Shares held under the share award scheme R 8B =t 23 A B R (D 30 (28,833) (9,384)
Proposed final dividend BRI S 9 113,882 98,116
Retained profits RE & 7 1,570,102 1,425,064
Equity attributable to owners of the parent BARHE AEEER 3,393,448 3,225,848
Non-controlling interests IR A 6,317 6,170
Total equity ERAH 3,399,765 3232018
Dr YIM Fung Mr Li Sang, Edward
HigEL FHERE
Director Director
BEE o
76 GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

2012 Annual Report



Statement of Financial Position

B AR LA

As at 3/ December 2012
R-E——#+-A=1+—H

As at 31 December

W+=A=+—-H
Notes 2012 2011
P EE ZB-Zf C—T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Non-current assets ﬂsﬁﬁﬁg
Investments in a subsidiary RETBAARE 2 1,306,553 1,280,765
Total non-current assets FRBEEHLRE 1,306,553 1,280,765
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BNTIE - Be REMERTIE 19 1,549 625
Due from a subsidiary FENPH B R RIFRIR 2 1,846,614 1,756,397
Cash and cash equivalents BeRkHReEEY 21 521 104
Total current assets RBEEAR 1,848,684 1,757,126
Current liabilities P =R
Accrued liabilities FEETTA 25 (1,008) (1,005)
Debt securities in issue BRTBEKES 27 (86,000) —
Total current liabilities RBAEAR (87,008) (1,005)
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 1,761,676 1,756,121
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERTBEER
AND NET ASSETS EERE 3,068,229 3,036,886
Equity B
Share capital LN 28 164,000 164,000
Share premium R0 % (B 2,768,723 2768723
Share-based compensation reserve DB RE R E R
— Share option reserve —ERERE 29(a) 33,330 12,805
— Share award reserve —R1n RE 29(b) 5,720 —
Shares held under the share award scheme IRIBMR 0 22 E T 8l A AR 0 30 (28,833) (9,384)
Proposed final dividend R R S 9 113,882 98,116
Retained profits REB M 31(b) 11,407 2,626
Total equity B 3,068,229 3,036,886
Dr YIM Fung Mr Li Sang, Edward
HEEt ThEKE
Director Director
EE EF
BREERERERERLD A 77
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

22 N ARl DL 454
SEETRESS A

Year ended 31 December 2012

LlFS

P E A1 —HIFER

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

BRARAAEE RS

Shares held
under the
share
Share Share award Non-
option award  scheme controlling
Share Share Other  resene  resene  MRERZA  Proposed  Retained interests Total
aptal  premium  reseve  [ERREE Ry REHE  dvidend profits Totd  FEH equity
BE ROEE EfbRE e ZBREE RAORD BERE  REER st i RELEE
HKP000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKPOO0  HK$000  HKFOOO  HKO00  HKFO000  HKS000  HK$000
Ter TEr  TEr  TEn TET Thér TEr  TEr  TEnr  TEnr  Tén
Balance at | January 201 | RZE——F
—A—-Rm&s 164000 2771707 (1236460) — - — 8000 1284674 3065921 6428 3072349
Total comprehensive income for N2
the year e — — — — — — — 87706 287706 (58) 287448
Recognition of equity-settled BRNERE
share-based payment PARfR BRI
(Note 29(2)) GBS - — — 1805 - - - — 180 — 1805
Purchases of shares heldunder ~ EEEREIR (7 180512
the share award scheme B
(Note 30) ia(fzE30) - - — — — 93 - — (938 — (938
Final diidend paid SRRBRE - - - - - — (82000) —  (82000) — (82000)
Interim dividend declared and BRRZA
paid (Note 9) AR E (BT 9) - - - - - - — (492000 (49.200) — (49200
Proposed final dividend (Note 9)  #BR AR S (H5H9) - - - - - — 9Bl (%819 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2011 RZF——F
and | January 2012 T-A=1+-H
R=%F-f
—R—R#ER 164000 2771707 (1 236460) 12805 — 9384) 9816 1425064 3225848 6170 3232018
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
A A R

Year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_F——F1-A=+—HIFE

ARE

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

BREREAEGRS
Shares held
under the
share
Share Share award Non-
option award  scheme controlling
Share Share  Other  reserve  reseve MEMAY  Proposed  Retained interests Total
capital  premum  reserve  FERRE Rt RBIE  dividend profits Total R equity
BE ROEE R fiff RERE KAEORL RERE REER Eh B BRAE
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TEn T TEx TEx TEx TExr TEx TEx TEx  TEn  THEn
Total comprehensive income EnzE
for the year et - = = = = = — 307,003 307,003 147 307,150
Recognition of equity-settled RN BRI E
share-based payment CARfR BRI
(Note 29(a) and 29(v)) (FEE29) R 29() - — — 20870 8310 - - — 9180 — 9180
Purchase of shares held under BERERN RE): 2
the share award scheme [ikezE:!
(Note 9 and 30) BOIGESYED) = = - - — QL4 (210 A0 (174) — Q4
Vesting of shares for the GERAEE
share award scheme &R
(Note 29(b) and 30) (P 29(0) 2 30) - - - — 50 227 - 315 - - -
Transfer of share option RORIE R
reserve upon the forfeiture Exklhe
of share options & - = = (345) = = = 345 = = =
Final dividend paid SARERE — — - - - (97.906) - (97.906) —  (97.906)
Interm dividend declared and EREZARERE
paid (Note 9) (Fzt9) - - - — — — — (48953  (489%3) —  (489%3)
Proposed final dividend (Note )~ BEEREIRS. (Mfzk9) - - - - - — 113882 (11388 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2012 RZZ-ZF
tZA=t+-H
fisi 164000 2,771,707 (1236,460) 33,330 5720 (28833) 113882 1,570,102 3393448 6317 3,399,765
Bl %A 2B K& Hxﬁﬂﬁ’&ﬁj 79
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

ar YA vZ2s EL
HABERMER
Year ended 31 December 2012

EE— A=A EE

Notes 2012 2011
DI e
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET AT
Net cash flows (used in)/from operating activities wEES(A) /FERERE) 35 (916,037) 178,738
Cash flows from investing activities REFHRERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEVDE  BELRE H (5,300) (17929)
Net cash flows used in investing activities REEZHFMARERETFH (5,300) (17929)
Cash flows from financing activities METHRESRE
New bank loans HIBRITER 539,820 200,000
Proceeds from issuance of debt securities BOIERESGTIE 27 86,000 —
Subscription monies received in advance BMRETIE 24 186,798 —
Dividend paid to shareholders FRRERE (146,859) (131,200)
Purchase of shares held under the share BERIEMR RE: 2
award scheme m#FE R 30 (21,724) (9,384)
Net cash flows from financing activities RETHHLREFE 644,035 59416
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERAEEEY
cash equivalents (R2)/BmFeE (277,302) 220225
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FORELREEED 661,856 441,631
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRRERREEEY 384,554 661,856
Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents ~HERESEBUMNER T
Cash and bank balances B RRITHER 21 258,754 319,798
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity of Bl R EEH T2 = & A
less than three months when acquired KRBT EER 21 125,800 342,058
384,554 661,856
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2.1

Notes to Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated on 8 March 2010 in Hong Kong with limited
liability under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) and its shares were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange™) on 8 July 2010. The registered office address of the Company is 27th
Floor, Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 181 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong.
The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in dealing and broking, loans and financing activities, corporate finance,

asset management and investment holding.

The Company's immediate holding company and ultimate holding company are
Guotai Junan Holdings Limited (“GJHL") and Guotai Junan Securities Company
Limited, respectively.

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on
[4 March 2013.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32). They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss which have been measured at fair value.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are

rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise stated.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2012. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting

from intra-group transactions and dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full,

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed to the non-controlling

interest even if it results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is

accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-
controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of
any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group's share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive

income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES 22 EHBREDREE
The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for the AEEERAFERNTISHRE B RN
current year's financial statements. AR R BRI BB B B s 22 -

Effective for financial

Standard Content years beginning on/after

R RMHz&
%8 A RRNMRFEER
HKFRS | Amendments Amendments to HKFRS | First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial [ July 2011

Reporting Standards — Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed
Dates for First-time Adopters

EEMBHREER BRUMBRERRE | ROERTEANRAZ LG HFHEER - —E——%tA-H
F | e BEBRRSG B K FNEZ BE S
HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers [ July 2011
of Financial Assets
BB REER BREMBREEANETRNEII LM LA  KE-BEZHEE “T——%tA-H
FT7HRNERT
HKAS 12 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 12 lncome Taxes — Deferred Tax: Recovery | January 2012
of Underlying Assets
B gt LA BRGHERE 1 2RNER N —ELHE - WEHEEE —T-—_%-f—H
F 125RAER]
The adoption of the revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these HMRIEE] B SIS HRE ER| W RS %
financial statements. ENBRRELEAUBTE -
BREZBEBEEZRBERRA 83
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL /%)
REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have been

issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

CEAEERERNERRBRS

3]

AEBRANZERBREPERANUT
ERMERKEROIET REETEE

M ImEER -

Effective for financial

Standard/ years beginning on/after
interpretation Content RT5IBHR 2%
0|28 AR R REEER
HKFRS | Amendments Amendments to HKFRS | First-time Adoption of Hong Kong | January 2013
BRI BREER Financial Reporting Standards — Government Loans —Z-=%—-H—H

F | e BEUBRERERNE | BB EARAE I BHE

BR-BFEH

HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures — | January 2013
BB B ISR Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities “ZT-=%—-H—-H

FT7HRNERT BRMBREERE 7 HRNER]

THTE  RE-2HEERHRENAHY

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments | January 2015
ERMBREERNE IR ZHIA —T-R¥—-A—H
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements | January 2013
BRUBREENE 0% FEUFHE “T-=%-HA—H
HKFRS 1 Joint Arrangements | January 2013
EEMBHREERS 15 AALH —T-=%-A—H
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities | January 2013
ERMBREENSE 125 REMERNEZRE —T-=%-HA—H
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and ~ Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS |l and HKFRS 12 — | January 2013

HKFRS 12 Amendments Transition Guidance —T-=%-H—H

BRMBREER

F 0% BRMHRE
ERE I HREBBRE
WEERIE 125RER]

BRMBREERE 0% BEUBRELNE 115K
BRMBRERRE 12RNER —ERMEE5/
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL

Notes to Financial Statements

2.3

REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

B FE R R P EE

ERMEERERNEEMBRE
ER(%)

Effective for financial

Standard/ years beginning on/after
interpretation Content RT5IBHHz%&
20|/ RE AR HARNSREEER
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (201 1) - | January 2014
and HKAS 27 (201 1) Investment Entities —T-MFE-A—H
Amendments BEMBREENF 105 BEMBMEENS 128K
B BHREER ERG RS R CT——FINBIT -~ REFE
F105%  BEMBRS
ERE 12K REEGH
RIZ 75 (—E——%)
T
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement | January 2013
BEAERGMERRE 3% L FEHE —T-=%-A—H
HKAS | Amendments Amendments to HKAS | Presentation of Financial Statements — [ July 2012
BAGIERAE | THIEET  Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income —Z--%tA-H
BB ERSE | MBI 2TIMBERER -
ZIIE M B zmEE
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits | January 2013
BAGERSE 9% ES#F —Z-=%-A-H
(Z2—%)
HKAS 27 (201 1) Separate Financial Statements | January 2013
BB ERE 7% BUHHBHE “T-=%-HA—H
(ZF——%)
HKAS 28 (201 1) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures | January 2013
BERGERE 285 REZRRIREELAINRE —T-=%-f—H
(Z2—%)
HKAS 32 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation — | January 2014
BRI ERE R Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities —Z-MF—-H—H
MIERT BERGTENENROEITLHIE - 2 -2 HEEH
TAERENLH
HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine | January 2013
BB (ERMBERSE 2 R R TR R A A “T-=%-HA—H
#2BZEE)
—2EF 0%
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued in June 2012 | January 2013
2009-201 1 Cycle T -CERRABRRN—RINBEEMBREERMESR] “Z-=%—-H—-H
—ERNFFF——F
BIBF R
BREZBEBEEZRBERRA 85
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.3
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the

Group is as follows:
. Amendments to HKFRS 7

The HKFRS 7 Amendments require an entity to disclose information about
rights to set-off and related arrangements (e.g, collateral agreements). The
disclosures would provide users with information that is useful in evaluating
the effect of netting arrangements on an entity's financial position. The new
disclosures are required for all recognised financial instruments that are set
off in accordance with HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. The
disclosures also apply to recognised financial instruments that are subject to
an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement, irrespective
of whether they are set off in accordance with HKAS 32. The Group expects

to adopt the amendments from | January 2013.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase | of a
comprehensive project to entirely replace HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. This phase focuses on the classification and
measurement of financial assets. Instead of classifying financial assets into four
categories, an entity shall classify financial assets as subsequently measured at
either amortised cost or fair value, on the basis of both the entity's business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to improve and simplify the
approach for the classification and measurement of financial assets compared

with the requirements of HKAS 39.

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to HKFRS 9 to address
financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated in HKFRS 9 the
current derecognition principles of financial instruments of HKAS 39. Most
of the Additions were carried forward unchanged from HKAS 39, while
changes were made to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss using the fair value option (“FVO"™). For
these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value of a liability
that is attributable to changes in credit risk must be presented in other
comprehensive income (“OCI"). The remainder of the change in fair value
is presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair value change
in respect of the liability's credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However, loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts which have been designated under the FVO are

scoped out of the Additions.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its entirety. Before this
entire replacement, the guidance in HKAS 39 on hedge accounting and
impairment of financial assets continues to apply. The Group expects to
adopt HKFRS 9 from | January 2015. The Group will quantify the effect in
conjunction with other phases, when the final standard including all phases is

issued.

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, HKFRS || joint Arrangements
and HKFRS 12 Disclosure Of Interests In Other Entities

HKFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all entities
including special purpose entities or structured entities. It includes a
new definition of control which is used to determine which entities are
consolidated. The changes introduced by HKFRS 10 require management of
the Group to exercise significant judgement to determine which entities are
controlled, compared with the requirements in HKAS 27 and HK(SIC)-Int
12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 replaces the portion
of HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that addresses
the accounting for consolidated financial statements. It also addresses the
issues raised in HK(SIC)-Int 2. Based on the preliminary analyses performed,
HKFRS 10 is not expected to have any impact on the currently held

investments of the Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, HKFRS || joint Arrangements
and HKFRS 12 Disclosure Of Interests In Other Entities (continued)

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HK(SIC)-Int
I3 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary Contributions by Venturers.
[t describes the accounting for joint arrangements with joint control. It
addresses only two forms of joint arrangements, i.e., joint operations and
joint ventures, and removes the option to account for joint ventures using

proportionate consolidation.

HKFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and structured entities previously included in HKAS
27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, HKAS 31 Interests in
Joint Ventures and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates. It also introduces a

number of new disclosure requirements for these entities.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS || and HKFRS 12 — Transition Guidance

In July 2012, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS |1 and
HKFRS 12 which clarify the transition guidance in HKFRS 10 and provide
further relief from full retrospective application of these standards, limiting
the requirement to provide adjusted comparative information to only the
preceding comparative period. The amendments clarify that retrospective
adjustments are only required if the consolidation conclusion as to which
entities are controlled by the Group is different between HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 27 or HK(SIC)-Int 12 at the beginning of the annual period in which
HKFRS 10 is applied for the first time. Furthermore, for disclosures related
to unconsolidated structured entities, the amendments will remove the
requirement to present comparative information for periods before HKFRS

12 is first applied.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (201 1) — Investment

and December 2012 from | January 2013.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 issued in December 2012 include a definition
of an investment entity and provide an exception to the consolidation
requirement for entities that meet the definition of an investment entity.
Investment entities are required to account for subsidiaries at fair value
through profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 9 rather than consolidate
them. Consequential amendments were made to HKFRS 12 and HKAS
27 (2011). The amendments to HKFRS 12 also set out the disclosure
requirements for investment entities. The Group expects that these
amendments will not have any impact on the Group as the Company is not

an investment entity as defined in HKFRS 10.

Consequential amendments were made to HKAS 27 and HKAS 28 as a
result of the issuance of HKFRS 10, HKFRS |1 and HKFRS 12. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 10, HKFRS [, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (201 1), HKAS

28 (201 1), and the subsequent amendments to these standards issued in July
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS |3 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a single source of
fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across HKFRSs.
The standard does not change the circumstances in which the Group is
required to use fair value, but provides guidance on how fair value should be
applied where its use is already required or permitted under other HKFRSs.

The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 13 prospectively from | January 2013.

Annual Improvements 2009-201 | Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-201 1 Cycle issued in June
2012 sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments from | January 2013. There are separate
transitional provisions for each standard. While the adoption of some of
the amendments may result in changes in accounting policies, none of these
amendments are expected to have a significant financial impact on the

Group.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Company, directly or indirectly, controls more
than half of its voting power or issued share capital or controls the composition
of its board of directors; or over which the Company has a contractual right to
exercise a dominant influence with respect to that entity's financial and operating

policies.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's profit or loss to the extent
of dividends received and receivable. The Company's investments in subsidiaries

are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for
an asset is required (other than financial assets), the asset's recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the

asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in

those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there
is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss

is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset

to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such

parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each
item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful

life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Shorter of the
remaining lease
term and

the useful life

Leasehold land under finance lease of the building

Buildings 25-40 years
Leasehold improvements 3 years
Office equipment 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 years
Motor vehicles 3 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year

end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part initially
recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference

between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

96

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation (refer to the accounting policy for “Property, plant and equipment and

depreciation”) and any impairment losses.

An item of investment property and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net

sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible

asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets, representing club membership and eligibility rights to trade on
or through The Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and
The Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited, with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from

indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held
under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
finance costs of such leases are charged to profit or loss so as to provide a constant

periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain
with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is the
lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating leases are included in non-
current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is
the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease

terms.

Investment and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and held-to-maturity
investments. The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value plus transaction costs, except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair

value through profit or loss.

Al regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 FTESHBERBES)

Investment and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as

follows:

. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held
for trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if

they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement
of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not include any dividends or
interest earned on these financial assets, which are recognised in accordance

with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit
or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria
under HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as

follows: (continued)
. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(held for trading) to assess whether the intent to sell them in the near term
is still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade
these financial assets due to inactive markets and management's intent to sell
them in the foreseeable future significantly changes, the Group may elect to
reclassify them. The reclassification from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss to loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets or
held-to-maturity investments depends on the nature of the assets. This
evaluation does not affect any financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss using the fair value option at designation, as these instruments

cannot be reclassified after initial recognition.

. Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
revenue in profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in

profit or loss.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.4

Investment and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as

follows: (continued)
. Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity when the Group has the
positive intention and ability to hold them to maturity. Held-to-maturity
investments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in revenue in profit or loss.

The loss arising from impairment is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group

of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:
. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset
or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially

all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it
has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured

on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the

maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that
loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate

with defaults.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carnied at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses individually
whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are

not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows
is discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest

rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all

collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases
or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the
allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other

operating expenses in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

The Group's financial liabilities include accounts and other payables, bank
borrowings and debt securities in issue. The Group determines the classification of

its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and

borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are

derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is

discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the

respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets is
determined by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid
price for long positions and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for
transaction costs. For financial instruments where there is no active market, the fair
value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques include
using recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current market
value of another instrument which is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow

analysis; and option pricing models.

Shares held under the share award scheme

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (shares held under the share
award scheme) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Group's own equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and

the consideration is recognised in equity.

Client trust bank balances

The Group has classified the clients” monies as client trust bank balances under the
current assets in the consolidated statement of financial position and recognised
corresponding accounts payable to respective clients on grounds that it is liable for

any loss or misappropriation of clients’ monies.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

2012 Annual Report

24 FEETHRBRED)

ERMIAMAYE

RNERTHEENERIARTESLR
MEREXIHENRER(FENEA
BRARMELE)MET  LATEH
REMXZKA - SLEERTIHNE R
TAME ERAENBERTNETA
FE-ZSRMERERTHAFHD
5RX5 2RABHERNZ-TANE
AImE: FERERENN - REE
R -

o

RERGRBBFERS

BRIA S s TA(RERD ZRE &
RABD ) ER AR KN -
AEERE  HE - BOLEELSH
BaTAMGREREER AT ARS
o REEEREZRNIAMEENE
i

7
%J\ o

Bk
E)

EFEIRITER

AEEEREPHERBAEAMBMN
RERBDEELN BT EPERARTA
8 YRERE P RENEMBRLB
e EEEOER EMERRENTHE
BEPHRR o



Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are

repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in

nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Other assets

Other assets represent the deposits and admission fee paid to the Stock Exchange,
Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited, Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company
Limited and other regulators. They are intended to be held on a long-term basis

and stated at cost less impairment losses.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate

can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision
is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in

profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and

practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at
the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and

their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither

the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary

differences can be utilised.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 IESHBEHZE#)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset

to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

() commission income from securities and futures dealing and broking, on the

transaction dates when the relevant contract notes are exchanged;

(i) netincome from leveraged foreign exchange transactions on an accrual basis;

(il commission income from underwriting/placing in securities is earned
on execution of each significant act based on the terms of underlying

agreements and mandates;

(iv)  management, consultancy, investment advisory fees and handling income,

when the services have been rendered;
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

)

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by
applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when

appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;

dividend income, when the shareholders' right to receive payment has been

established;

performance fees are recognised on the performance fee valuation day
of the investment funds and managed accounts when there is a positive
performance for the relevant performance period, taking into consideration
the relevant basis of calculation for the investment funds and managed

accounts;

information services income, when the services have been rendered; and

net gains/losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
those held for trading include realised gains/ losses which are recognised on
the transaction dates when the relevant contract notes are exchanged; and
unrealised fair value gains/losses which are recognised in the period in which

they arise.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

110

@

®)

©

Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when

contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Annual leave

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they are
accrued to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of

the reporting period.

Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses, based on an
approved formula that takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Group after certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a

constructive obligation.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(@

Share-based payments

The Company operates two equity-settled share-based compensation
schemes including a share option scheme and a share award scheme for the
purpose of assisting in recruiting, retaining and motivating key staff members.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as

consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The cost
of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding
increase in the “Share-based compensation reserve” under equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of
each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense

recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for
equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional upon a market or
non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether
or not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all

other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an
expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payments,
or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of

modification.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.4

Employee benefits (continued)

(d)  Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested
on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the
award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or the employee are not
met. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and
is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the

original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect (if any) of outstanding options is reflected as additional

share dilution in the computation of eamings per share.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors, excluding those relating to the
Company's own shares held under the Company's share award scheme, are
classified as a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the statement of financial position, until they have been approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by

the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the
Company's memorandum and articles of association grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are

recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Securities borrowing and lending agreements

The Group has engaged in the securities borrowing and lending business, under
which all transactions are secured in the form of cash. Cash collateral advanced or
received is recorded as an asset or a liability. Fees received or paid in connection
with securities borrowing and lending is recorded as handling income or handling

charge, respectively.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company's functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange prevailing at the end of
the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary

items are recognised in profit or loss.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that

person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a

parent of the Group;
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)
or
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a

parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an

associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of

employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

and

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or
is @ member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosure, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made
the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have the

most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Taxes

Significant judgement is required in determining the provisions for income and
other taxes. There are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such

determination is made.

Held-to-maturity investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity as held to maturity.
This classification requires significant judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity. If
the Group fails to keep these investments to maturity other than for the specific
circumstances — for example, selling an insignificant amount close to maturity —

will be required to reclassify the entire class as available for sale. The investments

would therefore be measured at fair value not amortised cost.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment property,
and has developed criteria in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to eam rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows largely independently
of the other assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that
is held to eamn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions could be sold separately or leased out separately under
a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment property only if an
insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not

qualify as an investment property.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year, are described below.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level
of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying
value of deferred tax assets relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December
2012 was approximately HK$3.7 million (201 1: HK$5.9 million). The amount of
unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2012 was approximately HK$46.7 million
(2011: HK$30.9 million). Further details are contained in note |5 to the financial

statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment allowances on loans and advances to customers and accounts

receivable

The Group reviews its loans and advances to customers and accounts receivable
to assess impairment at least on a monthly basis. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in profit or loss, the Group makes judgements
as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows. This evidence may include observable
data indicating that there has been an adverse change in the payment status
of borrowers in the Group. Management uses estimates based on historical
loss experience when scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows
are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual
loss experience. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will affect the carrying value of loans and receivables and thus the

impairment charge in the period in which such estimate is changed.

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The fair value of financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or
loss that are not traded in an active market is determined by using external
valuations or valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at each
reporting date. Valuation techniques used include the use of comparable recent
arm'’s length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and
other valuation techniques commonly used by other market participants. Changes
in assumptions on the valuation techniques could affect the reported fair value of

these financial assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting

provided to the Group's senior executive management. The Group's operating

businesses are structured and managed separately according to the nature of their

operations and the services they provide. Each of the Group's operating segments

represents a strategic business unit that offers services which are subject to risks

and retumns that are different from those of the other operating segments. Details

of each of the operating segments are as follows:

@

()

the dealing and broking segment engages in the provision of securities,

futures and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking to customers;

the corporate finance segment engages in the provision of advisory services,

placing and underwriting services;

the asset management segment engages in asset management, including fund

management and the provision of investment advisory services;

the loans and financing activities segment engages in the provision of margin
financing to margin customers, initial public offering (“IPO") loans, other

loans to customers and bank deposits;

the investment holding segment represents interest income, dividend
income and gains or losses from listed equity investments and other unlisted

investments; and

the “others” segment mainly represents rental income, the provision of

information channel services and others.

Inter-segment transactions, if any, are conducted with reference to the prices

charged to third parties and there was no change in the basis during the years
ended 31 December 201 | and 2012.
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4. PBHEE)
The segment information provided to the management for the reportable segments REE-_ZET——FN_T——"F+—-A
for the year ended 31 December 201 | and 2012 is as follows: =t+—HIEE REEERIUZRS
B D BERWT
Year ended 31 December 2012 BE-_E-—_F+-A=1+—-HLEE
Loans and
Dealingand ~ Corporate Asset  financing  Investment
broking finance management  activities holding Others Total
EER L&V
BLx® LXME ZEEE METD REXER Hth @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000  HK$000  HK$'000
TAr TEr TEx TEx TEx  TEx  THEx
Segment revenue and PHURER
other income: HitA
Sales to extemal customers  HEFANEES 24533 156988 31387 276149 57513 4170 790740
Inter-segment sales PEEEE = = = = = = =
Total @z 264,533 156,988 31,387 276,149 57,513 4170 790,740
Segment results PEEE 69,671 51,730 (1,028) 177516 57,513 = 355,402
Income tax expense FEHR (48252)
Profit for the year FREA 307,150
Other segment information: At A EEs
Depreciation wE 8,779 6,182 1216 9,766 — — 25,943
Finance costs BEMA 13 — — 7225 — — 7238
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4. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4, PB/EE)
Year ended 3| December 201 BE-2——-F1+-A=t-HLEE
Loans and
Dealingand ~ Corporate Asset  financing  Investment
broking finance - management activities holding Others Total
EER EXR

BeF%  GXBE KEER BALY BAXH At fazt
HKPOOD  HKS000  HKS000  HKPOOO  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
TRn AR TER  TER  TER  TEnT TR

Segment revenue and ABhER
other income: HilA

Sales to external customers  HE TR 307334 136619 B3I 214793 8672 245 703154
Inter-segment sales N BHE - - - - - - -
Total @t 317334 136619 B3 214793 8672 245 703,154
Segment results PEEE 102783 55,875 4313 158592 8672 — 33023
Income tax expense FEHAEYX (42,787)
Profit for the year EREA 287448

Other segment information: L BER

Depreciation k= 10253 5564 1217 7528 — — 2456
Finance costs HERA 18 — — 2228 — — 2246
EREZEZEARERERLD T 121
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4. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4. oBHREE)
Geographical information i35 & R
(a)  Revenue from extemal customers @ IIEEFKz
2012 2011
- —T——%
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
Hong Kong BB 705,496 611807
Other countries HBIx 85,244 91,347
790,740 703,154
The revenue information above is based on the location of the markets/ RSB ETISmE SR
customers. FiREl o
(b)  Non-current assets b) FrBEE
All non-current assets (excludes financial instruments and deferred tax AEBRAETHEE(TRES
assets) of the Group are located in Hong Kong. BTARNEEFRBEE)HURNE
;% o
122 GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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REVENUE 5. Wi
An analysis of revenue, which is also the Group's tumover, is as follows: WEH(MEAEEEEB)NAITMT
2012 2011
—B--f —T——F%
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TRT
Dealing and broking: BERKEER
Commission on securities dealing and broking BREENBRERNRS 187,398 234523
Commission on futures dealing and broking HESERKLEEBNAS 51,619 53,485
Handling income on dealing and broking BERBEEBOFEBRA 24,444 28,470
Net income on leveraged foreign exchange TERINE B B R L EBH
dealing and broking LN 1,072 856
Corporate Finance: hEAE
Placing and underwriting and sub-underwriting commission  BZ%E + EL8E R A B ENAE
— Debt securities —EHEs 15,878 —
— Equity securities - REZ5 71,447 99,589
Consultancy and financial advisory fee income ERRBEEAERA 69,663 37,030
Asset management: BEER
Management fee income BEERA 18,851 19,503
Performance fee income KRBIA 12,536 3,808
Loans and financing activities: ERREELY
Interest income from margin loans FRERF WA 182,866 152,204
Interest income from term loans EHEHF WA 22,860 3,484
Interest income from IPO loans BRRFAZFEERHEMRA 97 650
Interest income from banks and others AT REAMFBHRA 64,506 52,635
Interest income from held-to-maturity investments REIRREN WA 5,820 5,820
.Axﬁﬁlﬁﬂ}ﬁﬂiﬁﬂﬁ’\a 123
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5. REVENUE (continued) Wik 2
2012 2011
—B--F —T——#%
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Investment holding; REXK
Net fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets HIEEZSREENATERS/
held for trading (B18) %8
— Unlisted debt securities —FLEMEBES 5,287 —
— Listed equities securities - FTREES (14,918) (31,168)
Interest income from unlisted debt securities HIEEEF LTEHES
held for trading GRS ON 2,742 —
Dividend income from listed equities securities RHEEE FHREE
held for trading BREKA 3228 4,885
Net fair value gain on financial assets designated EERATHEFABRER
at fair value through profit or loss BEATENRE 57,479 33,266
Interest income from unlisted financial assets BERAFEFABRIELT
designated at fair value through profit or loss REENFERA 3,695 1,689
786,570 700,729
6. OTHER INCOME Bk A
2012 2011
=F--F ZTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
Gross rental income from investment properties REMFERE WAL 2,832 920
Information services income ERBIEA 1,226 1,389
Others Hit 12 16
4,170 2425
124 GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRBIAER
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REBRBEET AN &R,/ (5t

ANRTEBEESD

2012 2011
~“E--F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TAT
Other operating expenses include: Hi@ &MY B
Auditors’ remuneration R
— audit services — ZER % 1,423 1237
~ interim review —h I 535 500
—tax and other services — B R H At AR 7% 174 80
Foreign exchange difference, net SNEFZ R (2,162) (2,183)
Information services expense BARBH X 10,767 11,988
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE  BEREENEE — 27
Marketing, advertising and promotion expenses mHHERE  ESREERAX 5,272 7,685
Professional and consultancy fee EXLHAE 23,151 16,982
Repair and maintenance (including system maintenance) 48 R4 (BIE R Fi4E#E) 11,599 9,570
Direct operating expenses arising from investment FRREHESRANRENERE
property that generated rental income during the year HMERLERX 118 443
Staff costs (including Directors’ remuneration): (Note 34) B THA(BEEEME) (H7E34)
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e A RER 170,847 147,210
Share-based compensation expense R AERBERX
— Share option scheme (Note 29(a)) — BT EI(M5E29(2)) 20,870 12,805
— Share award scheme (Note 29(b)) — i fn BEEDET 21 (B 29(b)) 8310 —
Pension scheme contributions BIREETEIA 2,457 1,901
202,484 161916
Finance costs: BB :
Bank loans and overdrafts wholly repayable BRAERNZHEEN
within five years BITERREBEL 6,828 2,156
Debit securities in issue (Note 27) BERTEEER (ME27) 298 —
Others At 12 90
7,238 2,246
I,J‘%‘zzllw}*ﬂxﬁﬂﬁ"ﬁ 125
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8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 8. FBHEAxX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) on EBNERM IR ENEESBELEN G
the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. FERRBORFIER R 165%(ZF——%F :
16.5%) Bt -
2012 2011
—E2-2f —2——F%
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Current — Hong Kong ENE—BANET
— Charge for the year —FRRAX 37,981 38,190
— Overprovision in prior years —REFEHRERE (171) (65)
Deferred (Note |5) BERE(FI5E15) 10,442 4662
Total tax charge for the year FARIAR X B 48,252 42,787

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax using the HERARNEAEEME Y BRANSNE 28

statutory rate to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows: EERELERRERAEZHEER ZHEDR
T
2012 2011
=F--fF ZT——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FET
Profit before tax B A A A 355,402 330,235
Tax at the statutory tax rate at 16.5% (201 1: 16.5%) BEERE 165%5TE 2 FIA 58,641 54,489
(ZF——%F 1 165%)

Overprovision in prior years BEFEHRERE (171) (65)
Income not subject to tax BRRBBA (24,820) (24,436)
Expenses not deductible for tax ARHIBR 12,485 12,873
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses BALHABIATNESR — (11412)
Tax losses not recognised AERTIERE 2,087 1,198
Temporary difference not recognised ABRERHERE 30 140
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate REASEERRXHE 2 HIEARX 48,252 42,787

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

2012 Annual Report



Notes to Financial Statements

U 25 e P

DIVIDENDS 9. KE
2012 2011
B —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Interim — HK$0.03 (201 I: HK$0.03) per ordinary share A Ei — R @A 0.03 57T
(ZF—%:00387) 49,200 49,200
Less: Dividend for shares held under the Company's B RBARE R B E
share award scheme FrEFAR 7 9 AR 8 (247 —
48,953 49,200
Proposed final — HK$0.07 (201 1: HK$0.06) BRE - §RERR007ET
per ordinary share (ZE——F 1 00687T) 114,800 98,400
Less: Dividend for shares held under the Company's B BB R R BRI 2RE 53
share award scheme P AR A7 O AR B 918) (284)
113,882 98,116*
162,835 147,316
* The Company paid a final dividend of approximately of HK$97,906,000 for the * ARAERNBEE-TE——F+=
year ended 3| December 2011, as further adjusted to exclude the dividend for the AZ+—-BLEEFERBRED
shares held under the Company's share award scheme amounting to approximately 9790600078 7T » 4 —FHE AR
HK$210,000 in respect of the award shares purchased in 2012. RNZE—_FER 7 RN KRR
EARRRIR D R BT A R 2
BR E.49210,0008 7T °
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the FARRKRR S ALK R AIRENRE
Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. ERRIBFEAEG LHUE - HAHEE -
BHREZBEBEEZERBERLA 127
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10.

128

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

@)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2012 is based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent of HK$307,003,000 (201 1: HK$287,706,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue less shares held for Share Award
Scheme of 1,630,943,000 (201 I: 1,639,932,000) during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent.
The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is
the number of ordinary shares in issue during the vear, as used in the basic
earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary

shares.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (continued)

(b)

Diluted earnings per share (continued)

The calculation of diluted eamings per share is as follows:

10.

S 5 A R R

BAAEERRREGEREN

(&)

()

SEBIRAH)
SRBERAOHE ST

2012 2011
—B-2f —2——F%
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders BRRIEBRREEE RN (FHET)
of the parent (in HK$'000) 307,003 287,706
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in AR EERERBNNEEITERR
issue less shares held for Share Award O N T 15 BUR A AR ) 22 b =1 &
Scheme used in the basic earnings per FAENBKRR (F&)
share calculation (in '000) 1,630,943 1,639,932
Effect of dilution — weighted average BEyE - TRRNMETHH
number of ordinary shares:
Awarded shares under the Share Award Rt £ BT 8178 T 6 BBz 7 (FA%)
Scheme (in '000) 2,321 —
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose HEREFRTIME R
of diluted earnings per share (in '000) LEREA (Fik) 1,633,264 1,639,932
Diluted earnings per share (in HK cents) SiEERR (B) 18.8 175

As the impact of the share option outstanding did not give rise to any

dilution effect on the basic eamings per share amounts presented for the

years ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December 201 |, no adjustment has

been made to the basic eamnings per share amounts in respect of the share

options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme.

BREZBEBEEZRBERRA
2012 4

RREARTTRBERENZETRE
BEE—Z——F+ZA=1—H
tEERBEE-_T——F+_-A
=+-BLFERINERERR
FMeBHREENE  RUERE
RAESTEIE TR ARITRBREL T
REABFSBEIELFE -
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Il.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT . % BERRE
Furniture Land  Leasehold
Office and and  improve-
equipment fixtures  buildings ments Motor
WAE B it HE  vehicles Total
RE REE REF UEE# RE #st
Group HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
xEE TE#xr T#Ex TEx FEx FExT TEx
For the year ended HE-T——F
3| December 201 | +ZA=+—HLLEE
Asat | January 201 | RZ_E——%—Hf—H
Cost KA 43719 1187 448776 3917 2004 499,603
Accumulated depreciation ZEIE (36421) (1,181 (9,532) (601) (1467)  (49.202)
Opening net canrying amount FREFE 7298 6 439244 3316 537 450,401
Additions NE 5750 | 411 — 10,768 — 17,929
Disposal HE (27) — — — — 27)
Depreciation provided during the year ~ FR#TE (4,633) (359) (12,034) (4,176) (208) (21,410
Closing net carrying amount FREEFE 8,388 1058 427210 9,908 329 446,893
R-T—F
As at 31 December 201 | +-ZA=1+—H
Cost KA 48894 2598 448776 14,685 2004 516957
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (40,506) (1540)  (21,566) (4777) (1,675)  (70064)
Net canrying amount BREFE 8,388 1058 427210 9,908 329 446893
For the year ended BE-Z-—-F
31 December 2012 TZRA=t+-RHILFE
Opening net carrying amount FOREFE 8,388 1,058 427210 9,908 329 446,893
Additions AE 5,279 4 — 17 — 5,300
Depreciation provided during the year  FR#TE (5,142) (471)  (12,034) (4,936) (208)  (22,791)
Closing net carrying amount FREmFE 8,525 591 415,176 4989 121 429402
RZE—ZF

As at 3| December 2012 +-A=+—-H
Cost KA 54,173 2602 448776 14,702 2,004 522257
Accumulated depreciation ZitinE (45,648) 011) (33,600 9.713) (1,883)  (92,855)
Net carrying amount BREFE 8,525 591 415176 4,989 121 429,402

The land and buildings included land in Hong Kong and are held under medium

term leases.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 12. REWZE
2012 2011

B —T——F
Group HK$'000 HK$'000
K& TR TR
At | January K—HA—H
Cost B 115,055 15,055
Accumulated depreciation Rt E (3,152) —
Net carrying amount REFE 111,903 15,055
At | January, net carrying amount R—A—H REF#E 111,903 115,055
Depreciation provided during the year FAFE (3,152) (3,152)
At 31 December, net carrying amount R+ZRA=+—0 " KE%AE 108,751 111,903
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H
Cost B 115,055 15,055
Accumulated depreciation ZEHNE (6,304) (3,152)
Net carrying amount REHE 108,751 111903

The investment properties are situated in Hong Kong and are held under medium

term leases.

The fair value of the investment properties was HK$165.9 million at 31 December
2012 (2011: HK$160.8 million) according to valuation performed by independent
professionally qualified valuer, Cushman & Wakefield Valuation Advisory Services
(HK) Limited. Valuations were based on current prices in an active market. No
impairment has been recognised for the investment properties for the year ended

31 December 2012 (201 I: nil).

BHREZBEBREREBRQF
2012 4 3R
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13. BREE
Club
Trading rights ~ membership Total
R5E Bfas Bt
Group HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
X&H TET TER TER
R-_F——F—-H—H"
Asat | January 2011, 31 December 2011  —ZE——&+-A=1+—HK
and 31 December 2012 —E——F+ZR=1+—H

Net carrying amounts REHE 1913 910 2,823
As at 31 December 2011 and 2012, the Group had three trading rights in The RZE——FR-_FE——F+=H
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and one trading right in The Hong Kong =t-B KAEEBRBRBEEHARS
Futures Exchange Limited. The intangible assets are not amortised for the years FIERARN=-AXSFEREAHER
ended 3| December 2011 and 2012 as the trading rights and club membership SHERARNN—AXS#E - AR S
have no expiry date. ERERERLMIBE  HBE-T

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2012 Annual Report

——ER-_E-—FF+-_A=+—HIL
FEVESBHEENEE -



Notes to Financial Statements

U 25 e P

14, OTHER ASSETS 14 Ht&E
2012 2011
“B--F —T——%
Group HK$'000 HK$'000
&M TR TR
Deposits with The Stock Exchange REBBMER S
of Hong Kong Limited: BERARMNES :
— Compensation fund —fEES 150 150
~ Fidelity fund -ERES 150 150
— Stamp duty deposit —HERiRe 500 500
Admission fee paid to Hong Kong Securities Clearing SNTEBRRRER
Company Limited BRARIEEAE 150 150
Guarantee fund paid to Hong Kong Securities IRNTEARREE
Clearing Company Limited BARAFNRES 370 460
Deposit with HKFE Clearing Corporation Limited REBHEEEARAAINES 1,500 1,500
Funds deposits with the Securities REFLBEEH
and Futures Commission EEZEgNES 50 50
2,870 2,960
The carrying amounts of the Group's other assets approximate to their fair values. AEEEMEENREERLEATER
BREZBEBEEZRBERRA 133
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I5. DEFERRED TAX 15 REHE
The movements on the deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are as FRELHEBEEENEESZSHNT
follows:
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE
Accelerated tax depreciation Fair value gains Total
MERBHE NYERE st
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
“g--f T4 ZB--f —“T——F “B--f —T——F
Group HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$'000
rEE TET  TAR TET THEL TR TEL
At | January R—H—H 3,590 1,056 5,489 9,079 1,056
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss RERENEEHES 376 2534 8,840 5489 9,216 8,023
At 31 December R+-A=t-H 3,966 3590 14329 5,489 18,295 9,079
Deferred tax assets BLHEHE
Unused tax losses Share based compensation Total
ABARAER IR0 R B0 0 5 B EH)
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
“B-CF 2% F ZB-°F % F Z%-2F 2% F
Group HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000
r&EE TER FEL TER TET TER FHL
At | January n—F—H 5891 2530 = 5,891 2,530
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to RERRRERE
profit or loss (i) / WA .221) 336 995 (1,226) 3,36
At 31 December M+ZA=+—H 3,670 5891 995 4665 5891
134 GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the subsidiaries are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxation authority. The
deferred income tax assets and liabilities are to be recovered and settled after one
year and the following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown

in the balance sheet.

I5

S 5 A R R

ELERE (&)

BRARERMNAAER —HBHENA
BHABEAHABRRRBERELR
15 - RIRTHE P D B MR FEWR A TR A
ERAGERREE BTRAREEE
REGBEHR—FETUKBREE - M
THEFABEEAHERETNERIAE
BERERAIIE -

2012 2011
2§ _T——F

Group HK$°000 HK$'000
AEE TER AT
Deferred income tax assets BRWAREEE 3,670 5891
Deferred income tax liabilities BERABIEAR (17,300) (9,079)
(13,630) (3,188)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$68.9 million
as at 31 December 2012 (201 1: HK$66.6 million), that are available indefinitely for

offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against which the tax

losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:

R-E——F+-A=+—8 A58
REBANBEEBBNAGBIEEST
(ZE——F:6BBBL) &RET
PR SHE £ B 1B 2 AR R TR B SR T v
Fl o

MBARIEEBEEAE —BRER M
MIBE BTG BREE R
B ZADABERTERAAELERE
BE-

WER T EEEZETHREE -

2012 2011
—E--F —T——F

Group HK$'000 HK$'000
rEE FExT FAT
Tax losses HMIBEE 46,671 30,880
HEEZEBRERERAT 135
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16. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS l6 BEREHPRE
The movement in unlisted held-to-maturity investments which comprise one senior FEETHZINHEE(BE—RLEAR
note issued by a private company is summarised as follows. As at 31 December BINEBEAZR ) WESFMLT - BN =
2012, the senior note is classified as a current asset as it will mature within one E——F4+-A=+—H REXRZ
year. BER—FENIE  HHOBRRBHEE -
2012 2011
2§ _T——F
Group HK$°000 HK$'000
AEE THER FET
At | January R—A—H 77,728 77,833
Exchange difference P (208) (105)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—~H 77,520 77,728
The Group has not reclassified any financial assets measured at amortised cost REBNEREE T D BT AEE
rather than at fair value during the year (201 1: Nil). WMAMIEALEAENEREE(ZS
——F &)
17. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 17 ERREFBX
2012 2011
2§ _T——F
Group HK$'000 HK$'000
AEE THER FET
Margin loans FREXR 2,679,678 1,997,019
Term loans to customers EFTHER 379,103 67335
Gross loans and advances to customers ERRRFPBRBRE 3,058,78I 2,064,354
Less: impairment o ORE (679) (139)
3,058,102 2,064,215
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LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

Margin financing operations

The Group provides customers with margin financing for securities transactions,
which are secured by customers’ securities held as collateral. The maximum credit
limit granted for each customer is based on the customer's financial background
and the quality of related collateral. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and has a Credit and Risk Management Department to

monitor credit risks.

Margin loans to the customers are secured by the underlying pledged securities,
bear interest at a rate with reference to the Hong Kong dollar prime rate and are
repayable on demand. The carrying value of margin loans approximates to their fair
values. No aging analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the Directors, an aging
analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature of the margin loans
business. The amount of credit facilities granted to margin clients is determined by
the discounted market value of the collateral securities accepted by the Group. As
at 31 December 2012, the total value of securities pledged as collateral in respect
of the margin loans was approximately HK$ 17,830 million (201 I: HK$8,289 million)

based on the market value of the securities as at the end of the reporting period.

Term loans to customers

The Group also provides term loans to customers. In determining the interest
rates, reference is made to the credit standing of the relevant customers and the
quality of the collateral pledged. The term loans granted to customers amounted
to HK$367,700,000 (201 1: HK$67,026,000), and the accrued interests amounted
to HK$11,403,000 (201 1: HK$309,000) as at 31 December 2012. The carrying

amounts of the term loans to customers approximate to their fair values.
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LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

Term loans to customers (continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of loans and advances to customers

are as follows:

17 BERREFERE)

EFEHEM (&)
ERREFEFRERBEDNT -

2012 2011

—E--f —T——F

Group HK$’000 HK$'000
&M TER TR
As at | January R—A—H 139 —
Impairment losses charged to profit or loss FABRNRERER 864 139
Impairment losses reversed to profit or loss BOZBEaREER (324) —
As at 3| December Nt-A=1+—H 679 139

Included in the above provision of impairment of margin loans is a provision for
individually impaired margin loans of HK$679,000 (201 I: HK$139,000) with a
carrying amount before provision of HK$679,000 (201 1: HK$1,004,000). Save as
disclosed above, all loans and advances to customers were neither past due nor

impaired as at 31 December 2012 and 201 1.

FRHFREFREEFEBEREFERNR
A2 BARHOAET(ZE——4F:
1,004,000 7% 7T ) Y & 51 5L (B 7 & & 3R &
#5679,0008 T(=ZF ——4F : 139,000/8
7)o B EXPTREES  MEERKE
FPRFERABH TAR-_T-—ZFK
—E——F+ZA=+—HREAE-
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ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 18 MEWRIE
(a)  Analysis of accounts receivable (a) BRFAELH
The carrying values of accounts receivable arising from the course of business REBEBBREHAELHEUNR
of the Group are as follows: BERREENT
2012 2011
=F--F ZTF
Group HK$'000 HK$'000
rEH TER TEX
Accounts receivable arising from dealing and broking B B & 4842 % 15 &= 4 F) JE U IR
— cash and custodian clients ~-BeRAERF 23,758 21,343
— the Stock Exchange and other clearing houses — B R A E AT 264,568 20,231
— brokers and dealers ~BRERRHE 706,313 293,709
Accounts receivable arising from corporate finance, T%EE - BEEELIKE
asset management and investment holding EEE SN EIGIE
— corporate clients and investment funds —CERPRREES 40,554 13,092
1,035,193 348,375
Less: impairment B RE (12,006) (12,009)
1,023,187 336,366
BREZEBRERERAA 139
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8. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 18 MEWFRIEE)
(b)  Accounts receivable neither past due nor impaired (b) BERBHIABELERE
Accounts Accounts
receivable receivable
Accounts  from the Stock from corporate
receivable  Exchange and Accounts clients and
from cash  other clearing receivable investment
and custodian houses  from brokers funds
cients  FEWUE AR and dealers Btz
EURER REf EUELER EFRRE Total
HERFRE GEMYE  REERE EERAE @zt
Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A&H TR TR TR TiEn TR
Asat3| December 2012 R=B-Z#+ZA=+-H
Neither past due FRGHAMARE
nor impaired 11,447 264,568 706,313 38,578 1,020,906

Asat 3| December 2011 RZE——F+-A=1+—H

Neither past due BARBETARE
nor impaired 6,765 20231 293,709 12,300 333,005
Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients which are neither past BER B BT A RE O EUIR & Mt
due nor impaired represent unsettled client trades on various securities ERPRIEENTRESR HTHE
exchanges transacted on the last two to three business days prior to the year TREERRIREME=AE %8
end date. No aging analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the Directors, HMREENZTER G RNZR
an aging analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature of these B REERE  ERNZEREI
accounts receivable. HIERLE - RO B
SMEME - AR TR RERE DT o
140 GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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8. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 18 MEWRIEE)
(c)  Accounts receivable past due but not impaired (c) BEHEXBENENGE
Accounts Accounts
receivable receivable
Accounts  from the Stock from corporate
receivable  Exchange and Accounts clients and
from cash  other clearing receivable investment
and custodian houses  from brokers funds
dients  FEEERFR and dealers Btz
EURER REf EUELER EFRRE Total
AERFHE  AEFRE  RIEAE EERAE @zt
Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A&H TR TR TR TET TR
Asat3| December 2012 R=B-Z#+ZA=+-H
Past due less than 6 months %8875 18 A AR 276 — — 150 426
Past due 6to 12 months  BERE+{AA - = - 1,826 1,826
276 = = 1,976 2,252

Asat 3| December 2011 RZZE——F+-A=1+—H

Past due less than 6 months 58758 A BAR 2,543 — — — 2,543
Past due 6 to 12 months ~ BEINE+Z{EA — — — 79 9
2,543 — — 792 3,335

MEEZEBERERA D 141
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ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

(©)

Accounts receivable past due but not impaired (continued)

Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients which are past due but
not impaired represent client trades on various securities exchanges which
are unsettled beyond the settlement date. When the cash and custodian
clients fail to settle on the settlement date, the Group has the rights to
force-sell the collateral underlying the securities transactions. The outstanding
accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients as at 31 December
2011 and 2012 are considered past due but not impaired after taking into
consideration the recoverability from the collaterals. The collateral held

against such receivable is publicly traded securities.

Accounts receivable from corporate clients and investment funds which
are past due but not impaired represent receivables arising from asset
management, corporate finance and advisory services which have not
yet been settled by clients after the Group's normal credit period. The
outstanding accounts receivable from corporate clients and investment funds
as at 31 December 2011 and 2012 are considered not to be impaired as the

credit rating and reputation of the trade counterparties are sound.

18 EWREZE)

(©
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ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 18 FEWFRIE#E)
Impaired accounts receivable EREEKHE
Accounts Accounts
receivable receivable
Accounts  from the Stock from corporate
receivable  Exchange and Accounts clients and
from cash  other clearing receivable investment
and custodian houses  from brokers funds
cients  FEWUE AR and dealers 3061
EURER REf EUELER EFRRE Total
HERFRE GEMYE  REERE EERAE @zt
Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A&H TR TR TR TiEn TR
Asat3| December 2012 R=B-Z#+ZA=+-H
Impaired accounts EREEREE
receivable 12,035 = = = 12,035
Less: impairment WA (12,006) — — — (12,006)
29 = = = 29
Asat 3| December 2011 RZE——F+-A=+—H
Impaired accounts EREEYREE
receivable 12,035 — — — 12,035
Less: impairment W RfE (12,009) — — — (12,009)
26 — — — 26

Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients are considered impaired

when clients fail to settle according to settlement terms after taking into

consideration the recoverability of collateral.

21 /ngﬂ.ﬁi\(}ﬁﬂiﬁﬂﬁl\a
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ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

(d)  Impaired accounts receivable (continued)

18 FEWFHIE#E)
(4 EREEUFEE)

The movements in provision for impairment of accounts receivable are as FEWFIBRERGEESHOT
follows:
2012 2011

=F--F ZTF
Group HK$'000 HK$'000
rEH TER TET
As at | January K—H—H 12,009 11,828
Impairment losses charged to profit or loss FTABREHEER 7 183
Impairment losses reversed to profit or loss RO ZBEaMREER (2) (2)
Amount written off as uncollectible Mg AT A E R FIE 8) —
As at 3| December m+-A=+—H 12,006 12,009

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

19 FANKE - RERHEAMELR

2012 2011
=F--F ZTF
Group HK$°000 HK$'000
2 TEE AT
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BNTIE - e KA M ERTE 14,093 10,227
Interest receivables JE R 8 8,808 7,808
22,901 18,035

Company

ESNG

Prepayments, utility and other deposits BNFE - AAREREMESE 1,549 625

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets

included in the above balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent

history of default.

TREERBBRTARRME o SEALBERR
THEERTRNYEEOCHNERFABR -
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

B FE R R P EE

20 BAFEFABZENESRMEE

2012 2011
—2--F —FT——F
Group HK$'000 HK$'000
r5E TER TET
Financial assets held for trading: RIEEENSMEE -
Listed equity investments, at fair value FHRAKRE - BATVE
—in Hong Kong —REB 75,854 51,607
—in United States —REH 22 —
Unlisted debt investments, at fair value FETEBRE  BRATE 214,137 —
Financial assets designated as at fair value BERRTETA
through profit or loss BameRiE
— unlisted equity investment (Note (a)) —JEETRARE (M1 (a) — 39,000
— unlisted debt investment —FETEHRE 73,963 —
— unlisted convertible promissory note (the “Convertible ~ —3F E T Al R ZH ([ AR EE])
Promissory Note”) (Note (b)) (5T (b)) 118,244 60,109
482,220 150,716

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are

recorded in revenue (Note 5).

Notes:

(@  The Group has entered into a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”) in May 2011 to acquire non-voting equity shares of a company (the
“Investee") amounting to HK$22,855,000. During the current year, the ordinary
shares of the Investee were listed on the Stock Exchange and such Hong Kong listed

equity investment has been classified as financial assets held for trading.

Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, if the audited and forecasted consolidated
profit after tax of the Investee for the two years ended 30 June 201 | and 2012 is less
than a certain threshold level, the Group will be compensated for the shortfall. No
compensation has been recognised for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2012

as the audited consolidated results of the Investee met the threshold level.

BHREZBEBREREBRQF
2012 4 3R
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(b)

The Group purchased a two-year Convertible Promissory Note issued by a third
party (the “Issuer”) amounting to approximately HK$42,650,000 in May 201 1. The
Convertible Promissory Note bear interest at the Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate plus an interest spread and the interest income accrued for the year ended 31
December 2012 was HK$2,780,000 (201 I: HK$1,689,000).

Pursuant to a warrant agreement entered into between the Issuer and the Group in
May 2011, the Issuer guaranteed that the audited and forecasted consolidated profit
after tax of the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer (the “Project Company") for
the years ended 31 December 2010 and 201 | should not be less than a certain
threshold level, otherwise the Group will be compensated by the Issuer for the
shortfall (the “Profit Guarantee 2010 and 201 1™).

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Issuer and the Group agreed to
extend the maturity of the Convertible Promissory Note to 31 December 2014. The
Profit Guarantee 2010 and 201 | were released and the number of convertible shares

attributable to the Convertible Promissory Note were increased.

In addition, the Group will be compensated for the shortfall if the audited
consolidated profit after tax of the Project Company for either the year ending
31 December 2013 or for the year ending 31 December 2014 is less than certain
threshold levels, depending on which year the Project Company would be listed on
the Stock Exchange. No compensation has been recognised for the year ended 31
December 2012.

The fair value of Convertible Promissory Note was determined by using binomial
pricing model. The increase in fair value as at 31 December 2012 was mainly due to

the increase in number of convertible shares as mentioned above.

20 BAVEFAEZHEREEZ)
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Notes to Financial Statements

CLIENT TRUST BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Client trust bank balances

The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts with authorised financial
institutions to hold clients’ deposits arising from business transactions. The Group s
not allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its own obligations under the Hong

Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571).

21

B R M

EFERRTEABRRAERRES
B4
EFfARTEe

AEBRRA 2 RMEBRARBULELK
P URHEFPALEEEABRHELN
TR - REREES ARG (FEE
BIEs712)  AEREFEHREPREA
EFEBHER -

Cash and cash equivalents RERELZEY
2012 201 |
=F--F ZTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Cash and bank balances e RIRITH 258,754 319,798
Time deposits EHER 125,800 342,058
384,554 661,856
2012 2011
—E--f —ZT——F
Company HK$'000 HK$'000
Vi UN T FAT
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTHE R 521 104

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to HK$13,068,000 (201 I:
HK$8,782,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to

conduct foreign exchange business.

BREZBEBEEZRBERRA
2012 4

RBERHERE  25ERE LT
TEHENARBIAREDHER
13,068,000/ JL(=F — — 4 : 8,782,000
BL)  ARBETSEBHARAENE
AW REBEFEINETERAE
EERNEEEAT FAEEFEER
RETHNEXZB RITEARBLAR
Hi g -
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21.  CLIENT TRUST BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND CASH 2l BFERARTHEBKASRRLE
EQUIVALENTS (continued) B (&)
Cash and cash equivalents (continued) REREZZEY (&)
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. BIEZERSERTEINRIEZH
Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and MEHBE - BHTFHERZERBANT
three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and —BE=A BEAEEZAEHESE
eam interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances SKIME - Wi B @R B E A Rt
and pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no history of B RITEBNEREREFAGER
defautt. 417 A EERELBRITP -
22.  INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY 22 REBLAARE
2012 2011
—B-2f —2——F%
Company HK$’000 HK$'000
b YN TERT FEL
Unlisted shares, at cost EEMRIN IR AE 1,280,765 1,268,440
Capital contribution in respect of employee PR B AR AERE
share-based compensation FMLE 28,378 12,325
Receipt of capital in respect of employee FLiE B LA RETEE
share-based compensation HENE B R (2,590) —
1,306,553 1,280,765
148 GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 22 RHBRARKREE)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 are as follows: RZEBE——F+-A=1+—H0" [EBA
AIEFFEMT
Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued ordinary Percentage of equity
operations share capital attributable to
the Company
Company name TEMRL ERTEER NG 3 Principal activities
DREM T NEE REBDL TERK
Direct Indirect
E# CF:3
Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Samoa/ HK$31,980,000 100% —  Investment holding and provision of general
EZREZ(BB)ERAA Hong Kong 31,980,000/ 7T administration and support services to its
BEL /B subsidiaries
RETERR N EL BB A R FR
—REBRIERE
Guotai Junan Securities Hong Kong HK$2,000,000,000 — 100%  Securities dealing and broking
(Hong Kong) Limited B 2,000,000,000 7 7T FEREE R
ARERES(BE)BRRA
Guotai Junan Futures Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 — 100%  Futures dealing and broking
(Hong Kong) Limited B 50,000,000/ HEEE MR
AREZHE(EE)ERAR
Guotai Junan Finance Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 — 100% Money lending and trading in securities
(Hong Kong) Limited B 1,000,000 % 7T BEREFER
BREBELHB(BE)BRAF
Guotai Junan Capital Limited Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 — 100%  Provision of consultancy and financial
advisory services
ERZZBEABRAR Bt 50,000,000/ 7T fRfitat A R BB AR S
BHREZBEBEEZERBERLA 149
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INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 2 RMBARREE)
Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued ordinary Percentage of equity
operations share capital attributable to
the Company
Company name EEa o A BRTEER AATIEMK  Principal activities
NRER Ty WEE BEOL FERK
Direct Indirect
B GF:3
Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 — [00%  Asset management
EREREETE(TH) BB 5,000,000 &7 BEEE
BRAA
Guotai Junan Fund Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 — 50%  Asset management and trading in securities
Management Limited' 0 10,000,000 % 7T BEEERESFEER
BEEZELERERLA
Guotai Junan FX Limited Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 — 100%  Leveraged foreign exchange dealing and
BRELZINERRRA BB 30,000,000/ broking

BEEAMNER S RELR

Note |1 The Group considers that it has the ability to govern the financial and operating

policies of the entity as the Group has the power to appoint or remove the

majority of the members of its board of directors.

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

demand. The carrying amounts approximate to the fair values as at the end of the

reporting period.
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ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 23 BAXRE
2012 2011
B —T——F
Group HK$'000 HK$'000
&M TR TRT
Accounts payable arising from dealing and broking HEE RS EBEERENRIE
— clients -&F 6,657,187 6,345,325
— brokers and dealers ~BRRX5E 270,443 48,869
— the Stock Exchange and other clearing houses —BRAREMEEMR — 25,680
Accounts payable arising from underwriting, ABl - EEEE  tERER
asset management, corporate finance and BRI E 4 B BN F0R
advisory services
— corporate clients —EEP 28,188 51,361
6,955,818 6,471,235
The majority of the accounts payable are repayable on demand except for certain REDENRIEEBRBERERFER
accounts payable to clients which represent margin deposits received from clients HETENTEFHRERREF EAJ—.E
for their trading activities under the normal course of business. Only the excess FERBRPETEERIRREFN
amounts over the required margin deposits stipulated are repayable on demand. RECKIN - REBLATREENE

BANERBEEEP -

The Group has a practice to satisfy all the requests for payment within one business AEEERE | BAZEBRNFEMENK
day. No aging analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of Directors, the aging analysis Ex - REEVTEEERR DT RE
does not give additional value in view of the nature of these businesses. REFZRIZFEHONE  RikD

A gt BIMERE -

Accounts payable to clients also include those payables in trust accounts with BRTEFEORATBEFERNRBAH
authorised institutions of HK$5,884 million (201 1: HK$6,122 million), Hong Kong BELIEPHS4EEET(ZE——
Futures Exchange Clearing Corporation Limited and other futures dealers of F6INAEET) BRAHPEER

HK$328 million (201 I: HK$224 million). RAFREMAERFIBEA328EEE

T(ZE——F  24BEHET) °

Accounts payable are non interest bearing except for the accounts payable to the PRIEEM R PRI - BRNFIBETEE

clients.
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SUBSCRIPTION MONIES RECEIVED IN ADVANCE 24
Pursuant to the placing and subscription agreement (the “Agreement”) dated 20
December 2012, GJHL agreed i) to place its existing 85,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company through Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited, as the
placing agent, to two independent parties at a placing price of HK$2.20 each; and
i) to subscribe for the same number of ordinary shares of the Company that GJHL
has placed as mentioned above at a subscription price of HK$2.20 each. At the
reporting date, the Group has received the proceeds of subscription monies of

approximately HK$186.8 million.

On 3 January 2013, the Company allotted and issued 85,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each to GJHL at the subscription price of HK$2.20 each.

HAWRBERIE
BEBBHA-_T-—-+=-A=1H
NEERBBHR(ZHRE]  BFR
EXERAZ)ERAERERES (B
BIERAR(EREERE)REER
BR20BTAMEBLAREALS
85,000,000 R AR RIRA Ei@AR : Rii) 1B
BR2L2WETHABERE LRERE
ZEBRAMEEAR AL ARMEREE
B RARMAEE  REEBDRIGR
BASZUBEN 1868 BEET o

R-ZE—=ZF—A=ZH AREEER
BESR220EBTMERE RERE S
K %47 85,000,000 fx & i E{E 0.1 /& T HY
L@ -

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 25 HMaEMFERESRE
2012 2011

~“E--F —T——F
Group HK$'000 HK$'000
AEE THx FHBT
Other payables H it IR 3,287 919
Accrued liabilities FEFT SR 91,735 76,869
Total st 95,022 77,788
Company
PN
Accrued liabilities 5T OR 1,008 1,005

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of three

months.
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 26 TEETES
2012 2011
—2--fF ZT—F
Group HK$'000 HK$'000
A& TER TET
Secured bank borrowings BEERRITER 360,000 —
Unsecured bank borrowings EHEMRITER 379,820 200,000
Total bank borrowings RITIEREHE 739,820 200,000

Bank loans of HK$360 million (201 1: nil) were secured by certain of the listed
shares pledged by the customers to the Group as margin loan collateral which had
an aggregate fair value amounting to HK$1,372.4 million as at 31 December 2012
(201 1: nil).

In addition, the Company has guaranteed certain of the Group's bank borrowings

up to HK$530 million (201 I: HK$530 million) as at the end of the reporting period.

At at 31 December 2012, the Group's bank borrowings comprise of borrowings
which are denominated in HKD amounting to HK$510,000,000 (201 I:
HK$200,000,000), denominated in RMB amounting to HK$ 136,796,000 (201 I: nil)
and denominated in USD amounting to HK$93,024,000 (201 I: nil).

The Group's bank borrowings bear interest at the Interbank Offered Rate plus an
interest spread per annum and are repayable within three months or less at the

end of the reporting period.

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate to their fair values as

the impact on discounting is not significant.

./J‘EK.Fﬂ}ﬁHXEBE’\E
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27. DEBT SECURITIES IN ISSUE 27 BRITEHKZS
2012 2011
—EF--fF ZT—F
Group and Company HK$’000 HK$'000
KEEREAT FERT FET
At amortised cost: R
HK$ medium-term note AR HERE 86,000 —

The outstanding balance of HK$86 million (2011: nil) represents unlisted notes KREEHRBGEEBAT(ZE—F : )R
issued by the Company under the Medium Term Note Programme (the "MTN NARERSE RS2 ([hEE R )3T

Programme”). HFELTRE o

The Group has not had any defaults of principal, interest or other breaches with REBRERNTEHZRTAAE - FEsiH A

respect to their liabilities during the year (201 I nil) KEBTEEANBR(ZE—F &) -
28. SHARE CAPITAL 28 BRA
2012 2011
—BE--F —T——F
Shares HK$°000 HK$'000
B4 TER TAT
Authorised: ETE
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.| each 10,000,000,000 BR &A% 0.1 A& 70K E @Ak 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
1,640,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 1,640,000,000 A% &A% 0.1 78 L HO & AR 164,000 164,000
154 GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to Financial Statements

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION RESERVE

The Company operates two equity-settled share-based compensation schemes

including a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) and a share award

scheme (the “Share Award Scheme") for the purpose of assisting in recruiting,

retaining and motivating key staff members. Eligible participants of the schemes

include the Company's Directors, including independent non-executive directors,

and other employees of the Group.

@)

Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme became effective on 19 June 2010 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that

date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted to
be granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise,
to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible participant in
the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess

of this limit is subject to shareholders" approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director or chief executive of the Company,
or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share options granted
to an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company's
shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month

period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

BHREZBEBREREBRQF
2012 4 3R
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29.

156

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION RESERVE (continued)

@)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from
the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$! in
total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors, and commences after a vesting period of one
to three years and ends on a date which is not later than ten years from the

date of offer of the share options.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors, but
may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company's shares on the date of offer of the share options; (ii) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value (i.e.

HK$0.10 each) of the Company’s ordinary share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at

shareholders’ meetings.

On 10 June 2011, 40,000,000 share options have been granted to the

directors and employees with the exercise price of HK$4.30 per share.

The fair value of the equity-settled share options was estimated on the date
of grant using a binomial pricing model, taking into account the terms and

conditions upon which the options were granted.
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Notes to Financial Statements

29. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION RESERVE (continued)

@)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The following table lists out the key inputs to the model used:

Share price at the date of grant (per share) HK$3.25
Exercise price (per share) HK$4.30
Expected volatility 45.17%
Expected dividend yield |.78%
Risk-free interest rate 223%
Weighted average share option price (per share) HK$0.97

The expected volatility and the expected dividend vyield reflect the
assumptions that the historical volatility and the historical dividend yield,
respectively, are indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily be the

actual outcome.

On 24 April 2012, the Board resolved to cancel the outstanding share
options and granted new options to the same grantees with the exercise
price of HK$2.50 per share. Among the share options granted, a total of
13,500,000 share options were granted to the Directors of the Company.
The closing price of the Company's shares prior to the date of grant of
the share options was HK$2.50 per share. The option period of the share
options is from 24 April 2012 to 9 June 2021. One-third of the share options
granted was vested on 10 June 2012. The outstanding two-thirds of the
share options granted will be vested on 10 June 2013 and 2014 respectively.
The reduction in the exercise price of the above share options resulted in an

incremental fair value of HK$8,739,000 at the modification date.

./J‘EK.Fﬂ}ﬁHXEBE’\E
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SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION RESERVE (continued) 29 LURGAEENEMNEEZ)
(a)  Share Option Scheme (continued) () HERETE(E)
The fair value of the equity-settled share options was estimated on the date BREERRENATENREE
of grant using a binomial pricing model, taking into account the terms and R HBREN R R EG - R
conditions upon which the options were granted. AEA—EAEBREAMTEL -
The following table lists out the key inputs to the model used: TREVFFERERN T B8 AR
%
Share price at the date of grant (per share) HK$2.50 REH B EIR 250/ 7T
RE(ER)
Exercise price (per share) HK$2.50 TEE(ER) 2508 7T
Expected volatility 52.16% TRHER IR 52.16%
Expected dividend yield 271% RHR S X 271%
Risk-free interest rate 1.12% g P 1.12%
Weighted average share option price (per share) HK$0.83 IR 0.83%87T
BRCEER
(BH)
The expected volatility and the expected dividend vyield reflect the EHRIE R AR R X R ERRA
assumptions that the historical volatility and the historical dividend vyield, FREBEREESFIAFREK
respectively, are indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily be the BEMETER - KAt ER A
actual outcome. E
During the year, 333,333 share options were forfeited and 666,667 share REA - BRNEERE - RNEEH
options lapsed prior to the vesting dates as a result of staff resignation. HiRD - 33333 EREC HME
666,667 17 BB &K ©
No share options were exercised during the year ended 31 December 2012 HE2-_Z——F+=-A=+—H
(201 1: nil). IEFE - TEBREETE(ZE
——F )
For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group has recognised a share- BE-T——F+-A=1T—-HL
based compensation expense of HK$20,870,000 for the share options under FE  AEECHBRESEET
the Share Option Scheme in profit or loss (201 1: HK$12,805,000). MBRENESHERARG BE
7 4 B B 2208700008 TT(— &
——% : 12,805,000/ 7T) °
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SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION RESERVE (continued) 29

@)

Share Option Scheme (continued) (a)

Movements of share options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme

during the year are as follows:

B FE R R P EE

IR AR B 2 R BB e ()
BRES B (E)

FRBRETEPARTERREZZ
BT

2012 2011
—E-—& —T——F

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options

il R HEF
e BREHE IEE BhEHE
HKS$ per share '000 HKS$ per share ‘000
BRER T BRET Tn
At | January n—A—H 430 40,000 — —
Cancelled during the year FRTH 430 (40,000) — —
Granted during the year R 2.50 40,000 430 40,000
Forfeited during the year FERNWHME 2.50 (333) — -
Lapsed during the year FREM 2.50 (667) — —
At 3| December WtZA=t—H 250 39,000 430 40,000

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 39,000,000 (201 I:
40,000,000) share options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme,
which represented approximately 2.38% (2011: 2.44%) of the Company's
shares in issue as at 31 December 2012. The exercise in full of the remaining
share options would, under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 39,000,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of HK$3,900,000 and share premium of
HK$93,600,000 (before issuance expenses).

BREZBEBEEZRBERRA
2012 4

RERE KR - A F)AF 39,000,000 (=
T — — F 140,000,00017 ) B8 B% #E 5T &
TRATEZERE ERRATARE
—ZF+ZRA=T-HZEBEIRHL
238%(ZF ——F : 244%) - BEAR
AR ZEARE  BEHRERERH
171 - 2EHEIMETT39,000000 RAA
Al AR - AR E8SMR 7K 3,900,000 %8 T
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SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION RESERVE (continued)

()

Share award scheme

On 27 October 2011, the Company adopted the Share Award Scheme
under which shares of the Company (the “Awarded Shares”) may be
awarded to selected employees (including Directors) of any members of
the Group (the “Selected Employees”) pursuant to the terms of the scheme
rules and trust deed of the Share Award Scheme. The Share Award Scheme
became effective on the adoption date and, unless otherwise terminated or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date, i.e. 26 October
2021.

The aggregate number of the Awarded Shares permitted to be awarded
under the Share Award Scheme throughout the duration of the Share
Award Scheme is limited to 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the adoption date. The maximum number of the Awarded Shares
which may be awarded to a Selected Employee in any 12-month period up
to and including the date of award shall not in aggregate exceed 1% of the

issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption date.

When a selected employee has satisfied all vesting conditions, which might
include service and/or performance conditions, specified by the Board of
the Company at the time of making the award and become entitled to
the shares of the Company forming the subject of the award, the trustee
shall transfer the relevant Awarded Shares to that employee at no cost.
The selected employee however is not entitled to receive any income or
distribution, such as dividend derived from the unvested Awarded Shares

allocated to him/her.
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29. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION RESERVE (continued)

(b)  Share award scheme (continued)

Details of the Awarded Shares awarded during the year ended 3|
December 2012 (201 I nil) are set out below:

B FE R R P EE

29 UBRGAEBROFMEE )
() Bi7E[TE (E)

TRUIME-F-=F1=A
=+ -BLEERRLERY
(CF——F : BMHE

Number of Average fair

shares awarded value per share
Date of award RBRH BRI Vesting date
ZBAH HEE FHAY¥E BEEM
30 March 2012 7,494,000 HK$2.15  30/11/2012, 30/11/2013 and 30/11/2014
“F-Zf=A=tH LSBT ZF-ZFT-AZFE ZF-=F

T—A=TREZZ-NF+—-HA=+H

21 May 2012 182,000 HK$2.52  30/11/2012, 30/11/2013 and 30/11/2014
“T-—FRAZ+—H 2528t —E-_Ft+—-A=1tH —FT-=F

On 24 November 2012, the vesting date of 1,360,000 out of 2,506,000
Awarded Shares, which were expected to be vested on 30 November 2012,
was deferred to 24 June 2013. The remaining 1,146,000 Awarded Shares
have been either transferred to the grantee, or sold in accordance with their

instructions on 30 November 2012 at no cost accordingly.

205,000 awarded shares lapsed prior to its vesting date as a result of staff

resignation.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group has recognised a share-
based compensation expense of HK$8,310,000 for the Awarded Shares
under the Share Award Scheme in profit or loss (201 : nil).

/J\EK.E&\(}ﬁHXEBE/\E
2012 4 4

T-A=TER-F-DNF+—-A=1H

RZE-—Z5+—-AZ+@HA -
2,506,000/ %% By Bk ) & F 0
1,360,000 A% S BN AR 13 (FEt R = F
—:¢+—ﬂ:+aﬁ*>\ﬁ%
HEEEZ— —ERAZ+TE
Ho%?hwww%ﬁ@hh
RZE—ZF+—A=THEER
ARETERMBEEEET RS
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30. SHARES HELD UNDER THE SHARE AWARD SCHEME 30 BEROCEBTEFENRSG
Movements of shares held under the Share Award Scheme during the year are as RIER GO BB EF GNP FEREN
follows: ZEHMT :

2012 2011
—E-—f —T——F
Number of Number of
HK$'000 shares '000 HK$'000  shares '000
REE ing B
TET BAF 5t TAET PAFEE
At | January K—A—H 9,384 4,727 — —
Purchased during the year RENEE 21,724 9,530 9,384 4727
Vested during the year RERFEE (2,275) (1,146) — —
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 28,833 13,111 9,384 4727
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31. RESERVES 31 B
(a)  Group () ZAEH
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein are AEBNBBLERESHNGS
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. BEEHRANER
Other reserve of the Group as at 31 December 2011 and 2012 represents R-BE—FEN-_ZT——F+-A
merger reserve, being the difference between the issued share capital of =+—H AEBEMBEEESH
Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited and the amount of share capital and il IERER(EBEB)BRA
share premium of the Company transferred and issued to GJHL in exchange AN R TRAEANNG MHEE
for the entire issued share capital of Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited. TR AT IR A R IR R B
(REBEREZ(FE)ERAA
ME2HEETRA)SBEZENE
B o
(b)  Company (b) FERA
Shares held
under the
Share  share award
Share award scheme
Share option reseve  RERD  Proposed Retained
premium reeve  ROEE  EEE dividend profits
RiVEE BRERME W HAMRD  HERE  REEN
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
THEL THEL TEL TAL TEL TEL
At | January 201 | RZZ——%-A-H 2768723 — — — 82,000 3119
Total comprehensive income ENPEYGER
for the year — — — — — 146823
Recognition of equity-settled BREREEEIN
share-based payment R [ 89500E
(Note 29(a)) (M#290) — 12,805 - - — —
Purchase of shares under the share 8 B fR 17 12 BT &| T A)
award scheme (Note 30) TRt (M 30) — — — (9,384) — —
Final dividend paid XARERE — — - - (82,000 —
Interim dividend decared and paid BRI ERE
(Note 9) (M&E9) - - — — - (49,200
Proposed final dividend (Note 9)  BEEAREBIR 8. (H5E9) — — - - 98,116 (98,116)
BREZERERBERAA 163
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31.  RESERVES (continued) 31 REE)
(b)  Company (continued) (b) ERAEFE)
Shares held
under the

Share  share award

Share award scheme
Share option reserve  BRBRM  Proposed Retained
premium reserve  RORE  RBIE  dividend profits
ROEE BRERE fée HEORH KRR RERN
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TR TER TER

At 31 Decernber 2011 and RZF——%+-A

| January 2012 =t-ARZR-CZf

—R—8 2,768,723 12,805 = (9,384) 98,116 2,626

Total comprehensive income FREEYREE

for the year = = = = = 170,746
Recognition of equity-settled BRI

share-based payment B3 IR

(Note 29(a) and 29(b)) (H#29() R 29(b)) — 20,870 8310 - - -
Purchase of shares held under the BB RER (KB EHE

share award scheme EIR1 (M9 & 30)

(Note 9 and 30) = = = (21,724) (210) 210
Vesting of shares for the share st RBeT 8l

award scheme (Note 29(0) GBI

and 30) (B 29(a) &.30) — — (2,590) 2275 - 315
Transfer of share option reserve RERERUESER

upon the forfeiture of BRERR

share options = (345) = = = 345
Final dividend paid AT RERE — — - - (97,906) —
Interim dividend declared and ERERXNTHRE

paid (Note 9) (M&E9) = - - - — (48953)
Proposed final dividend (Note 9)  #ERRERIR 8 (FH3E9) — — - — 113882 (113:882)
At 31 December 2012 R-F-—%

TZA=1-H 2,768,723 33,330 5720 (28833) 113,882 11,407
164 GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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31.  RESERVES (continued) 31 fRE#E)
(b)  Company (continued) () FAHE)
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent for the year HE_Z——F+_-_A=1t—Hit
ended 31 December 2012 includes a profit of HK$170,746,000 (201 1: FERAREE AELEESENE
HK$146,823,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of 170,746,008 T (ZF——
the Company. F 1 146,823,000 7T ) * ZEHE

BEEARAMBHRRARE -
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32.

166

OPERATING LEASE AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (Note 12) under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms of three years. The terms of the

leases generally also require the tenants to pay security deposits.

At 31 December 2012, the Group had total future minimum lease receivables

under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

32

KeHEREFRE
fERHBA

AEBRBELEHELHEEEREY
F(WeE12) HALEARRS=F -1
ERFN—BAEEP XM EMLE -
RZE-ZF+ZA=+—0 ' REL
AREEEEEE TR R AR BN R
RN REREFREENT :

2012 2011

~“B--f —T——F

Group HK$’000 HK$'000
Ay 3L | TR TR
Within one year —FR 3,810 2,159
In the second to fifth years, inclusive R_ZLF(BHEEEME) 4,133 3,539
7,943 5,698

The Group had capital commitments for IT upgrade of approximately
HK$2,103,000 which were contracted but not provided for as at 31 December
2012 (201 1: HK$570,000).
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has undertaken underwriting obligations to capture placing and IPO
activities. The Board has resolved to ensure that the Group has adequate working
capital to meet such obligations. As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no
material underwriting obligations (201 |: HK$388.3 million).

In addition to the guarantee provided in respect of bank borrowings as mentioned
in note 26, as at 3|1 December 2012, the Company provided guarantees up to
US$30 million equivalent to approximately HK$232.6 million (201 I: nil) in favour
of a financial institution in respect of the trading limit granted to a wholly-owned
subsidiary principally engaged in the provision of securities dealing and broking

services.

As at 31 December 2011, the Company had also provided guarantees in
favour of financial institutions in respect of the trading limit of a wholly-owned
subsidiary principally engaged in futures dealing and broking services amounting to
approximately HK$155.5 million, the guarantees were released during the year of
2012.

BHREZBEBREREBRQF
2012 4 3R

33

U 25 e P

RAEE
AREREERBERAARBENRED
REBHAR ZEFAABEZER
B ABRRAEERERCNEELS
RETEARZ R —ZF+=HA
=t+—H AEEVESABHEEREZ
T——F :3883BBAT) °

BR T B 5 26 R BT 6 A SRAT A SRR IR 4
WERN  RZE-—ZF+_A=+—
A FARABRFENZEFBEERLL
XBN—H2ENBARNR HRER
—FHeREERETRERZBEE
TEERN6EBAEL)(ZT——
FT)MER-

R-_ZE——F+=-A=+—H8 ' £ARQF
TA—RMEIENEHEEERLCLER
MNE2EMBARNRSREMSREE
RETABDISSSHEBTLHER =
TGN ZEERCER -

167



Notes to Financial Statements

o 25 i P

34. DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 34 EEREHEEEMS
(a)  Directors’ emoluments () EEHE
The emoluments of every Director of the Company paid/payable by the rEEHEZE-_E——FR-ZE—C
Group for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2012 are set out below: FE+-A=t+—BLEEERJE
NARARZEZHOMEEIIMT
Year ended 3| December 2012 BZ2-_E—_F+-A=+—-HL
£E
Share-based
compensation expense
NRAAERNRERS Pension
Share Share scheme
Directors’ Salary and Option Award  contribution  Discretionary
Name of Director fee allowance Scheme Scheme e bonuses Total
38 EShe  HORE  BREE ROREHE  FEER  BERC Ch

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TiERr TiEn TiEn TiEn TR

Executive Directors: HiIEE:

Yim Fung B = [,944 3,204 2642 14 14927 nnl

Yao Wei © fhigo - 4“7 - - - - 47

Li Guangje BRA - 1,667 801 09 14 1176 3887

Li Sang, Edweard ZE = 1,590 801 29 14 I,I16 3750

Wong Tung Ching I%E - 2 1,602 %97 14 4872 9,706

Non-executive FHEE

Directors:

Chen Geng® B — - - — - - -

Fu Tingmei® fEgxo 300 - 267 - - - 567

Song Ming® X G 300 - 27 - - - 57

Tsang Yiu Keung® LigRo 300 = 267 = = = 567
900 7,869 7,209 4097 56 22,091 2m
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34. DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 34 EEREHEEEMEE)
(continued)
(a)  Directors’ emoluments (continued) () EEME(E)
Year ended 31 December 201 | HE-ZE——F+-_A=+—H1
£E
Share-based
compensation expense
HRBAERNHERR Pension
Share Share scheme
Directors’ Salary and Option Award  contribution  Discretionary
Name of Director fe  allowance Scheme Scheme e bonuses Total
B3t Exhe  HERRE  BRERD RORMIE  FBUR BERL et

HKS000  HKSO00  HK$000  HK$000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HK$000
TERL TERL TEL TET TET TEL TET

Executive Directors: HIEE:

Yim Fung [ - 1,944 1920 — 2 13870 17746
Li Guangje A - 1530 480 - 2 924 2946
Li Sang Fdward 3 - 1485 480 - 2 924 2901
Wong Tung Ching %5 - 2160 960 - 2 403 7164
Non-executive HHTEE
Drectors:
Chen Geng® Rt - - - - - - -
Fu Tingmei® Ao 30 - 160 - - - 40
Song Ming px: G 30 — 160 — - - 460
Tsang Yiu Keung LiEmo 300 - 160 — — — 440
900 719 4300 — 18 19,750 137
In addition to the directors’ emoluments disclosed above, Yao Wei received BEXNFHRENESEHS  RN-F
emoluments of HK$150,000 (201 1: nil) from the Company’s intermediate ——E+-A=+—HIFEE - ik
holding company, Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited, for the year BERADNTHRNERATEREL
ended 3| December 2012. No apportionment has been made as the S RIZEIR B IR A 7 U 150,000 7
Directors consider that it is impracticable to apportion this amount between T (—E—%  8) c ARE
his service to the Group and the intermediate holding company. R A M AREFEP N
RANRBRTNERS - Sute
BB -
BEZEBERERQA 169
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

@)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

(@)  Chen Geng resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from 24 August
2012. Chen Geng waived emolument of HK$193,000 and HK$300,000 for
the years ended 31 Decmeber 2012 and 31 December 201 |, respectively.

(b)  Yao Wei was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 24 August
2012.

() Independent Non-executive Directors

Save as Note (a) above, there was no arrangement under which a director

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the years.

As illustrated in above table, during the year certain directors were granted
share options and Awarded Shares in respect of their services to the Group,
under the Share Option Scheme and the Share Award Scheme of the
Company, further details of which are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements. The fair values of such options and Awarded Shares which have
been recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as
at the date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for

the current year is included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.
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34.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

Notes to Financial Statements

The amounts of commission of sales generated by the individuals have

been excluded when considering the five highest paid employees during the

year and the comparative figures have been aligned accordingly. The five

highest paid individuals included two (201 I: two) directors, details of whose

remuneration are set out in note 34(a) above. Details of the remuneration of

the remaining three (201 I: three) non-directors and highest paid employees

for the year are as follows:

()

S 5 A R R

34 EEREHEBEEME(£)

EREHMA L

A mHHESNRABTEIE
EAABEFNEENES M
FIUBIATHILES - Afi &
BEMEENBERA(ZE——
FWB)ESE HFMFBEIER
EXHiE34a) c FREH=R(Z
T——F: ZR)FEESEFTH
EEMHMFERT -

2012 2011
—E--f —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Salary and allowance e RoRE 4,862 4,847
Share-based compensation expense PARR D R ETE R E R 2

— Share Option Scheme —BRETE 1,602 1,440

— Share Award Scheme — Rt BT 2l 442
Pension scheme contribution RIS BIHEK 23 24
Discretionary bonuses FIBTEAL 5,569 3,850
12,498 10,161

The emoluments of the highest-paid individuals of the Group fall within the

following bands:

AEESEFHALHHSN TR
THE

Number of employees

BEAH
2012 2011
—E--f —T——F
Emolument bands & £ E
— HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 —3,000,001 /B 7T E 3,500,000/ 7T — 3
— HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 —3,500,001 /& 7T 2 4,000,000 % 7T I
— HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 —4,000,001 /87T E 4,500,000 /8 7T 2 —
3 3
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 35 RETHELNRERE
2012 2011
—B-2f —T——F%
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
Cash flows from operating activities RETHELENHESRE
Profit before tax BRBEAE F 355,402 330235
Adjustments for: KERE
Depreciation e 25,943 24562
Share-based compensation expense DARR A7 A ZE 188 6 3 B A 29,180 12,805
Finance costs MEKRAR 7,238 2246
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE  BERREEE — 27
Impairment of loans and advances to customers LTEPHERRBHRE 540 139
Impairment of accounts receivable JE WEIERE 5 181
Foreign exchange loss on held-to-maturity investments BEIHR AR EE 208 105
418516 370,300
Decrease/(increase) in other assets HibBER D /(L) 90 (90)
Increase in financial assets at fair value BATEABRNEREELEM
through profit or loss (331,504) (66,617)
Increase in loans and advances to customers BTEFREPBIEN (994,435) (88,460)
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable FEW SIEGEM),/ W (686,818) 599,036
Increase in prepayments, deposits and other receivables  JESFUA + #&d K H Al UFRIELE I (4,866) (6,065)
Decrease/(increase) in client trust bank balances REERBITEHRL,/(Em) 237,827 (246,797)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable BB I, CRd) 484,583 (307,705)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and accrued liabilities =4t FE1S FR I8 K JEATFR AL I,/ (R ) 17,234 (28,373)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations mEXB(BR)/EERE (859,373) 225229
Interest paid ERFIE (7,238) (2,246)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREEFNER (49,426) (44,245)
Net cash flows (used in)/from operating activities REEY(BA)/ EEREREFE (916,037) 178,738
Cash flows from operating activities included: REFBNRENERSE -
~ Interest received —B2IHE 278,806 211,861
— Dividend received —BHE 3,228 4885
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MATURITY PROFILE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 36 EBEERABMHIAER

An analysis of the maturity profile of certain assets and liabilities of the Group AEBETEENEBEREHHEE
analysed by the remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the ZAENIHEN M GAR 2 BBERD
contractual maturity date is as follows: DB U

Upto | tolessthan 3 to less than
| month 3 months 12months | to 5 years Total
—BAUT —-Z=f@A ZE+=fAR —-EIF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FEx FET FERT TR

As at 31 December 2012 R-E-Zf#+=-A=1+-H
Held-to-maturity investments ~ F 2 5|HiIZ & — — 77,520 — 77,520

Loans and advances to BERREFRT
customers 2,750,038 — 267,967 40,097 3,058,102
Accounts receivable FEMGIE 1,022,639 162 386 — 1,023,187
Financial assets at fair value BATETABRNEREE
through profit or loss = = = 406,403 406,403
Client trust bank balances RPERRITES 5,613,936 270,005 — — 5,883,94|
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREeEEY 354,780 29,774 384,554
9,741,393 299,941 345,873 446,500 10,833,707
Accounts payable FERRE (6,955,818) — — —  (6955818)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t SR 1T{E K (739,820) — — = (739,820)
Debt securities in issue ERITRBES — (86,000) — — (86,000)
(7,695,638) (86,000) — —  (7781,638)
BEERERERERAD A 173
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MATURITY PROFILE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

36 BEREBNIGERE)

Upto | Ttolessthan 3 tolessthan
month 3 months [2months | to 5 years Total
—@AKRT —-Z=f@A =Z=+=f@A —E8%F @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FAET FET T FET
As at 3| December 201 | R-E——E+-A=+—H
Held-to-maturity investments 5 2 5|#j1& & — — — 77728 77728
Loans and advances ERREPB
o customers 2,002,066 47026 15,123 — 2,064,215
Accounts receivable el 335,179 68| 506 — 336,366
Financial assets at fair value BATEFABRNSRHEE
through profit or loss — — — 60,109 60,109
Client trust bank balances X PEFRITHALR 5,845,871 275897 — — 6,121,768
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEEEN 432,530 229326 — — 661,856
8615646 552930 15,629 137837 9,322,042
Accounts payable B FIE (6:469,235) (2,000) — —  (6471235)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5T 8 3R{THE TR — (200,000) — — (200,000)
(6,469,235 (202,000) — —  (6671,235)
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37 BMARSZ
In addition to the transactions and balances set out elsewhere in the financial (a) [S/f\}j/\\ﬁﬁ%%&i‘%% EFHERIIEN
statements, the Group had the following material transactions with related SN REBRERNERS ,Jj'
parties during the year. L{TMTEﬁE
Notes 2012 2011
ME  —B--fF —F—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
Commission expenses to the TR TFREZERRF
ultimate holding company MAERx 0] (3,016) (4232)
Professional and consultancy fee paidtoa N TRZMBARMEERFEAE (il (15,000) (12,000)
fellow subsidiary
Management fee income and BASENBRRER
performance fee income from the RRAZMEARRE
private fund managed by a subsidiary MALEESKINEREKRA
of the Group and invested by RERERA
a fellow subsidiary (iil) 632 861
Commission income from a private fund LEESWRINAEEKA (iv) 35 75
Management fee income and BARRIZENBARER
performance fee income of a private REAZMBEARRE
fund managed by a wholly-owned mALEE SR
subsidiary of the Company and invested ERENARKRBRA
by a fellow subsidiary (v) 15,362 6,673
Total fees received from the private fund ~ FLEESWEMEAE (vi) 2,655 2252
Commission income of a public fund BRRERARERNLEES
managed by the ultimate holding company — UREREI S YA (vi) 949 1,205
Professional and consultancy fee paid to IRTFREBZRRENEEREAE
the uttimate holding company (viil) (990) —
Commission income from the BHRMERAFBBROEE KA
intermediate holding company (ix) 583 —
I,J‘%‘;zllw}ﬁﬂxﬁﬂﬁ"ﬁ 175
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 37
(@)  (continued)

BHAERZ(E)
@ (#&)
Notes 2012 201 |
B EE —E--f —ZT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TRT

Commission income from the BREERARKBRNEEKA

ultimate holding company (x) 59 —
Management fee income of a private BARRZAMBARIER

fund managed by a wholly-owned RRAZMBEARREN

subsidiary of the Company and LEESUINEREKRA

invested by a fellow subsidiary (xi) = 625
Performance fee expense to the private fund FAEEERARREHT (xii) (1,932) —
Commission income from the private fund ~ FAEESYEMFH LKA (xiil — 62
Management fee income from public BARRZAMBARIER

funds managed by a wholly-owned RRAZMBEARREN

subsidiary of the Company and REESIHAERERA

invested by a fellow subsidiary (xiv) 5518 [I16
Commission income from the REEWEH

investment funds ik N (xv) 380 100
Commission income from key BASEEEEEABKM

management personnel of the Group G0N (xvi) 9 10
Notes: BfsE -
() The commission expenses to the ultimate holding company were calculated (i) S FHEREER AR NEER

based on 30% of the commission income earned from clients trading
Shenzhen and Shanghai B shares.

(i) The professional and consultancy fee paid to a fellow subsidiary for the
provision of capital market information was charged at HK$ 1,250,000 per
month for the year ended 31 December 2012 (201 I: HK$ 1,000,000 per
month).
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 37

(@)

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i

(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

Notes to Financial Statements
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BBARS(E)
@@ (#&)

Pt - ()

The management fee income and performance fee income received from a iy BARAKBAREERRZR
private fund managed by a subsidiary of the Company and invested by a fellow MBARRENLEES I
subsidiary were charged at 1.25% per annum of the net asset value (“NAV") NERBWARKBRBRARL
at the last working day of each month and 20% of the positive increment in HE-_T——FK-_T——F
the NAV for the years ended 31 December 201 | and 2012. TZAZ+-HIEFESA®
—EIEANEEFE(E
EFEDBFIBAREE
FEIS R 20% 0 E -
The commission income received from the private fund mentioned in note (iii) vy BLEXMEGMALEES
above was charged at 0.125% of the transaction value. WHNEEBARZZFED
0.125% U % o
The management fee income and performance fee income received from V) BARAZEWNBRAAEERK
a private fund managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and BRNBRABRENLERES
invested by a fellow subsidiary were charged at 1.5% per annum of the NAV WERNEREWRARKREER
at the last working day of each month and 20% of the positive increment in ANRBE-_Z——FR_F
the NAV for the years ended 31 December 201 | and 2012. ——F+-A=+—HUIFE
FABB—EATEANEEF
BEEFE 5% A REEFEEM
R 20% W& o
The total fees received from the private fund mentioned in note (v) above i)  BMFEVATIALEES W
included commission income which was based on 0.25% of the transaction NEERBEMASBAGER
value and interest income which was based on an annual rate of 3% over the SEM025%HE ) RFIBUA
best lending rate on Hong Kong dollars quoted by The Standard Chartered (RO IEFE - FHER
Bank (Hong Kong) Limited on its overdue amount and other handling income. BITRT(EE)BR LD RMR
B BEF R IMN3%) K H A
FEEBWA -
The commission income received from a public fund managed by the ultimate (i) BEREERAREEMNASHE
holding company was charged at 0.25% of the transaction value. SUBNAS WAL ZER
0.25% 4% -
The professional and consultancy fee paid to the ultimate holding company Vi) XM FREERAFRNZEER
was based on the usage of research report provided to a wholly-owned BHBNRRETFAAT K
subsidiary of the Company. 2EMBRAINAERSEA
BUER -
The commission income received from the intermediate holding company was (x) BFRMERAFWERNESK

based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement with a wholly-

owned subsidiary of the Company.

BHREZBEBREREBRQF
2012 4 3R
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@)

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

*)

(i)

(i)

(xiv)

The commission income received from the ultimate holding company was
calculated based on percentage stated in the respective signed brokerage

agreement with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The management fee income received from a private fund was managed by a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and invested by a fellow subsidiary
were charged at 0.75% per annum of the NAV of the fund at the last working
day of each month for the year ended 31 December 201 1. The fund was

terminated on 3| December 201 1.

As the final net asset value of the private fund mentioned in note (xi) was less
than a certain threshold level, the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

retumed 50% of the performance fee income eamed.

The commission income received from the private fund mentioned in note
(xi) was based on a percentage stated in the respective signed brokerage

agreement with another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The management fee income received from three public funds (201 1: one)
managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and invested by a
fellow subsidiary was charged at 0.8% to 1.5% per annum of the NAV of the
funds at each valuation day for the years ended 31 December 201 | and 2012.

The commission income received from investment funds mentioned in
note (xiv) above was based on a percentage stated in the respective signed

brokerage agreement with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@)

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xvii)

(xix)

The commission income received from key management personnel of the
Group was based on a percentage stated in the respective signed brokerage

agreement with another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Included in the Group's accounts payable is a broker payable due to the
ultimate holding company of HK$72,321,000 (201 I: HK$19,461,000) arising
from dealing in securities as at 3| December 2012. The balance is unsecured,
interest-free and payable on the settlement day under the relevant market

practices.

Included in the Group's accounts receivable is a broker receivable due from
the ultimate holding company of HK$49,659,000 (201 I: HK$49,350,000)
arising from dealing in securities as at 31 December 2012. The credit terms
provided to the ultimate holding company are consistent with the practice
of the securities dealing industry. The balance is unsecured, interest-free and

receivable on the settlement day under the relevant market practices.

Included in the accounts receivable are management fee and performance fee
receivables due from investment funds managed by the Group and invested
by a fellow subsidiary of HK$11,216,000 (201 I: HK$818,000) arising from
the provision of asset management services as at 3|1 December 2012. The

balances are unsecured, interest-free and receivable monthly in arrears.

|
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(xviii)
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 37

(@)

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(xx)  Included in the client trust bank balance is a deposit from key management
personnel of the Group of HK$507,000 (201 I: HK$54,000) as at 31
December 2012.

(xxi) Included in the Group's accounts payable are the accounts payable to certain
investment funds managed by the Group above arising from dealing in
securities in an aggregate amount of HK$13,570,000 (201 I: HK$52,530,000)
as at 31 December 2012. The Group has a practice to satisfy all requests for

payment within one business day.

(xxil)  Included in the Group's accounts receivable are the accounts receivable from
the private fund mentioned in note (iii) above of HK$2,655000 as at 31
December 2012.

(xxiii) Included in the Group's other payables and accrued liabilities is a security
deposit received from a fellow subsidiary under an operating lease of its
investment property of HK$226,000 (201 I: Nil) as at 31 December 2012.

(xxiv) Included in the client trust bank balance is a deposit from an intermediate
holding company of HK$ 18,106,000 (201 I: Nil) as at 31 December 2012.

The related party transactions in respect of items (i) to (x) and (xvi) above
also constitute connected transactions or continuing connected transactions

as defined in Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the remuneration of the key management personnel of the Group

are disclosed in note 34.
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Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and monitoring of such risks which are an inevitable consequence of
being in business. The Group's aim is therefore to achieve an appropriate balance
between risk and return and minimise potential adverse effect on the Group's

financial performance.

The Group's risk management policies are approved by the Board of Directors
and are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits
and controls and to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable
and up-to-date information. The Board of Directors provides written principles for
overall risk management. The Group regularly reviews its risk management policies

to reflect any change in the market and clients.

The Group's principal financial assets and liabilities comprise cash and short term
deposits maintained as working capital as well as held-to-maturity investments and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as loans and advances to customers and accounts
receivable as well as accounts payable, debt securities in issue and bank borrowings,

which arise directly from its operations.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are credit risk, market
risk and liquidity risk. The policies for managing each of these risks are summarised

below:

Credit risk

Credit exposures arise principally from loans and advances to customers, accounts
receivable from clients, brokers and dealers, corporate clients and investment funds,
held-to-maturity investments, bank balances and client trust bank balances which

are included in the Group's asset portfolio.

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Board of Directors delegates to the Credit Committee the duties to monitor
the credit risk of the Group. Members of the Credit Committee include, the Chief
Executive Officer, Responsible Officers, the Chief Financial Officer and the Director
of Credit and Risk Management Department. The Credit Committee is responsible

for the development of financing business and approval of major credit exposure.

The Credit and Risk Management Department is responsible for approval,
monitoring, review of the Group's credit risk. It is also responsible for making
settlement calls when the trades of margin clients exceed their respective limits.
Failure to meet margin calls may result in liquidation of the client’s position. The
credit limit and margin limit for each client and the lending ratio of securities
acceptable as margin collateral prepared by the Credit and Risk Management

Department will be further approved by the Credit Committee.
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38.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued)

The Group also grants term loans to customers that may contain an element of
credit risk. The Group minimises such risk exposure by performing detailed credit
analysis, and dedicated professionals are assigned to oversee and monitor the
performance. These key investment decisions are also subject to approval by the

Credit Committee.

Loans and advances to customers including IPO loans for subscription of new
shares are normally settled within | week from the drawdown date. Forced
liquidation action would be taken if the customers fail to settle their shortfall within

specific period of tolerance after IPO allotment result is announced.

For debt securities, external rating such as Standard & Poor's and Moody's ratings
or their equivalents are used by the Credit and Risk Management Department for
managing credit risk exposures as supplemented by the Group's own assessment

through the use of internal rating tools.

The Group's bank balances are deposited in respectable, large commercial banks.
For the client trust bank balances which are held in segregated accounts, they are
deposited in authorised financial institutions in Hong Kong. The credit risk of bank

balances and client trust bank balances are considered to be manageable.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued)

Accounts receivable from clients represent receivables from clients arising from
dealing in securities, which normally had a delivery-against payment settlement
term of 2 to 3 days. The Group allows credit up to the settlement dates of
the respective securities transactions (normally within T+2 or T+3 days). All
applications for credit limits must be reviewed by Credit Manager and approved by
any member of the Credit Committee. However, no credit limit would be granted
to new clients. The Credit and Risk Management Department determines whether
forced liquidation action is to be taken against clients with overdue balances on a

case-by-case basis. The Credit Committee regularly reviews the overdue balances.

The Group only accepts margin deposits in the form of cash for futures and
leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking. No transaction is allowed to
execute if the current position of the customer exceeds its trading limit. The margin
deposit placed and the aggregate of the required margin deposits of each futures
and leveraged foreign exchange contract are timely monitored by both the dealers
and the Credit and Risk Management Department. Margin calls will be executed
by the on-site duty staff for futures and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and
broking if there is a deficit with the margin deposit. Forced liquidation of the client's

position will be executed if the customer fails to meet the margin calls.
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38.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued)

With the above stated controls, management is confident that the credit risk of the
Group resulting from securities, futures and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and

broking as well as margin and other loan financing is manageable.

Accounts receivable from brokers and dealers are placed with large financial
institutions which are governed by regulators including the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (the "HKMA”) and the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission
(the "SFC"). The credit risk of accounts receivable from brokers and dealers is

considered to be manageable.

The credit risk of accounts receivable from corporate clients and investment
funds arising from corporate finance, asset management and investment holding is

manageable as the credit rating and reputation of trade counterparties are sound.

Accounts receivable from the Stock Exchange and other clearing houses and other
assets which are mainly deposits placed with the regulators are considered to have

minimal credit risk.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Impairment and provisioning policies

The Group's credit and risk management policy requires the review of individual
outstanding amounts at least monthly or more regularly depending on individual
circumstances or market condition. Impairment allowances on individually assessed
accounts are determined by an evaluation of the incurred loss at the end of the
reporting period on a case-by-case basis, and are applied to all individually significant
accounts. The assessment normally encompasses collateral held and the anticipated
receipts for that individual account. Generally, impairment allowances will be
provided when clients fail to meet margin call requirements and clients collateral

are insufficient to cover their outstanding loan balances.

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit

enhancements

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that the counterparties
fail to perform their obligations as at the end of the reporting period, in relation to
each class of financial assets, is the carrying amount of those assets as indicated in

the statement of financial position.

These amounts represent the worst case scenario of credit risk exposure to the
Group at 31 December 2011 and 2012, without taking account of any collateral

held or other credit enhancements attached.

The Company is also exposed to credit risk through the granting of financial
guarantees, further details of which are disclosed in note 33 to the financial

statements.
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38.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

Bank balances and client trust bank balances

The counterparties of all client trust bank balances and the majority of cash
and bank balances are located in Hong Kong. As the Group's bank balances
and client trust bank balances are deposited with a number of financially
sound financial institutions, in the opinion of the directors, the concentration
risk of the Group's bank balances and client trust bank balances is

insignificant.

Loans and advances to customers and accounts receivable from clients

The counterparties of the majority of loans and advances to customers
(including margin loans, IPO loans and other loan financing) and accounts
receivable from clients are individuals who are mainly located in China. The
Credit and Risk Management Department daily prepares key margin client
and future and leveraged foreign exchange client exposure for review to
avoid excessive concentration risk. As the Group trades with a large number
of diversified clients, in the opinion of the directors, the concentration risk
of loans and advances to customers and accounts receivable from clients is

manageable.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure (continued)

() Accounts receivable from brokers, dealers as well as clearing houses and

others

The Group also has accounts receivable from clearing houses, brokers and
dealers from its securities, derivative and leveraged foreign exchange broking
and dealing as well as other receivables from asset management, corporate
finance and investment holdings. Responsible Officers timely monitor excess
deposits placed with dealers and brokers to ensure the concentration risk of

accounts receivable is manageable.

Held-to-maturity investments

The table below presents an analysis of held-to-maturity investments by rating

agency designation at 31 December, based on Moody's ratings:
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2012 2011

8- —T——F%

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TRT

Neither past due nor impaired: BB H TR

Ba2 Ba2 77,520 77,728
No impairment provision has been recognised for the held-to-maturity investments n- —E+-A=+—B1E®E
as at 31 December 2012 (201 I: Nil). zE \]Eﬁ} BRATMHERE —ZT——
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38.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency
and equity products, all of which are exposed to general and specific market
movements and changes in the level of volatility of market rates or prices such as

interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

The financial instruments held by the Group mainly exposed it to interest rate
risk and price risk. The market risk mainly includes cash flow interest rate risk and
price risk. The Group has established policies and procedures for monitoring and

controlling the market risk arising from these financial instruments.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group's loans and advances to customers, accounts receivable,
accounts payable to clients, debt securities in issue, bank borrowings, client trust

bank balances and cash and bank balances.

Interest on cash at banks will fluctuate at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Bank borrowings, debt securities in issue and margin loans receivable at
variable rates exposed the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Other financial
assets and liabilities are non-interest-bearing. The Group mitigates its interest rate
risk by monitoring market interest rate movements and revising the interest rates
offered to its customers on an ongoing basis in order to limit potential adverse

effects of interest rate movements on net interest income.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group regularly calculates the impact on profit or loss of a possible interest
rate shift on its portfolio of bank borrowings, margin loans receivable and interest-

bearing bank deposits.

If there would be a general increase/decrease in the interest rate by one percentage
point, with all other variables held constant, the profit before tax for the year
ended 31 December 2012 would have been increased/decreased by approximately
HK$85 million (201 1: HK$86 million). The estimated one percentage point increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change

in interest rates over the period until the next annual reporting period.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk from equity instruments held
by the Group which are classified on the statement of financial position as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. Price risk is the risk of changes in fair value
of financial instruments from fluctuations, whether such change in price is caused
by factors specific to the individual instrument or factors affecting all instruments
traded in the markets. The Group mitigates its price risk by performing detailed due
diligence analysis of investment and dedicated professionals are assigned to oversee

and monitor the performance of investment.

At 31 December 2012, the profit before tax would increase/decrease by HK$6.0
million for the financial assets held for trading (201 1: HK$6.1 million) should the
Hang Seng Index (the “HSI") increase/decrease by 10% (2011: 10%). The analysis
is based on the assumption that all the equity instruments move according to the

historical correlation with the HSI and with all other variables held constant.

The asset quality of the margin clients margin collateral will also deteriorate when
the market comes down drastically. Scenario analysis and stress testing are regularly

performed on an individual client basis.
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38.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movements in foreign currency
exchange rates will affect the Group's financial results and its cash flows.
Management considers the Group is not exposed to significant foreign currency
risk as the majority of its operations and transactions are in Hong Kong and

denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars.

For leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking, stringent control over the open
position has been adopted. In the opinion of the directors, the foreign exchange

risk of the Group is minimal.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash, the availability
of funding from an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to
close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business,
the Finance Department maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining available

committed credit facilities from the banks.

Sources of liquidity are daily reviewed by the Finance Department to ensure the

availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet all obligations.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity reserve (comprising
undrawn borrowing facilities) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of
expected cash flows in strict compliance with statutory requirements. This is
achieved by monitoring the liquidity position of the individual companies within the
Group on a daily basis to ensure the availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet all
obligations and compliance with the statutory requirements such as the Hong Kong

Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules.

BHREZBEBREREBRQF
2012 4 3R

38

S 5 A R R

SHERER®)
mEaRE (&

SHERR

NERBIEFEAKREMBRERER
TREMMEEXZENER - BEE
RE ARAEEARIRERZI SN
RERLUNETRETLEE  AEEY
EBAIMER °

HRERAIIERHGNEEMELE
B AREHRYERZERTEME
REOEHIERE - EERR - AKEMA
S RIINE BLBR G HH o

RBELEE

ERNRDESAREEDEERRE
WRS FALAREEBANEAE
ERAES RARNEETREE -
AN EBEBNS BT - BHHES
FBOAENT ARG EERE RS
SHEFEL -

BHEAEEERRRDES IR - R
AEGRRRDES  BIIMAEL-

ERERBERAREREEENEEN
NPELRBERRARNERRE)
ERERREFENORFEA A&
RETEERK - REDLAT A
EFEEESHERETRARNRDESMN
N EREARGERERNRDELE
THAEE YNABREEER(INE
BEsE (MHER) R -

191



Notes to Financial Statements

o 25 i P

38.

192

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

38 CREREES)

The following table summarises the maturity profiles of the Group and Company's

financial liabilities, based on the contractual and undiscounted cash flows, and

financial assets (undiscounted where appropriate) in order to provide a complete

view of the Group and Company's contractual commitments and liquidity.

As at 31 December 2012

nBELERE)

REGORAMARESRE KERE
ERBERIER))  TREATEE
EARREBEENZHER - ARH
REBRARRTEBORAALELREY

R-B--#+-A=t—-H

Group KE
Upto I-3months 3-12 months Over  Indefinite’
| month -E= =2 |Syers Syears EREE Total
Ak BE t=@R -Zif @ALE ARY @t
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
B TEx Bz TEx  TEx TRz TEx
Assets BE
Held-to-maturity investments ¥ 25| #11& — 2907 80,427 — — — 83,334
Loans and advances to customers STk B P B3k 2,750,347 4460 279415 42,080 — — 3,076,302
Accounts receivable FelizE 1,022,639 162 386 — - — 103187
Financial assets at fair BATETABREN
value through profit or loss TREE - — — — = 482,220 482,220
Client trust bank balances EPEFRITHER 5619027 270725 — — — — 588975
Cash and cash equivalents BeRALEEN 354,956 29,847 — — — — 384803
9746969 308101 360228 42,080 — 4820 10939598
Liabilities &
Accounts payable FERTIA (6,955,818) — — — = —  (6955818)
Other payables EtENHE (2017) = = = = = (2017)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &1 BRI TIE (740.819) — — — — —  (140819)
Debt securities in issue BEITERES = (86,203) = = = = (86,203)
(7698654)  (86,203) (7,784,857)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38 SREARERE)
Liquidity risk (continued) REELERE(E)
As at 31 December 2012 (continued) R-B—-—E+-A=+—-R(#&)
Company b /NG|
Up to 3-12 months Over  Indefinite'
| month  1-3 months =ZE  |Syers 5 years BRE Total

—-BAR -2=@A +-fA -2if WBIF EARH' @it
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000
TErn TEx TR TER  TEx  TEn  TEx

Assets BE
Due from a subsidiary L CEN R 1,721,614 — — — — —  Ilsl4
Cash and cash equivalents RERALEEN 521 = = = = — 521
1,722,135 = = = = — 1,722,135
Liabilities &
Debt securities in issue BEITRKES — (86203 - - — —  (86203)
Financial guarantees to subsidiaries  [ff B2 AfEL MBI ER (762,600) = = = = —  (762,600)
(762,600) (86,203) = = = — (848803
Indefinite represents equity investments with no contractual maturity date and debt EETEERRAEESNTHE N
investments held for trading, ERERFBIEEENEBRINE -
BZZZBEBREZERERLQA 193

2012 % ¥y



Notes to Financial Statements

o 25 i P

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38 SREKREEZ)

194

Liquidity risk (continued) HEELEE(E)
As at 3| December 201 | R-_BE—F+-A=+—H
Group KE
Upto  [-3months 3-12 months Over  Indefinite'
| month —2= =2 |5years Syeas  ERER Total
—fEARA @ +zZ@EA -z @R AR @&t
HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKFO00  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
TAr TEx TExr  TEr  TAr AT TExn
Assets BE
Held-to-maturity investments BEISEE — 2915 2915 83558 — — 89,388
Loans and advances to customers  ERREF# 2,002,082 47848 15871 — — — 2065801
Accounts receivable FElsE 335,179 68 506 — — — 336366
Financial assets at fair value BATEGAEEN
through profit or loss EREE — - 2798 62,845 - 90607 156250
Other receivables Hio W — | 727 - — — — | 727
Client trust bank balances EPEFERTHER 5852138 277162 — — — — 6129300
Cash and cash equivalents R RALEEN 43318 230869 - - — — 664055
8620585 561202 2090 146403 — 90607 9442887
Liabilities &
Accounts payable N (6469,235) (2,000) — — — — (6471235
Other payables BN A 27 — — — — — (277
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5T 3R {TIE 3 —  (200565) - — - —  (200565)
Underwnting obligations BHER (388,300) — — — — — (388,300
(6857812)  (202,565) - - — —  (7.06037)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 December 201 | (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
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38 CREREES)

REESERE(E)
RZBE——F+=-A=+—R(E&)

Company b /NG|
Upto 3-12 months Over  Indefinite'
I'month  [-3 months =% [Dyears 5 years BETE Total
—@AR —E=R +-fEA -E5¥ BLF GEARY @5t
HK$000  HKFO00  HKFO00  HKFO00  HKPOOO  HKF000  HKFO00
TR  TARr  TAT  TExr  TEr  TEr  TEn
Assets EE
Due from a subsidary G =YNSES 1,756,397 — - - — — 1756397
Cash and cash equivalents RERALEEN 104 — — — — — 104
1756501 — — — — — 1,756,501
Liabilities af
Financial guarantees to subsidiaries [/t B2 B L MBI (R (685,500) — — — — —  (685500)

Indefinite represents equity investments with no contractual maturity date and debt

investments held for trading.

BREZBEBEEZRBERRA

2012 4 3R

BETEEARBEESOIMA MR
FREBRFHERENEHRE -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

At the end of the reporting period, the fair values of the Group's financial assets
and liabilities not measured at fair value are not materially different from their

carrying amounts.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value

of financial instruments:

Level I: fair values measured based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for which all inputs
which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable,

either directly or indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for which any inputs
which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are not based

on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38 SREARERE)
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued) EHEEREENAFEE)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BATEFENSRTAE)
As at 3|1 December 2012 R-BE--—F+=-B=+-—H
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR E2R EIR et

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
FEr TR TR TR

Financial assets at fair value through BATERARBRS

profit or loss PREE 75,876 288,100 118,244 482,220
As at 31 December 201 | R-E——F+-_A=+—H

Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total

R EWE F34 st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TR THT

Financial assets at fair value through BRTERFARRZD
profit or loss PREE 51,607 — 99,109 150716

BREZBEBEEZRBERRA 197
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38 SHEKRERZ)
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued) CHEERBENAFE(E)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BATEFENSRTAZE)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments of unlisted financial TREVWNEHZZE——FRZ_ZT—ZF
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss for the years ended 31 +-A=+—HIFEENETERATE
December 201 | and 2012 SABRNELTERAENEZRT
29 -
2012 2011
—B--f ZT——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FAT
At | January R—A—H 99,109 —
Purchases BE = 65,505
Accrued interest income JEETH S A 2,780 [,689
Receipt of interest income W ER A B A (2,775) (1,351
Net gain recognised in profit or loss REG PR 58 58,130 33266
Transfer out to Level | BHEE IR (39,000) —
At 3| December R+=ZRA=+—H 118,244 99,109
198 GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Capital management

The Group's objectives for managing capital, which represent a broader concept

than the “equity” on the face of the statement of financial position, are:

To comply with the capital requirements under the Securities and

Futures (Financial Resources) Rules for its subsidiaries which are licensed

To safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern so that it

can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other

To support the Group's stability and growth; and

To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

The liquid capital is monitored daily by each individual licensed subsidiary's

management based on the Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules. The

required information is filed with the SFC on a timely basis. The SFC requires each

licensed corporation to maintain a level of required liquid capital which is the higher

of the floor requirement ranging from HK$0.1 million to HK$15 million and 5% of

the aggregate of its adjusted liabilities and clients” margin. All licensed corporations

within the Group complied with their required liquid capital during the years ended

31 December 2012 and 201 I.

The capital of the Group mainly comprises its total equity.

BHREZBEBREREBRQF
2012 4 3R
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39.

200

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On 3 January 2013, 85,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at the subscription
price of HK$2.20 each were issued to GJHL, further details are set out in note 24.

On 10 January 2013, a Director of the Company exercised his share options
which have vested under the Share Option Scheme to subscribe for 500,000
ordinary shares of the Company at a consideration of HK$2.50 per share, of which
HK$50,000 was credited to share capital for the issuance of new shares and the

remaining was credited to the share premium account.

On 15 January 2013, in addition to the guarantees provided by the Company
in respect of the trading limit as mentioned in note 33, the Company provided
another guarantee of up to RMB5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$6.2
million) in favour of a financial institution in respect of the trading and clearing
transactions of a wholly-owned subsidiary principally engaged in provision of futures

dealing and broking services.

On 31 January 2013, in addition to the guarantee provided by the Company in
respect of bank borrowing as mentioned in Note 26, the Company provided
another guarantee of up to HK$200 million in favour of a financial institution in
respect of bank borrowings of a wholly-owned subsidiary, which is principally

engaged in provision of securities dealing and broking services.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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